
 

REGISTER VIA WEBEX ON YOUR COMPUTER OR SMART PHONE: 
https://tinyurl.com/6uvr3hxp 

*Link is for non-Committee members only 

 JOIN VIA WEBEX ON YOUR PHONE: 

 
1-415-655-0001 US Toll     

Access Code: 145 602 3120 
 

             
   

 

 

LIKE WHAT WE DO? 
Apply to become a Commissioner at http://tinyurl.com/HIVCommApplication 

   

 

PUBLIC POLICY COMMITTEE 
Virtual Meeting 

September 13, 2021 
1:00PM-3:00PM (PST) 

 
*Meeting Agenda + Packet will be available on our website at:   

http://hiv.lacounty.gov/Public-Policy-Committee 
 

Visit us online: http://hiv.lacounty.gov 

                                                            Get in touch: hivcomm@lachiv.org 

     Subscribe to the Commission’s Email List: https://tinyurl.com/y83ynuzt    

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Public Comments will open at the time referenced on the meeting agenda. For those who 
wish to provide live public comment, you may do so by joining the WebEx meeting through 
your computer or smartphone and typing PUBLIC COMMENT in the Chat box.  For those 
calling into the meeting via telephone, you will not be able to provide live public comment.  
However, you may provide written public comments or materials by email to 
hivcomm@lachiv.org.  Please include the agenda item and meeting date in your 
correspondence.  All correspondence and materials received shall become part of the official 
record.  

                                                                 
 

 

 

https://tinyurl.com/6uvr3hxp
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%2Fwatch%3Fv%3DiQSSJYcrgIk&data=04%7C01%7Cdmcclendon%40lachiv.org%7C559a50c3432240c713c708d8c33708f8%7C7faea7986ad04fc9b068fcbcaed341f6%7C0%7C0%7C637473988434432272%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=1kdgaeCGiR2MClEbpDAQmsFTlIsAlf2DiYPKJEIio3c%3D&reserved=0
http://tinyurl.com/HIVCommApplication
http://hiv.lacounty.gov/Public-Policy-Committee
http://hiv.lacounty.gov/
mailto:hivcomm@lachiv.org
https://tinyurl.com/y83ynuzt
mailto:hivcomm@lachiv.org
https://help.webex.com/en-us/nrbgeodb/Join-a-Webex-Meeting


 

 

`+ 
 

PUBLIC POLICY COMMITTEE 
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 13, 2021 | 1:00 PM – 3:00 PM 

  

To Join by Computer: https://tinyurl.com/6uvr3hxp 
*Link is for non-committee members only* 

 
To Join by Phone: 1-415-655-0001 

Access code: 145 602 3120 

Public Policy Committee Members: 
 

Katja Nelson, MPP 
Co-Chair 

 
Lee Kochems, MA 

Co-Chair 

 
 Alasdair Burton, 

(Alternate) 

 
Jerry D. Gates, PhD 

 
Gerald Garth 

Eduardo Martinez 
(Alternate) 

 
Isabella Rodriguez 

(Alternate) 
 

 
Ricky Rosales 

 
 

Martin Sattah, MD 
 

Tony Spears (Alternate) 
 

 
 

 
 

QUORUM: 6  
AGENDA POSTED September 9, 2021 

 
ATTENTION: Any person who seeks support or endorsement from the Commission on any official action may be 
subject to the provisions of Los Angeles County Code, Chapter 2.160 relating to lobbyists. Violation of the lobbyist 
ordinance may result in a fine and other penalties. For information, call (213) 974-1093. 
 
ACCOMMODATIONS: Interpretation services for the hearing impaired and translation services for languages 
other than English are available free of charge with at least 72 hours notice before the meeting date. To arrange 
for these services, please contact the Commission Office at (213) 738-2816 or via email at HIVComm@lachiv.org. 
 
Servicios de interpretación para personas con impedimento auditivo y traducción para personas que no hablan 
Inglés están disponibles sin costo. Para pedir estos servicios, póngase en contacto con Oficina de la Comisión al 
(213) 738-2816 (teléfono), o por correo electrónico á HIVComm@lachiv.org, por lo menos setenta y dos horas 
antes de la junta. 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION can be obtained at the Commission on HIV Website at: 
http://hiv.lacounty.gov. The Commission Offices are at 510 S. Vermont Ave. 14th Floor, one block North of 
Wilshire Blvd on the eastside of Vermont just past 6th Street.  Validated parking is available. 

 
NOTES on AGENDA SCHEDULING, TIMING, POSTED and ACTUAL TIMES, TIME ALLOTMENTS, and 
AGENDA ORDER:  Because time allotments for discussions and decision-making regarding business before the 
Commission’s standing committees cannot always be predicted precisely, posted times for items on the meeting 
agenda may vary significantly from either the actual time devoted to the item or the actual, ultimate order in which 
it was addressed on the agenda. Likewise, stakeholders may propose adjusting the order of various items at the 
commencement of the committee meeting (Approval of the Agenda), or times may be adjusted and/or modified, at 
the co-chairs’ discretion, during the course of the meeting.  
 
If a stakeholder is interested in joining the meeting to keep abreast of or participate in consideration of a specific 
agenda item, the Commission suggests that the stakeholder plan on attending the full meeting in case the agenda 
order is modified or timing of the items is altered. All Commission committees make every effort to place items 

https://tinyurl.com/6uvr3hxp


Commission on HIV | Public Policy Committee (PPC)                                           September 13, 2021 
 

 
Page 2 

 

that they are aware involve external stakeholders at the top of the agenda in order to address and resolve those 
issues more quickly and release visiting participants from the obligation of staying for the full meeting. 
 
External stakeholders who would like to participate in the deliberation of discussion of an a posted agenda item, 
but who may only be able to attend for a short time during a limited window of opportunity, may call the 
Commission’s Executive Director in advance of the meeting to see if the scheduled agenda order can be adjusted 
accordingly. Commission leadership and staff will make every effort to accommodate reasonable scheduling and 
timing requests - from members or other stakeholders - within the limitations and requirements of other possible 
constraints. 

 
 

 

Call to Order, Introductions and Check-in, Conflict of Interest Statements 1:00 PM – 1:05 PM 
 

I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS           1:05 PM – 1:08 PM

1. Approval of Agenda    MOTION #1                

2. Approval of Meeting Minutes MOTION #2 
 

II. PUBLIC COMMENT                 1:08 PM – 1:10 PM 
3. Opportunity for members of the public to address the Commission 

on items of interest that are within the jurisdiction of the Commission.   
 

III. COMMITTEE NEW BUSINESS ITEMS                   1:10 PM – 1:15 PM

4. Opportunity for Commission members to recommend new business items for the full 
body or a committee level discussion on non-agendized Matters not posted on the 
agenda, to be discussed and (if requested) placed on the agenda for action at a 
future meeting, or matters requiring immediate action because of an emergency 
situation, or where the need to take action arose subsequent to the posting of the 
agenda. 

 
IV. REPORTS 
5. Executive Director/Staff Report                    1:15 PM – 1:20 PM 

a. Operational Updates 
b. Committee and Caucus Updates 
 

6. Co-Chair Report             1:20 PM – 1:30 PM 
a. Act Now Against Meth (ANAM) Update 
b. Ending the HIV Epidemic COH Leads Update 
c. “So, You Want to Talk about Race” by I. Oluo Reading Activity 

Selected Excerpts only from Chapters 12 OR 13 
 

V.  DISCUSSION ITEMS  
7.        Legislative Docket            1:35 PM – 1:50 PM 

 BREATHE Act 
 https://breatheact.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/The-BREATHE-Act-PDF_FINAL3-1.pdf 

 

https://breatheact.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/The-BREATHE-Act-PDF_FINAL3-1.pdf


Commission on HIV | Public Policy Committee (PPC)                                           September 13, 2021 
 

 
Page 3 

 

8. Policies Priority – Feedback from the Division of HIV and  
STD Programs (DHSP) on Selecting Priorities                  1:50 PM – 2:10PM 
 

9. State Policy & Budget Update          2:10 PM – 2:20 PM 
 

10. Federal Policy Update            2:20 PM – 2:40 PM  
a.   Blood and Organ Donations 
 

11. County Policy Update            2:40 PM – 2:50 PM 
 

VI. NEXT STEPS                2:50 PM – 2:55 PM 

12. Task/Assignments Recap 
 

13. Agenda development for the next meeting 
 

VII. ANNOUNCEMENTS                   2:55 PM – 3:00 PM 
14. Opportunity for members of the public and the committee to 

make announcements 
 
VIII. ADJOURNMENT                        3:00 PM 

15. Adjournment for the meeting of September 13, 2021 
 

PROPOSED MOTIONS 

MOTION #1 Approve the Agenda Order as presented or revised. 

MOTION #2 Approve the Public Policy Committee minutes, as presented or revised. 
 
 



 
 
 

510 S. Vermont Ave., 14th Floor• Los Angeles, CA 90020 • TEL (213) 738-2816 • FAX (213) 
637-4748 HIVCOMM@LACHIV.ORG • http://hiv.lacounty.gov ORG • VIRTUAL WEBEX 

MEETING 
 

Presence at virtual meetings is recorded based on the attendance roll call. Only members of the 
Commission on HIV are accorded voting privileges and must verbally acknowledge their attendance in 

order to vote. 
Approved meeting minutes are available on the Commission’s website; meeting recordings are available 

upon request. 

PUBLIC POLICY COMMITTEE 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
August 2, 2021 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
P = Present | A = Absent |EA = Excused Absence 

Katja Nelson, MPP, Co-Chair P Nestor Kamurigi A 
Lee Kochems, MA, Co-Chair P Isabella Rodriguez (Alternate) P 
Alasdair Burton (Alternate) P Ricky Rosales A 
Jerry Gates, PhD P Martin Sattah, MD P 
Gerald Garth A Tony Spears (Alternative) A 
Eduardo Martinez (Alternate) P   

COMMISSION STAFF AND CONSULTANTS 
                    Carolyn Echols-Watson,  

Catherine Lapointe, Academic Intern 
*Some participants may not have been captured electronically. Attendance can be corrected by emailing the Commission. 
*Members of the public may confirm their attendance by contacting Commission staff at hivcomm@lachiv.org. 
*Meeting minutes may be corrected up to one year from the date of approval. 

 

CALL TO ORDER-INTRODUCTIONS-CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
Katja Nelson called the meeting to order at approximately 1:07PM.  Attendees were asked to introduce 
themselves and committee members state their conflicts. 

I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
MOTION #1: Approve the Agenda Order, as presented (Passed by Consensus). 

2. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 
MOTION #2: Approval of the 07/12/2021 Public Policy Committee Meeting Minutes, as 
presented (Passed by Consensus). 

 
 

Meeting agenda and materials can be found on the Commission’s website at  
http://hiv.lacounty.gov/Portals/HIV/Commission%20Meetings/2021/Packet/1%20-%20PPC_080221_Final-
merged%20Packet.pdf?ver=rKUcYaUDwZSuduftFG5uzQ%3d%3d 
 

Draft 

mailto:HIVCOMM@LACHIV.ORG
http://hiv.lacounty.gov/
mailto:hivcomm@lachiv.org
http://hiv.lacounty.gov/Portals/HIV/Commission%20Meetings/2021/Packet/1%20-%20PPC_080221_Final-merged%20Packet.pdf?ver=rKUcYaUDwZSuduftFG5uzQ%3d%3d
http://hiv.lacounty.gov/Portals/HIV/Commission%20Meetings/2021/Packet/1%20-%20PPC_080221_Final-merged%20Packet.pdf?ver=rKUcYaUDwZSuduftFG5uzQ%3d%3d


S:\2021 Calendar Year - Meetings\Committees\Public Policy\09 - September\Packet\WebEx Meeting Packet\Min_PPC 
   

Public Policy Committee 
August 2, 2021 
Page 2 of 6  

 

 
II. PUBLIC COMMENT 

3. OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC TO ADDRESS COMMISSION ON ITEMS OF INTEREST WITHIN 
COMMISSION JURISDICTION: There were no comments.  
 

III. COMMITTEE NEW BUSINESS ITEMS 

 4.  OPPORTUNITY FOR COMMISSIONERS TO RECOMMEND ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS, OR 
ITEMS REQUIRING  IMMEDIATE ACTION DUE TO AN EMERGENCY, OR IF NEED FOR ACTION 
AROSE AFTER POSTING AGENDA:  
L. Kochem made a request to adjourn in memory of Vincent Patti.  K. Nelson made a request 
to adjourn in memory of Darren Aiken. 

IV. REPORTS 

5. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/STAFF REPORT 
a. Commission and Committee Updates 
• Members were invited to the Priorities, Planning and Allocations Committee meeting 

scheduled for August 17, 2021 from 1 to 5PM.  The Division on HIV and STD Programs (DHSP) 
will present program expenditure information for PY 30 and the Committee will begin the 
process of ranking services and allocation percentages for PY 32, 33 & 34.    

• Richard Zaldivar will present on ANAM at the August 12, 2021 Commission meeting. 

6. CO-CHAIR REPORT 
a. Act Now Against Meth (ANAM) Update 
 The Committee will discuss the ANAM information presented at the August 12th Commission 

meeting at the September 13, 2021 PPC meeting to determine the committee’s future actions 
to support this effort. 

 
b. Ending the HIV Epidemic (EHE) Activities and Feedback 
There were no new updates from EHE representatives. 

 
c. “So, You Want to Talk about Race” by I. Oluo Reading Activity 

Selected Excerpts from Chapters 10 & 11 
• Isabella Rodriguez read an excerpt from Chapter 10.    
• K. Nelson invited members to volunteer for future readings.  the September reading will be 

excerpts from Chapters 12 and/or 13.  
 
   V. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

7. Legislative Docket  
Assembly person Garcia’s office provided the following regarding AB 453 and AB 1033 (Questions 
were posed by the Transgender and Consumer Caucuses regarding these bills.) 
• AB 453 was referred to the suspense file. That was done due to costs to the State.  The office 

is working to remove the bill from the suspense file. 



S:\2021 Calendar Year - Meetings\Committees\Public Policy\09 - September\Packet\WebEx Meeting Packet\Min_PPC 
   

Public Policy Committee 
August 2, 2021 
Page 3 of 6  

 

 
o The Committee agreed to change the “recommended position” for AB 453 from 

“oppose” to “referred back to committee in discussion”.  The action was taken to 
reduce confusion on the Committee/Commission position. 

 Staff will update the bill position recommendation on the legislative docket. 
• AB 1033 was a previous bill with the same subject matter as AB 453.  The bill was not passed 

because the State legislature had taken a position to not approve new crimes due to prison 
overcrowding.  

 The Committee requested staff share the AB 453 and AB1033 updates with the Transgender, 
Women and Consumer Caucuses.  

• Staff noted the Women’s Caucus will meet on August 30, 2021 and included AB 453 on their 
agenda for discussion as requested by the Commission. 

• Staff submitted a request to Assembly person Chiu’s office requesting a representative to 
attend the PPC’s September 13, 2021 meeting.   The request is to provide further information 
on bills AB 15 COVID-19 Relief: Tenancy: Tenant Stabilization Act of 2021 and AB 16 Tenancies: 
COVID 19 Tenant, Small Landlord, and Affordable Housing Provider Stabilization Act of 2021.   
No response has been received to date. 

• The Committee reviewed the legislative docket and noted many bills are working their way 
through various committees.  The following bills were signed by the governor.   

o AB 439 Certificates of Death: Gender Identity – The law authorizes the deceased 
gender identity to be recorded as female, male or non-binary.   

o SB 258 Aging – The law revises the definition of “greatest social need” to include HIV 
status as a specified noneconomic factor.   It was noted, this expands opportunities for 
funding and programming for older adults living with HIV.  Further New York is the only 
other state in the country that uses this definition. 

o K. Nelson noted there is interest in working with the California Department of Aging as it 
relates to the Aging Master Plan and how this change can be incorporated in initiatives 
included in the plan. 

 
8. Policy Priority - Priorities 
• The Committee postponed the discussion on prioritizing policy priorities until a representative 

from DHSP can provide guidance on how to proceed.  The Committee has requested Mario 
Perez, Director of DHSP to attend a future PPC meeting to discuss this issue with the 
Committee.   

 Staff will follow up with M. Perez and request his attendance at the September 13, 2021 PPC 
meeting. 

   9.   State Policy and Budget Update 
• The Committee discussed the signed State budget.  The budget is made up of several bills.  AB 

133 is the bill for the health budget which was signed by the governor.  It includes the following 
budgeted amounts for the current Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-22.   

• $13 million for End the Epidemic activities which include: 



S:\2021 Calendar Year - Meetings\Committees\Public Policy\09 - September\Packet\WebEx Meeting Packet\Min_PPC 
   

Public Policy Committee 
August 2, 2021 
Page 4 of 6  

 

o $ 3 million for Syringe Clearing House; $4 million for STD programs; $5 million for HIV 
and Aging Demonstration Programs and $1 million for hepatitis C testing. 

o In FY 2022 the $6 million for demonstration projects and hepatitis C testing will be re-
allocated to the Syringe Clearing House and STD services.   

• K. Nelson referred the Committee to the following documents regarding the  
State budget.   (The documents are included in the meeting packet.) 

o 2021-22 Housing and Homeless Budget Summary which included the budget for the 
Projecthome Key program. 

o Health Access California Health: Consumer Advocacy Coalition Fact Sheet regarding 
Health Care and Coverage Investments and Improvement in 2021-22 California State 
Budget.  It was noted, the County Department of Public Health’s input is needed on how 
the County will use the allocated funding. 

o An article on the State of California Third District Court of Appeals ruling on a State 
statute requiring nursing home staff to use the correct pronouns for trans, and 
nonbinary patients is a freedom of speech violation. This impacts the LGBTQ Long-Term 
Care Facility Residents’ Bill of Rights created by SB 219 in 2017. 

10.   Federal Policy Updates 
a. Blood and Organ Donations 

At the July 2021 Executive Committee meeting, a request was made for the PPC to review 
federal policies on blood and organ donations from PLWH and determine if PPC can make 
recommendations to improve policies.  

 The Committee will gather information on the subject.  K. Nelson will reach out to the Federal 
government for guidelines on blood and organ donations PLHIV. 

 The Issue will be on the September 13, 2021 PPC agenda. 
• The Committee reviewed their commitment to read the BREATHE proposal bill.  It was noted, 

the Movement for Black Lives was contacted prior to the July meeting to provide some insight 
on the bill and how it varies from the George Floyd Justice and Policing Act of 2021.  Staff is 
awaiting a response.   

 Staff will follow up with the organization and K. Nelson will follow up with Felipe Findley who 
provide the initial introduction to the Movement for Black Lives.    

• The Committee will continue the discussion of the BREATHE Act at the September 13th meeting.  
If the Movement for Black Lives is unable to present at that meeting the Committee has agreed 
to discuss and recommend a position to the Commission. 

• Portions of the BREATHE bill were reviewed.  It was noted the George Floyd Justice and Policing 
Act of 2021 includes allocating funds to policing.  It was noted, the BREATHE Act prioritizes  
funding supportive services similar to the County of Los Angeles Anti-Racist Diversity and 
Inclusion Initiative (ARDI).  The proposal includes diversion of resources to invest in community 
safety, housing, health, creating sustainable communities and holding officials accountable.   

 The Committee agree to change the recommended position for the BREATHE Act and George 
Floyd Justice and Policing Act of 2021 to “referred back to committee, in discussion”. 

11. County Policy Update 



S:\2021 Calendar Year - Meetings\Committees\Public Policy\09 - September\Packet\WebEx Meeting Packet\Min_PPC 
   

Public Policy Committee 
August 2, 2021 
Page 5 of 6  

 

a. Reassessing the County’s Response to the STD Epidemic 
The Committee discussed the STD Epidemic letter prepared by the Commission for submission  

 
to the Board of Supervisors (BOS).  It was recommended members make public comments at 
the BOS meetings or submit written comments.   It was noted, the letter will include 
Black/African American Community (BAAC) Task Force (TF) priorities submitted to Supervisor 
Holly Mitchell’s office.  They are as follows.  

1) Provide technical assistance to aid Black/AA agencies in obtaining funds for culturally 
sensitive service 
2) Provide on-site cultural sensitivity and education training to include addressing implicit 
bias and medical mistrust within the Black/AA community for all County-contracted 
providers and adopt cultural humility into the local HIV provider framework 
3) Provide resources to Community-Based Organizations (CBOs) to develop, implement and 
evaluate primary prevention interventions which are culturally appropriate and relevant 

• An educational element was requested for inclusion in the letter.  It was noted, the general 
public is not educated on STD issues. 

• The Committee discussed the report back to BOS on establishing an anti-racist, Los Angeles 
County policy agenda. The County’s strategic plan will cross all departments and is targeted for 
launch in the spring of 2022. County leaders and departments are convening.  Trainings are 
being established. 

 The Committee requested a County representative present on the initiative to PPC to 
determine the Commission’s role. 

• The Committee referenced the BOS media release regarding $527 million for Los Angeles 
County Homeless Initiative. The initiative includes behavioral health infrastructure 
investments. 

• A recommendation was made for the Committee to initiate a conversation with State and 
County leadership regarding priorities for the public health infrastructure. The Committee 
may want to provide service recommendations and identify the scope of services State 
funding can support.   

VI. NEXT STEPS 

12. TASK/ASSIGNMENTS RECAP: Task/Assignments are included in the minutes.  Indicated with a 
red arrow. 

13. AGENDA DEVELOPMENT FOR NEXT MEETING: Continued agenda items are indicated in the 
minutes. 

VII. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
  OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC AND COMMITTEE TO MAKE ANNOUNCEMENTS:  
No Announcements 

 
 



S:\2021 Calendar Year - Meetings\Committees\Public Policy\09 - September\Packet\WebEx Meeting Packet\Min_PPC 
   

Public Policy Committee 
August 2, 2021 
Page 6 of 6  

 

 
 
 
VIII. ADJOURNMENT 

14. ADJOURNMENT:  

The PPC adjourned in memory of  Vincent Patti and Darren Aiken with recognition of 
each individual’s activism and contributions specifically those efforts to end HIV.  The PPC 
acknowledged the loss with 30 seconds of silence to memorialize their loss.  

The meeting adjourned at approximately 2:05 pm. 



S:\Committee - Operations\Code of Conduct\CodeofConduct_Final_032819_COHAppvd041119.docx 

 
 
 

3530 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 1140 • Los Angeles, CA 90010 • TEL (213) 738-2816 • FAX (213) 637-6748                

                                                   HIVCOMM@LACHIV.ORG • http://hiv.lacounty.gov 
 

                CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
We welcome commissioners, guests, and the public into a space where people of all 
opinions and backgrounds are able to contribute. We create a safe environment that 
celebrates differences while striving for consensus and is characterized by consistent, 
professional, and respectful behavior. Our common enemies are HIV and STDs. We strive 
to be introspective and understand and clarify our assumptions, while appreciating the 
complex intersectionality of the lives we live. We challenge ourselves to be self-reflective 
and committed to an ongoing understanding. As a result, the Commission has adopted 
and is consistently committed to implementing the following guidelines for Commission, 
committee, and associated meetings. 

 
All participants and stakeholders should adhere to the following: 
 
1) We strive for consensus and compassion in all our interactions. 
2) We respect others’ time by starting and ending meetings on time, being punctual, and 

staying present. 
3) We listen, don’t repeat what has already been stated, avoid interrupting others, and 

allow others to be heard. 
4) We encourage all to bring forth ideas for discussion, community planning, and 

consensus. 
5) We focus on the issue, not the person raising the issue. 
6) We give and accept respectful and constructive feedback. 
7) We keep all issues on the table (no “hidden agendas”), avoid monopolizing discussions 

and minimize side conversations. 
8) We have no place in our deliberations for homophobic, racist, sexist, and other 

discriminatory statements and “-isms” (including transphobia, ableism, and ageism). 
9) We give ourselves permission to learn from our mistakes. 

 
 
 

Approved (11/12/1998); Revised (2/10/2005; 9/6/2005); Revised (4/11/19) 

mailto:HIVCOMM@LACHIV.ORG
http://hiv.lacounty.gov/


ALVAREZ Miguel No Affiliation No Ryan White or prevention contracts

Ambulatory Outpatient Medical (AOM)

Benefits Specialty

Biomedical HIV Prevention

Medical Care Coordination (MCC)

HIV and STD Prevention

HIV Testing Social & Sexual Networks

HIV Testing Storefront

HIV Testing & Syphilis Screening, Diagnosis, & inked Referral…(CSV)

STD Screening, Diagnosis, and Treatment

Health Education/Risk Reduction (HERR)

Mental Health

Oral Healthcare Services

Transitional Case Management

Ambulatory Outpatient Medical (AOM)

Benefits Specialty

Biomedical HIV Prevention

Medical Care Coordination (MCC)

Transportation Services

Oral Health Care Services

Medical Care Coordination (MCC)

Ambulatory Outpatient Medical (AOM)

Transportation Services

Everardo Long Beach Health & Human Services

Alasdair No Affiliation

The following list identifies “conflicts-of-interest” for Commission members who represent agencies with Part A/B –and/or CDC HIV Prevention-funded service contracts with the County of Los Angeles. 

According to Ryan White legislation, HRSA guidance and Commission policy, Commission members are required to state their “conflicts-of-interest” prior to priority- and allocation-setting and other fiscal 

matters concerning the local HIV continuum of care, and to recuse themselves from discussions involving specific service categories for which their organizations have service contracts. 

                                                   COMMISSION MEMBER “CONFLICTS-OF-INTEREST”                           Updated 8/11/21

UCLA/MLKCHDanielleCAMPBELL

JWCH, INC.AlBALLESTEROS

No Ryan White or prevention contracts

ALVIZO

BURTON

COMMISSION MEMBERS ORGANIZATION SERVICE CATEGORIES



COMMISSION MEMBERS ORGANIZATION SERVICE CATEGORIES

Ambulatory Outpatient Medical (AOM)

Biomedical HIV Prevention

Medical Care Coordination (MCC)

COFFEY Pamela Unaffiliated consumer No Ryan White or prevention contracts

DANIELS Michele Unaffiliated consumer No Ryan White or prevention contracts

Ambulatory Outpatient Medical (AOM)

HIV Testing Storefront

HIV Testing Social & Sexual Networks

STD Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment

Health Education/Risk Reduction

Biomedical HIV Prevention

Medical Care Coordination (MCC)

Promoting Healthcare Engagement Among Vulnerable Populations

Transportation Services

HIV Testing Storefront

HIV Testing & Sexual Networks

DONNELLY Kevin Unaffiliated consumer No Ryan White or prevention contracts

Transportation Services

Ambulatory Outpatient Medical (AOM)

Medical Care Coordination (MCC)

Oral Health Care Services

Biomedical HIV Prevention

STD Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment

Ambulatory Outpatient Medical (AOM)

HIV Testng Storefront

HIV Testing Social & Sexual Networks

STD Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment

Health Education/Risk Reduction

Biomedical HIV Prevention

Medical Care Coordination (MCC)

Promoting Healthcare Engagement Among Vulnerable Populations

Transportation Services

GARTH Gerald AMAAD Institute No Ryan White or Prevention Contracts

GATES Jerry AETC Part F Grantee

DARLING-PALACIOS Frankie

CIELO Mikhaela LAC & USC MCA Clinic

DAVIES Erika City of Pasadena

FULLER Luckie Los Angeles LGBT Center

FINDLEY Felipe Watts Healthcare Corporation

Los Angeles LGBT Center

S:\2021 Calendar Year - Meetings\Committees\Planning Priorities and Allocations\08 - August\Packet\Copy of List-Commissioner Agency Service Categ Conflicts-Updated_081121



COMMISSION MEMBERS ORGANIZATION SERVICE CATEGORIES

GONZALEZ Felipe Unaffiliated consumer No Ryan White or Prevention Contracts

GORDON Bridget Unaffiliated consumer No Ryan White or prevention contracts

Ambulatory Outpatient Medical (AOM)

HIV Testing Storefront

STD Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment

Biomedical HIV Prevention

Medical Care Coordination (MCC)

Transitional Case Management-Youth

Promoting Healthcare Engagement Among Vulnerable Populations

GREEN Joseph Unaffiliated consumer No Ryan White or prevention contracts

HIV Testing Storefront

Mental Health

Transportation Services

HACK Damontae Unaffiliated consumer No Ryan White or prevention contracts

HALFMAN Karl California Department of Public Health, Office of AIDS Part B Grantee

KOCHEMS Lee Unaffiliated consumer No Ryan White or prevention contracts

KING William W. King Health Care Group No Ryan White or prevention contracts

HIV Testing Storefront

HIV Testing Social & Sexual Networks

Ambulatory Outpatient Medical (AOM)

Benefits Specialty

Medical Care Coordination (MCC)

Mental Health

Oral Healthcare Services

STD Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment

HIV Testing Storefront

HIV Testing Social & Sexual Networks

Sexual Health Express Clinics (SHEx-C)

Transportation Services

Medical Subspecialty

HIV and STD Prevention Services in Long Beach

Children's Hospital Los AngelesGrisselGRANADOS

GREEN Thomas APAIT (aka Special Services for Groups)

MARTINEZ

Charles R. Drew University of Medicine and ScienceDavidLEE

AIDS Healthcare FoundationEduardo

S:\2021 Calendar Year - Meetings\Committees\Planning Priorities and Allocations\08 - August\Packet\Copy of List-Commissioner Agency Service Categ Conflicts-Updated_081121



COMMISSION MEMBERS ORGANIZATION SERVICE CATEGORIES

Ambulatory Outpatient Medical (AOM)

HIV Testing Storefront

STD Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment

Biomedical HIV Prevention

Medical Care Coordination (MCC)

Transitional Case Management - Youth

Promoting Healthcare Engagement Among Vulnerable Populations

Biomedical HIV Prevention

Ambulatory Outpatient Medical (AOM)

Medical Care Coordination (MCC)

Promoting Healthcare Engagement Among Vulnerable Populations

Sexual Health Express Clinics (SHEx-C)

Transportation Services

MINTLINE (SBP 

Member)
Mark Western University of Health Sciences No Ryan White or prevention contracts

Ambulatory Outpatient Medical (AOM)

HIV Testing Storefront

STD Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment

Biomedical HIV Prevention

Medical Care Coordination (MCC)

Transitional Case Management - Youth

Promoting Healthcare Engagement Among Vulnerable Populations

MURRAY Derek City of West Hollywood No Ryan White or prevention contracts 

Biomedical HIV Prevention

Oral Healthcare Services

MORENO

Southern CA Men’s Medical GroupAnthonyMILLS

Carlos Children’s Hospital, Los Angeles

NASH Paul University of Southern California

MARTINEZ (PP&A 

Member)
Miguel Children's Hospital Los Angeles

S:\2021 Calendar Year - Meetings\Committees\Planning Priorities and Allocations\08 - August\Packet\Copy of List-Commissioner Agency Service Categ Conflicts-Updated_081121



COMMISSION MEMBERS ORGANIZATION SERVICE CATEGORIES

Case Management, Home-Based

Benefits Specialty

HIV Testing Storefront

HIV Testing Social & Sexual Networks

STD Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment

Sexual Health Express Clinics (SHEx-C)

Health Education/Risk Reduction

Health Education/Risk Reduction, Native American

Biomedical HIV Prevention

Oral Healthcare Services

Ambulatory Outpatient Medical (AOM)

Medical Care Coordination (MCC)

HIV and STD Prevention Services in Long Beach

Transportation Services

Nutrition Support

PERÉZ Mario
Los Angeles County,  Department of Public Health, 

Division of HIV and STD Programs
Ryan White/CDC Grantee

Ambulatory Outpatient Medical (AOM)

Benefits Specialty

Medical Care Coordination (MCC)

Oral Healthcare Services

Mental Health

Biomedical HIV Prevention

STD Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment

Transportation Services

RAY Joshua Unaffiliated consumer No Ryan White or prevention contracts

ROBINSON Mallery No Affiliation No Ryan White or prevention contracts

RODRIGUEZ Isabella No Affiliation No Ryan White or prevention contracts

ROSALES Ricky City of Los Angeles AIDS Coordinator No Ryan White or prevention contracts

Ambulatory Outpatient Medical (AOM)

Medical Care Coordination (MCC)

Northeast Valley Health Corporation

APLA Health & WellnessKatja

PRECIADO Juan

NELSON

Rand Schrader Clinic 

LA County Department of Health Services
MartinSATTAH

S:\2021 Calendar Year - Meetings\Committees\Planning Priorities and Allocations\08 - August\Packet\Copy of List-Commissioner Agency Service Categ Conflicts-Updated_081121



COMMISSION MEMBERS ORGANIZATION SERVICE CATEGORIES

HIV Testing Storefront

HIV Testing & Syphilis Screening, Diagnosis, & inked Referral…(CSV)

STD Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment

Health Education/Risk Reduction 

Mental Health

Oral Healthcare Services

Transitional Case Management

Ambulatory Outpatient Medical (AOM)

Benefits Specialty

Biomedical HIV Prevention

Medical Care Coordination (MCC)

Transportation Services

HIV Testing Social & Sexual Networks

Medical Care Coordination (MCC)

SPEARS Tony Capitol Drugs No Ryan White or prevention contracts

STALTER Kevin Unaffiliated consumer No Ryan White or prevention contracts

STEVENS Reba No Affiliation No Ryan White or prevention contracts

THOMAS Damone No Affiliation No Ryan White or prevention contracts

VALERO Justin California State University, San Bernardino No Ryan White or prevention contracts

VEGA Rene Via Care Community Clinic Biomedical HIV Prevention

VELAZQUEZ Guadalupe Unaffiliated consumer No Ryan White or prevention contracts

WALKER Kayla No Affiliation No Ryan White or prevention contracts

Biomedical HIV Prevention

Ambulatory Outpatient Medical (AOM)

Medical Care Coordination (MCC)

Promoting Healthcare Engagement Among Vulnerable Populations

Sexual Health Express Clinics (SHEx-C)

Transportation Services

WILSON Amiya Unique Women's Coalition No Ryan White or prevention contracts

HIV Testing Storefront

Ambulatory Outpatient Medical (AOM)

Oasis Clinic (Charles R. Drew University/Drew CARES)LaShondaSPENCER

SAN AGUSTIN Harold JWCH, INC.

WALKER Ernest Men's Health Foundation

S:\2021 Calendar Year - Meetings\Committees\Planning Priorities and Allocations\08 - August\Packet\Copy of List-Commissioner Agency Service Categ Conflicts-Updated_081121



Revised 09/13/2021 
            

 
 
 

2021-2022 Legislative Docket 
(Approved by the Commission on HIV as of 07/08/2021) * 

 
POSITIONS:  SUPPORT | OPPOSE | SUPPORT w/AMENDMENTS | OPPOSE unless AMENDED | 

WATCH | County bills noted w/asterisk 
 

BILL TITLE DESCRIPTION / COMMENTS RECOMMEND
ED POSITION STATUS 

AB 4 
(Arambula) 

Medi-Cal: 
eligibility 

The bill would extend eligibility for full scope Medi-Cal benefits to anyone 
regardless of age, and who is otherwise eligible for those benefits but for 
their immigration status. 
 
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120
220AB4 

Support 

26-AUG-21  
In Committee: 

Held Under 
Submission. 

 

AB 15 
(Chiu) 

COVID-19 
relief: tenancy: 

Tenant 
Stabilization 
Act of 2021 

This bill would extend the definition of “COVID-19 rental debt” as unpaid 
rent or any other unpaid financial obligation of a tenant that came due 
between March 1, 2020, and December 31, 2021. The bill would also 
extend the repeal date of the act to January 1, 2026. The bill would make 
other conforming changes to align with these extended dates. By 
extending the repeal date of the act, the bill would expand the crime of 
perjury and create a state-mandated local program. 
 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=20212
0220AB15 
 
Per Assembly Chiu Office the Assembly person will hold the bill until the 
next legislative cycle.  Due to the passing of AB 3088, SB 91 and AB 832 
which prevent eviction due to non-payment of rent for those whose 
income was negatively impacted by the pandemic. 

Support with 
questions  

11-JAN-21 
Referred to 

Committee on 
Housing and 
Community 

Development 

AB 16 
(Chiu) 

Tenancies: 
COVID-

19 Tenant, 
Small 

Landlord, and 
Affordable 
Housing 
Provider 

Stabilization 
Act of 2021 

This bill would establish the Tenant, Small Landlord, and Affordable 
Housing Provider Stabilization Program. 
 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billStatusClient.xhtml?bill_id=202
120220AB16 
 
Per Assembly Chiu Office the Assembly person will hold the bill until the 
next legislative cycle.  Due to the passing of AB 3088, SB 91 and AB 832 
which prevent eviction due to non-payment of rent for those whose 
income was negatively impacted by the pandemic. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Watch 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13-JAN-21 
Re-referred to 
Committee on 
Housing and 
Community 

Development 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB4
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB4
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB15
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB15
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billStatusClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB16
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billStatusClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB16


 
 

2 
 

BILL TITLE DESCRIPTION / COMMENTS RECOMMEND
ED POSITION STATUS 

AB 19 
(Santiago) 

Unemployment 
insurance 

compensation: 
COVID-19 
pandemic: 
temporary 
benefits 

This bill would require the Employment Development Department to 
provide, until July 1, 2022, following the termination of assistance 
pursuant to Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) and Pandemic 
Emergency Unemployment Compensation (PEUC) or any other federal or 
state supplemental unemployment compensation payments for 
unemployment due to the COVID-19 pandemic, in addition to an 
individual’s weekly benefit amount as otherwise provided for by existing 
unemployment compensation law, unemployment compensation benefits 
equivalent to the terminated federal or state supplemental unemployment 
compensation payments for the remainder of the duration of time the 
individual is unemployed due to the COVID-19 pandemic, notwithstanding 
the weekly benefit cap.  
 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=20212
0220AB19 

Watch 
 (with more 
information) 

11-JAN-21 
Referred to 

Committee on 
Insurance 

AB 32  
(Aguiar-
Curry) 

Telehealth 

The bill would authorize a provider to enroll or recertify an individual in 
Medi-Cal programs through telehealth and other forms of virtual 
communication. 
 
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120
220AB32 

Support 

08-JULY-21  
In Committee: 

Set, First 
Hearing. 
Hearing 

Canceled at the 
Request of 

Author. 

AB 65 
(Low) 

California 
Universal Basic 

Income 
Program: 
Personal 

Income Tax 

This bill would declare the intent of the Legislature to enact legislation to 
create a California Universal Basic Income Program, with the intention of 
ensuring economic security for all Californians. 
 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=20212
0220AB65 

Watch 

20-MAY-21 
In Committee: 

Held Under 
Submission 

AB 71 
(Luz Rivas) 

Homelessness 
funding: Bring 

California 
Home Act 

This bill, for taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 2022, would 
include a taxpayer’s global low-taxed income in their gross income for 
purposes of the Personal Income Tax Law, in modified conformity with the 
above-described federal provisions. The bill would exempt any standard, 
criterion, procedure, determination, rule, notice, or guideline established 
or issued by the Franchise Tax Board to implement its provisions from the 
rulemaking provisions of the Administrative Procedure Act. 
 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=20212
0220AB71 

Support  

03-JUNE-21  
Ordered to 

Inactive File at 
the Request of 

Assembly 
Member Luz 

Rivas     

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB19
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB19
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB32
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB32
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB65
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB65
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB71
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB71


 
 

3 
 

BILL TITLE DESCRIPTION / COMMENTS RECOMMEND
ED POSITION STATUS 

AB 77 
(Petrie-
Norris) 

Substance use 
disorder 

treatment 
services 

This bill would declare the intent of the Legislature to enact Jarrod’s Law, 
a licensure program for inpatient and outpatient programs providing 
substance use disorder treatment services, under the administration of the 
State Department of Health Care Services. 
 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=20212
0220AB77 

Support 

26-MAR-21  
Re-referred to 
Committee on 

Health 

AB 218 
(Ward) 

Change of 
gender and sex 

identifier 

This bill would recast these provisions relating to new birth certificates to 
provide for a change in gender and sex identifier and to specify that a 
person who was issued a birth certificate by this state, rather than a person 
born in this state, may obtain a new birth certificate. 
 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=20212
0220AB218 

Support 

07-SEP-21 
Read Second 

Time. Ordered 
to Senate Third 

reading. 

AB 240  
(Rodriguez) 

Local health 
department 
workforce 

assessment.  

This bill would require the department to contract with an appropriate and 
qualified entity to conduct an evaluation of the adequacy of the local 
health department infrastructure and to make recommendations for 
future staffing, workforce needs, and resources, in order to accurately 
and adequately fund local public health.  
 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=20212
0220AB240 

Support with 
Questions 

26-AUG-21 
In Committee: 

Held under 
Submission 

AB 245 
(Chiu) 

Educational 
equity: student 
records: name 

and gender 
changes 

This bill would require a campus of the University of California, California 
State University, or California Community Colleges to update a former 
student’s records to include the student’s updated legal name or gender if 
the institution receives government-issued documentation, as described, 
from the student demonstrating that the former student’s legal name or 
gender has been changed. 
 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=20212
0220AB245 

Support 

02-SEP-21 
Enrolled and 
Presented to 
the Governor 

AB 328 
(Chiu) 

Reentry 
Housing and 
Workforce 

Development 
Program 

This bill would establish the Reentry Housing Program. The bill would 
require the Department of Housing and Community Development to, on or 
before July 1, 2022, take specified actions to, upon appropriation by the 
Legislature, provide grants to counties and continuums of care, as defined, 
for evidence-based housing and housing-based services interventions to 
allow people with recent histories of incarceration to exit homelessness and 
remain stably housed. 
 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=20212
0220AB328 

Support  

20-May-21 
In Committee: 

Hearing 
Postponed by 
Committee     

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB77
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB77
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB218
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB218
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB240
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB240
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB245
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB245
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB328
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB328


 
 

4 
 

BILL TITLE DESCRIPTION / COMMENTS RECOMMEND
ED POSITION STATUS 

AB 369 
(Kamlager) 

Medi-Cal 
Services: 
Persons 

Experiencing 
Homelessness 

This bill would require the department to implement a program of 
presumptive eligibility for individuals experiencing homelessness, under 
which an individual would receive full-scope Medi-Cal benefits without a 
share of cost. 
 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=20212
0220AB369 

Support 

02-SEP-21 
Senate 

Amendments 
Concurred in. 
To Engrossing 
and Enrolling 

AB 439 
(Bauer-
Kahan) 

Certificates of 
death: gender 

identity  

This bill would authorize the decedent’s gender identity to be recorded as 
female, male, or nonbinary. 
 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=20212
0220AB439 

Support 

 
09-JULY-21 

Chaptered by 
Secretary of 

State – Chap 53 
Statues of 2021  

AB 453** 
(Garcia) 

 

Sexual battery: 
nonconsensual 

condom 
removal 

This bill would additionally provide that a person commits a sexual battery 
who causes contact between a penis, from which a condom has been 
removed, and the intimate part of another who did not verbally consent to 
the condom being removed. 
 
The bill has been referred to the Suspense File due to costs to the state. However, 
the Assembly person’s office is hopeful it will get off Suspense because the bill 
ensures the public has access to justice.  Assembly person Garcia is continuing to 
work on AB 453 and remains hopeful that the bill will be signed by Governor 
Newsom in the fall.  
 
Return to Committee per the Executive Committee (E.C.) motion.  E.C. 
requested Transgender, Consumer and Women Caucuses review and 
provide comment on the bill.  E.C. is concerned that a bill that criminalizes 
“non-consensual condom removal” would be opposed. 
 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=20212
0220AB453 

Referred 
Back to 

Committee 
in 

Discussion 

07-SEP-21 
Senate 

Amendments 
Concurred in.  
To Engrossing 
and Enrolling. 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB369
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB369
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB439
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB439
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB453
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB453


 
 

5 
 

BILL TITLE DESCRIPTION / COMMENTS RECOMMEND
ED POSITION STATUS 

AB 789 
(Low) 

Health care 
facilities 

This bill would require a primary care services in an outpatient department 
of a health facility or a primary care clinic, as specified, to offer a patient 
receiving health services a hepatitis B screening test and a hepatitis C 
screening test, as specified. The bill would also require the practitioner to 
offer the patient follow up health care or refer the patient to a health care 
provider who can provide follow up health care if the screening test is 
positive or reactive, as specified. 
 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=20212
0220AB789 

Support 

01-SEP-21 
Senate 

Amendments 
Concurred in. 
To Engrossing 
and Enrolling 

 

AB 835 
(Nazarian)  

Hospital 
emergency 

departments: 
HIV testing 

This bill would require every patient who has blood drawn at a hospital 
emergency department to be offered an HIV test, as specified. The bill 
would specify the manner in which the results of that test are provided. 
The bill would state that a hospital emergency department is not required 
to offer an HIV test to a patient if the department determines that the 
patient is being treated for a life-threatening emergency or if they 
determine the person lacks the capacity to consent to an HIV test. 
 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=20212
0220AB835 

Support 

26-AUG-21 
In Committee: 

Held Under 
Submission 

 

AB 1038 
(Gipson) 

California 
Health Equity 

Program 

This bill would establish the California Health Equity Program, a competitive 
grant program administered by the Office of Health Equity to community-
based nonprofit organizations, community clinics, local health 
departments, and tribal organizations to take actions related to health 
equity. The bill would establish the California Health Equity Fund. 
 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=20212
0220AB1038 

Support 

26-AUG-21 
In Committee: 

Held Under 
Submission 

AB 1344 
(Arambula) 

State 
Department of 
Public Health: 

needle and 
syringe 

exchange 
services 

This bill would expressly exempt needle and syringe exchange services 
application submissions, authorizations, and operations from review under 
the California Environmental Quality Act. Further, the bill would provide 
that the services provided by an entity authorized to provide those needle 
and syringe exchange services, and any foreseeable and reasonable 
consequences of providing those services, do not constitute a public 
nuisance under specified existing law. 
 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billStatusClient.xhtml?bill_id=202
120220AB1344 

Support 

01-SEP-21 
Senate 

Amendments 
Concurred In. 
To Engrossing 
and Enrolling 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB789
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB789
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB835
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB835
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB1038
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB1038
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billStatusClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB1344
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billStatusClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB1344


 
 

6 
 

BILL TITLE DESCRIPTION / COMMENTS RECOMMEND
ED POSITION STATUS 

AB 1400 
(Kalra) 

Guaranteed 
Health Care for 

All 

This bill, the California Guaranteed Health Care for All Act, would create the 
California Guaranteed Health Care for All program, or CalCare, to provide 
comprehensive universal single-payer health care coverage and a health 
care cost control system for the benefit of all residents of the state. 
 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=20212
0220AB1400 

Support 22-FEB-21 
Read First Time. 

AB 1407 
(Burke) 

 

Nurses: 
implicit bias 

courses. 

This bill would state the intent of the Legislature to enact legislation that 
would address discrimination in health care. 
 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=20212
0220AB1407 

Support 

01-SEP-21 
Senate 

Amendments 
Concurred in. 
To Engrossing 
and Enrolling 

AB 2218 
(Santiago) 

 
(Formerly) 

 

Transgender 
Wellness and 
Equity Fund 

This law establishes the Transgender Wellness and Equity Fund to 
organizations serving people that identify as transgender, gender 
nonconforming, or intersex (TGI), to create or fund TGI-specific housing 
programs and partnerships with hospitals, health care clinics, and other 
medical providers to provide TGI-focused health care, as defined, and 
related education programs for health care providers. 

In Support 
of 

Transgender 
Wellness 

Fund 

26-SEP-20 
Approved by 
the Governor 

SB 17 
(Pan) 

Office of Racial 
Equity 

This bill would state the intent of the Legislature to enact legislation to 
require the department to address racism as a public health crisis. 
 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=20212
0220SB17 

Support 

26-AUG-21  
Set for First 

Hearing 
Canceled at the 

Request of 
Author. 

SB 56 
(Durazo) 

Medi-Cal: 
eligibility 

This bill would, subject to an appropriation by the Legislature, and 
effective July 1, 2022, extend eligibility for full-scope Medi-Cal benefits to 
individuals who are 65 years of age or older, and who are otherwise 
eligible for those benefits but for their immigration status. 
 
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120
220SB56 

Support 

23-June-21   
From 

Committee: Do 
Pass and Re-

refer to 
Committee on 
Appropriation  

 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB1400
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB1400
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB1407
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB1407
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB17
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB17
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB56
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB56


 
 

7 
 

BILL TITLE DESCRIPTION / COMMENTS RECOMMEND
ED POSITION STATUS 

SB 57 
(Wiener) 

Controlled 
Substances: 

Overdose 
Prevention 
Program 

This bill would, until January 1, 2027, authorize the City and County of 
San Francisco, the County of Los Angeles, and the City of Oakland to 
approve entities to operate overdose prevention programs for persons 
that satisfy specified requirements, including, among other things, 
providing a hygienic space supervised by trained staff where people who 
use drugs can consume preobtained drugs, providing sterile consumption 
supplies, and providing access or referrals to substance use disorder 
treatment. 
 
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120
220SB57 
 
The City of Los Angeles approved a pilot site for this program and 
requested a bill amendment to include the City of Los Angeles.  The 
sponsor held the bill for this legislative session and will continue the 
legislative process in January 2022 (Legislative Session 2022-23). 

Support 

05-July-21  
From 

Committee with 
Author's 

Amendments. 
Read Second 

Time and 
Amended. Re-

referred to 
Committee on 

Health 
  

SB 110 
(Weiner)  

Substance use 
disorder 
services: 

contingency 
management 

services 

This bill will expand substance use disorder services to include 
contingency management services, as specified, subject to utilization 
controls. 
 
 
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120
220SB110 

Support 

03-SEP-21 
Assembly 

Amendments 
Concurred in. 
Ordered to 

Engrossing and 
Enrolling 

SB 217  
(Dahle) 

Comprehensive 
sexual health 
education and 

human 
immuno-

deficiency virus 
(HIV) 

prevention 
education.   

This bill would require the governing board of a school district to adopt a 
policy at a publicly noticed meeting specifying how parents and guardians 
of pupils may inspect the written and audiovisual educational materials 
used in comprehensive sexual health education.  
 
 
 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=20212
0220SB217 

Opposed 
Unless 

Amended 

20-MAY-21 
May 20 

Hearing: Held in 
Committee and 

Under 
Submission   

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB57
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB57
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB110
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB110
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB217
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB217


 
 

8 
 

BILL TITLE DESCRIPTION / COMMENTS RECOMMEND
ED POSITION STATUS 

SB 221 
(Wiener) 

Health care 
coverage: 

timely access 
to care 

The bill would require both a health care service plan and a health insurer 
to ensure that appointments with nonphysician mental health and 
substance use disorder providers are subject to the timely access 
requirements. The bill would additionally require a health care service 
plan or a health insurer to ensure that an enrollee or insured that is 
undergoing a course of treatment for an ongoing mental health or 
substance use disorder condition is able to get a follow up appointment 
with a nonphysician mental health care or substance use disorder 
provider within 10 business days of the prior appointment. By imposing 
new requirements on health care service plans, the willful violation of 
which would be a crime, the bill would impose a state-mandated local 
program. 
 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=20212
0220SB221 

Support 
03-SEP-21 

Ordered Third 
Reading. 

SB 225  
(Wiener)  

Medical 
procedures: 
individuals 
born with 

variations in 
their physical 

sex 
characteristics  

This bill would prohibit a physician and surgeon from performing certain 
sex organ modification procedures on an individual born with variations in 
their physical sex characteristics who is under 12 years of age unless the 
procedure is a surgery required to address an immediate risk of physical 
harm, as specified.  
 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=20212
0220SB225 

Support 

05-APR-21 
April 5 Set for 
First Hearing 

Canceled at the 
Request of the 

Author.  

SB 258 
(Laird) Aging  

The bill would revise this definition “greatest social need” to include 
human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) status as a specified noneconomic 
factor.  
 
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120
220SB258 

Support 

23-JULY-21 
Chaptered by 
Secretary of 

State.  Chapter 
132, Statues of 

2021. 

SB 306 
(Pan)  

Sexually 
transmitted 

disease: 
testing  

This bill would require a health care provider to include “expedited 
partner therapy” on a prescription if the practitioner is unable to obtain 
the name of a patient’s sexual partner.  
 
 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=20212
0220SB306 

Support 
07-SEP-21 Read 
Third Time and 

Amended. 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB221
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB221
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB225
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB225
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB258
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB258
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB306
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB306


 
 

9 
 

BILL TITLE DESCRIPTION / COMMENTS RECOMMEND
ED POSITION STATUS 

SB 316 
(Eggman) 

Medi-Cal: 
federally 

qualified health 
centers and 
rural health 

clinics 

This bill would authorize reimbursement for a maximum of 2 visits taking 
place on the same day at a single location if after the first visit the patient 
suffers illness or injury requiring additional diagnosis or treatment, or if 
the patient has a medical visit and a mental health visit or a dental visit, 
as defined. 
 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=20212
0220SB316 
 

Support 

30-AUG-21 
Read Second 

Time. Ordered 
to Third 
Hearing. 

SB 357  
(Wiener)  

Crimes: 
loitering for the 

purpose of 
engaging in a 
prostitution 

offense  

Existing law prohibits soliciting or engaging in an act of prostitution. This 
bill would repeal those provisions related to loitering with the intent to 
commit prostitution and would make other conforming changes.  
 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=20212
0220SB357 

Support 
01-SEP-21 
Ordered to 

Third Reading.   

SB 464 
(Hurtado) 

California Food 
Assistance 
Program: 

eligibility and 
benefits 

This bill, commencing January 1, 2023, would instead make a noncitizen 
applicant eligible for the California Food Assistance Program if the 
noncitizen satisfies all eligibility criteria for participation in the CalFresh 
program except any requirements related to immigration status. 
 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=20212
0220SB464 

Support 

01-July-21 
From 

Committee: Do 
Pass and Re-

refer to 
Committee on 
Appropriation.  
Re-referred to 

Committee 
Appropriation  

 

SB 523  
(Leyva)  

Health care 
coverage: 

contraceptives 

This bill would make various changes to expand coverage of 
contraceptives by a health care service plan contract or health insurance 
policy issues, amended, renewed, or delivered on and after January 1, 
2022.  
 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=20212
0220SB523 

Support 

26-AUG-21 
August 26 
Hearing 

Postponed by 
Committee. 

 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB316
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB316
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB357
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB357
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB464
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB464
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB523
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB523


 
 

10 
 

BILL TITLE DESCRIPTION / COMMENTS RECOMMEND
ED POSITION STATUS 

SB 803 
(Beall) 

 
(Formerly) 

Mental health 
services: peer 

support 
specialist 

certification  

This law requires the department, by July 1, 2022, to establish statewide 
requirements for counties to use in developing certification programs for 
the certification of peer support specialists.  
 
 
 
 
 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=20192
0200SB803 

Requires 
funding to 
implement. 
The State 

has 
proposed 

$4.7 million 
for 22-23 

fiscal year. 
LAC is in 

support of 
the 

proposal. 

25-SEP-20 
Approved by 
the Governor 

FEDERAL 
BILLS     

H.R.5  
(Cicilline) Equality Act 

This bill prohibits discrimination based on sex, sexual orientation, and 
gender identity in areas including public accommodations and facilities, 
education, federal funding, employment, housing, credit, and the jury 
system.  
 
https://www.congress.gov/bill/117th-congress/house-bill/5 

Support 

17-March-2021 
Senate 

Committee on 
the Judiciary 
Hearings Held 

 

H.R. 1201 
(Lowenthal- 

Markey)  
 

International 
Human 5 

Rights Defense 
Act of 2021 

 
The bill is to establish in the Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights, and 
Labor of the Department of State a Special Envoy for the Human Rights of 
LGBTQI Peoples.  The Special Envoy shall serve as the principal advisor to 
the Secretary of State regarding human rights for LGBTQI people 
internationally. 
 
https://www.congress.gov/bill/117th-congress/house-bill/1201/text 

Support 

02-APRIL-21 
Referred to the 
Subcommittee 

on Africa, 
Global Health 
and Global 

Human Rights 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200SB803
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200SB803
https://www.congress.gov/bill/117th-congress/house-bill/5
https://www.congress.gov/bill/117th-congress/house-bill/1201/text


 
 

11 
 

BILL TITLE DESCRIPTION / COMMENTS RECOMMEND
ED POSITION STATUS 

H.R. 1280** 
(Bass) 

George Floyd 
Justice and 

Policing Act of 
2021 

This bill addresses a wide range of policies and issues regarding policing 
practices and law enforcement accountability. It increases accountability 
for law enforcement misconduct, restricts the use of certain policing 
practices, enhances transparency and data collection, and establishes best 
practices and training requirements.  

The Commission on HIV refer this bill back to the Committee because 
funding for the police is included in the bill.  This is at odds with the 
movement for Black Lives which opposes the bill.   

https://www.congress.gov/bill/117th-congress/house-
bill/1280?q=%7B%22search%22%3A%5B%22George+Floyd+Justice+an
d+Policing+Act+of+2021%22%5D%7D&s=2&r=1 

Referred 
Back to 

Committee 
in 

Discussion 

09-March-21 
Received in 
the Senate 

Federal 
Bill*** 

Proposal 
(Sponsored 
Movement 
for Black 

Lives) 

The BREATHE 
Act 

Divesting Federal Resources from Policing and Incarceration & Ending 
Federal Criminal-Legal System Harms 

Investing in New Approaches to Community Safety Utilizing Funding 
Incentives 

Allocating New Money to Build Healthy, Sustainable & Equitable 
Communities for All People 

Holding Officials Accountable & Enhancing Self-Determination of Black 
Communities 

file:///S:/2021%20Calendar%20Year%20-
%20Meetings/Committees/Public%20Policy/07%20-%20July/Packet/The-
BREATHE-Act-V.16_.pdf 

Referred 
Back to 

Committee 
in 

Discussion 

 

S.1  
(Merkley) 

For the People 
Act 

This bill addresses voter access, election integrity and security, campaign 
finance, and ethics for the three branches of government. 

https://www.congress.gov/bill/117th-congress/senate-
bill/1?q=%7B%22search%22%3A%5B%22S+1%22%5D%7D&s=1&r=1 

Support 

11-AUG-21 
Placed on 
Senate 

Legislative 
Calendar Under 
General Orders. 

https://www.congress.gov/bill/117th-congress/house-bill/1280?q=%7B%22search%22%3A%5B%22George+Floyd+Justice+and+Policing+Act+of+2021%22%5D%7D&s=2&r=1
https://www.congress.gov/bill/117th-congress/house-bill/1280?q=%7B%22search%22%3A%5B%22George+Floyd+Justice+and+Policing+Act+of+2021%22%5D%7D&s=2&r=1
https://www.congress.gov/bill/117th-congress/house-bill/1280?q=%7B%22search%22%3A%5B%22George+Floyd+Justice+and+Policing+Act+of+2021%22%5D%7D&s=2&r=1
file://labosfs/HIVData$/2021%20Calendar%20Year%20-%20Meetings/Committees/Public%20Policy/07%20-%20July/Packet/The-BREATHE-Act-V.16_.pdf
file://labosfs/HIVData$/2021%20Calendar%20Year%20-%20Meetings/Committees/Public%20Policy/07%20-%20July/Packet/The-BREATHE-Act-V.16_.pdf
file://labosfs/HIVData$/2021%20Calendar%20Year%20-%20Meetings/Committees/Public%20Policy/07%20-%20July/Packet/The-BREATHE-Act-V.16_.pdf
https://www.congress.gov/bill/117th-congress/senate-bill/1?q=%7B%22search%22%3A%5B%22S+1%22%5D%7D&s=1&r=1
https://www.congress.gov/bill/117th-congress/senate-bill/1?q=%7B%22search%22%3A%5B%22S+1%22%5D%7D&s=1&r=1


 
 

12 
 

BILL TITLE DESCRIPTION / COMMENTS RECOMMEND
ED POSITION STATUS 

S.4263/ 
H.R.4 

(Leahy) 

John Lewis 
Voting Rights 
Advancement 

Act 2021 

To amend the Voting Rights Act of 1965 to revise the criteria for 
determining which States and political subdivisions are subject to section 
4 of the Act, and for other purposes. 

https://www.congress.gov/bill/116th-congress/senate-
bill/4263?q=%7B%22search%22%3A%5B%22S+4263%22%5D%7D&s=
6&r=1 

Support 

24-AUG-20  
Motion to 

Reconsider Laid 
on the Table 
Agreed to 
Without 

Objection. 
Action by: 
House of 

Representatives 
 

* Includes bills not approved by the Commission on HIV on July 8 
** The bill was not approved by the Commission on HIV on July 8 
*** Commission on HIV recommended bill for the Legislative docket 
 
Footnotes: 
(1) Senate Rule 28.8 means if the Chair determines that any state costs of a bill are not significant, the measure will be sent directly to the Senate Floor for Second Reading 
without a hearing in the committee. 

 
 

 

https://www.congress.gov/bill/116th-congress/senate-bill/4263?q=%7B%22search%22%3A%5B%22S+4263%22%5D%7D&s=6&r=1
https://www.congress.gov/bill/116th-congress/senate-bill/4263?q=%7B%22search%22%3A%5B%22S+4263%22%5D%7D&s=6&r=1
https://www.congress.gov/bill/116th-congress/senate-bill/4263?q=%7B%22search%22%3A%5B%22S+4263%22%5D%7D&s=6&r=1


 

Page 1 of 4 
 

3530 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 1140 • Los Angeles, CA  90010 • TEL (213) 738-2816 • FAX (213) 637-4748 
HIVCOMM@LACHIV.ORG • https://hiv.lacounty.gov 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
PUBLIC POLICY COMMITTEE (PPC) 

2021 POLICY PRIORITIES 
(Approved 04/08/2021) 

 

HIV has been raging in communities across the world for almost 40 years and with advancements in 
biomedical interventions, research and vaccines, the time for the HIV cure is now.  With a renewed 
sense of optimism and urgency, the PPC remains steadfast in its commitment to universal health 
care, eradication of racism in all forms, and unfettered access to care and supportive services to 
ensure that all people living with HIV and communities most impacted by HIV and STDs, live, full, 
productive lives. 
 
The COVID-19 global pandemic has demonstrated that with political will, funding, and most 
important of all, urgency, rapid and safe vaccine development is possible.  The COVID-19 global 
pandemic is severely impacting the delivery of HIV prevention and care services.   The PPC is 
compelled to encourage and support innovative efforts to reduce bureaucracy, increase funding and 
enhance HIV prevention and care service.  This effort is to address negative impacts pre-COVID 
service levels, as well exceed the quantity and quality of HIV and prevention services.    
 
The PPC recommends the Commission on HIV endorse the prioritization of the following issues.  PPC 
will identify support legislation, local policies, procedures, and regulations that address Commission 
priorities in calendar year 2021: (Issues are in no particular order.) 
 
Racism 

a. Health equity, the elimination of barriers and addressing of social determinants of health 
such as: implicit bias; access to care; education; social stigma, (i.e. homophobia, 
transphobia and misogyny); housing; mental health; substance abuse; and income/wealth 
gaps.  

b. Reduce and eliminate the disproportionate impact of HIV/AIDS and STIs in the 
Black/African American community. To include the identification of and rooting 
out of systemic and systematic racism as it affects Black/African American 
communities.  
 

Housing 
a. Improve systems, strategies and proposals that expand affordable housing, as well as 

prioritize housing opportunities for people living with, affected by, or at risk of 
transmission of HIV/AIDS. 
 
 



 

S:\Committee - Public Policy\Policy Priorities\PPC Policy Priorities 2021\2021 Policy Priorities-COH Approved 04082021.docx 
 

              Page 2 of 4 

 
 
 

b. Improve systems, strategies, and proposals that prevent homelessness for people living 
with, affected by, or at risk of contracting HIV/AIDS. 

c. Promote Family housing and emergency financial assistance as a strategy to maintain 
housing. 

 
Mental Health  

a. Mental health services for people living with, affected by, or at risk of contracting 
HIV/AIDS. 

 
Sexual Health  

a. Access to prevention, care and treatment and bio-medical intervention (such as PrEP and 
PEP) services.  Promote the distribution of services to people at risk for acquiring HIV and 
people living with HIV/AIDS. 

b. Comprehensive HIV/STD counseling, testing, education, outreach, research, harm 
reduction services including syringe exchange, and social marketing programs. 

c. Maximize HIV prevention to reduce and eliminate syphilis and gonorrhea cases, among 
young MSM (YMSM), African American MSM, Latino MSM, transgender persons and 
women of color. 

d. Advance and enhance routine HIV testing and expanded linkage to care.   
e. Maintain and expand funding for access and availability of HIV, STD, and viral hepatitis 

services.    
f. Promote women centered prevention services to include domestic violence and family 

planning services for women living with and at high risk of acquiring HIV/AIDS. 
g. Preserve full funding and accessibility to Pre-Exposure Prophylaxis Assistance Program 

(PrEP-AP). 
 
Substance Abuse 

a. Advocate for substance abuse services to PLWHA. 
b. Advocate for services and programs associated with methamphetamine use and HIV 

transmission.  

 
Consumers  

a. Advocate and encourage the empowerment and engagement of People Living with 
HIV/AIDS (PLWHA) and those at risk of acquiring HIV. This includes young MSM (YMSM),  
African American MSM, Latino MSM, transgender persons and women of color, 
transgender and the aging.    

 

Aging 

a. Create and expand medical and supportive services for PLWHA ages 50 and over. 
 
 
 



 

S:\Committee - Public Policy\Policy Priorities\PPC Policy Priorities 2021\2021 Policy Priorities-COH Approved 04082021.docx 
 

              Page 3 of 4 

 
 
Women 

a. Create and expand medical and supportive services for women living with HIV/AIDS.  This 
includes services such as family housing, transportation, mental health, childcare and 
substance abuse. 

 
Transgender 

a. Create and expand medical and supportive services for transgender PLWHA.  
b. Promote and maintain funding for the Transgender Wellness Fund created by the passage 

of AB2218. 
 
General Health Care 

a. Provide access to and continuity of care for PLWHA focusing on communities at highest 
risk for the acquisition and transmission of HIV disease.   

b. Fund and expand eligibility for Medicaid, Medicare, and HIV/AIDS programs and health 
insurance coverage for individuals with pre-existing conditions. 

c. Increase and enhance compatibility and effectiveness between RWP, Medicaid, Medicare, 
and other health systems. This includes restructuring funding criteria to not disincentives 
contractors from referring clients to other contractors. 

d. Expand access to and reduction of barriers (including costs) for HIV/AIDS, STD, and viral 
hepatitis prevention and treatment medications. 

e. Preserve full funding and accessibility to the AIDS Drug Assistance Program (ADAP), Office 
of AIDS Health Insurance Premium Payment (OA-HIPP) Assistance, Employer Based Health 
Insurance Premium Payment (EB-HIPP), and Medigap. 

 
Service Delivery 

a. Enhance the accountability of healthcare service deliverables.  This would include a 
coordinated effort between federal, state, and local governments.   

b. Incorporate COVID strategies to reduce administrative barriers, increase access to health 
services and encourage the development of an HIV vaccine mirroring the COVID 19 
vaccine process. 
 

Criminalization  
a. Eliminate discrimination against or the criminalization of people living with or at risk of 

HIV/AIDS. 
 

Data 
a. Use data, without risking personal privacy and health, with the intention of improving 

health outcomes and eliminating health disparities among PLWHA.  
b. Promote distribution of resources in accordance with the HIV burden within Los Angeles 

County. 
 
 

 



 

S:\Committee - Public Policy\Policy Priorities\PPC Policy Priorities 2021\2021 Policy Priorities-COH Approved 04082021.docx 
 

              Page 4 of 4 

 
 
 
The Public Policy Committee acts in accordance with the role of the Commission on HIV, as dictated by Los 
Angeles County Code 3.29.090. Consistent with Commission Bylaws Article VI, Section 2, no Ryan White 
resources are used to support Public Policy Committee activities. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FESIA A DAVENPORT 
Chief Executive Officer 

To: 

From: 

County of Los Angeles 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICE 

Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration 
500 West Temple Street, Room 713, Los Angeles, California 90012 

(213) 974-1101
http://ceo.lacounty.gov 

September 3, 2021 

Supervisor Hilda L. Solis, Chair 
Supervisor Holly J. Mitchell 
Supervisor Sheila Kuehl 
Supervisor Janice Hahn 
Supervisor Kath Bar er 

Fesia A. Davenport 
Chief Executive Offi 

Board of Supervisors 
HILDA L. SOLIS 
First District 

HOLLY J. MITCHELL 
Second District 

SHEILA KUEHL 
Third District 

JANICE HAHN 
Fourth District 

KATHRYN BARGER 
Fifth District 

SACRAMENTO UPDATE - ENACTMENT OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 STATE BUDGET 

ACT AND FINAL OUTCOME OF ADVOCACY ITEMS 

OVERVIEW 

This memorandum provides an update on the Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-22 State Budget Act, 
including the "Main Budget Bill" (AB 128) which Governor Gavin Newsom signed on June 28, 
2021. The Governor also signed three "Budget Bill Jr.'s", AB 161 on July 9, 2021, SB 129 on 
July 12, 2021, and AB 164 on July 16, 2021, which amend the Main Budget Bill and make statutory 
changes to implement the State budget. These four measures, along with several budget trailer 
bills, enact most of the FY 2021-22 State Budget Act (2021 State Budget Act). The Legislature 
is expected to work on spending packages related to climate, wildfire, energy, and transportation, 
as well as introduce additional budget trailer bills to address other policy issues, in the remaining 
weeks of the first year of the 2021-22 legislative session. 

As of the signing of the 2021 State Budget Act, the State was projecting a $75.7 billion surplus, 
which combined with over $25 billion in federal relief, will fund the State budget's economic 
recovery package (California Comeback Plan) that includes the following items of importance to 
the County: 

• $12 billion over two years to tackle the homelessness crisis;
• $12 billion to expand the Golden State Stimulus program;
• $6 billion to expand broadband access coverage;
• $5.2 billion for back-rent and future rent payments;
• $5.1 billion for drought support, water supply, and natural habitat restoration projects;
• $1.5 billion in additional funding, for a total of $4 million in direct grants to small businesses;
• $3.9 billion to accomplish the State's zero-emissions vehicle goals;
• $3 billion into building more affordable housing for low-income families;
• $2 billion for wildfire and emergency preparedness;
• $2 billion for past-due water and utility bills and tenant legal assistance; and
• $1.1 billion to clean up streets by partnering with local governments.

"To Enrich Lives Through Effective And Caring Service" 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB128
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB164
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB161
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB129


Each Supervisor
September 3, 2021
Page 2

Major County-Advocacy Items Included in the 2021 State Budget Act

The 2021 State Budget Act includes many items the County advocated for including:

Broadband — $6 billion over three years for broadband infrastructure and improved access to
broadband services;

Homelessness — $4.8 billion over two years, including $1 billion for flexible local aid in both
FY 2021-22 and FY 2022-23, with up to 80 percent of the funding each year allocated to cities,
counties, and continuums of care;

Affordable Housing — $500 million to create a Foreclosure Intervention Housing Preservation
program;

Behavioral Health Continuum Infrastructure — $2.2 billion for competitive grants to qualified
entities to construct, acquire, and rehabilitate teal estate assets or to invest in needed mobile
crisis infrastructure to expand the community continuum of behavioral health treatment resources;

Public Health Infrastructure — $300 million annually beginning in FY 2022-23 for Local Health
Jurisdictions to build a 21st century public health system;

Recall Election — $243.6 million in SGF for counties for the recall election;

CaIWORKs Grant Increases — $142.9 million to provide a 5.3 percent increase to CaIWORKs
Maximum Aid Payment levels effective October 1, 2021;

Exide Facility Cleanup — $332.4 million over three years to cleanup an additional 3,000
residential properties, $132 million to complete closure activities and to conduct additional needed
cleanup at the former Exide facility, and $16.5 million in SGF to support the State’s Exide cost
recovery efforts;

Rapid Response Fund — $105.2 million in one-time SGF to provide support for migrant family
arrivals at the Southern California border;

High Road Training Program (HRTP) —$75 million for the expansion of the HRTP to be available
until June 30, 2026; and

Homelessness Hiring Tax Credit —$30 million to implement the tax cred it for taxable years 2022
through 2026.

The 2021 State Budget Act does not include two budget proposals the County successfully
opposed:

Discontinuance of the Lanterman-Petris-Short (LPS) Beds Patients Contracts with
Counties — Rejects the proposal to discontinue the State hospitals as a treatment option for LPS
patients. Instead, requires the California Department of State Hospitals to convene an
Incompetent to Stand Trial (1ST) Solutions Workgroup to identify short-term, medium-term, and
long-term solutions for alternatives to placement of defendants determined to be 1ST in a State
Hospital.

N/Sacramento Updates 2021 /sacto_090321 _Legislatures Budget Analysis



Each Supervisor
September 3, 2021
Page 3

The California Secretary of Health and Human Services would be authorized to discontinue
admission of patients civilly committed under the LPS Act to a State Hospital and make other
changes to reduce the existing LPS population if the Secretary determines that either: the 1ST
Solutions Workgroup recommendations cannot be completed or the recommendations are not
able to be implemented in a timely manner.

CaIWORKs Single Allocation — $68.3 million in FY 2021 -22 and $40.8 million in FY 2022-23
and ongoing, to reject and restore the Governor’s May Revision proposal to reduce funding for
the eligibility component of the Single Allocation.

The 2021 State Budget Act contains the following County-opposed proposal:

Non-Restorable Felony Incompetent to Stand Trial (1ST) Trailer Bill Language — Requires
felony 1ST patients deemed not restorable to mental competency to be returned to the county
within 10 days and remain in the county, otherwise the State will charge the county a daily bed
rate for continued treatment. This Office will continue to monitor this issue and seek opportunities
for fiscal relief.

The attachment provides a detailed summary of the final outcome of the 2021 State Budget Act
items the County took an advocacy position on, as previously reported and consistent with
existing policy. Updates on specific County funding allocations will be provided as additional
funding allocation information becomes available.

Should you have any questions concerning this matter, please contact me or Samara Ashley,
Assistant Chief Executive Officer, at (213) 974-1464 or sashleyceo.Iacountyqov.

FAD:JMN :SA:OR
JAC:LAIR:dr

Attachment

c: All Department Heads

N/Sacramento Updates 2021 /sacto_090321 _Legislatures Budget Analysis



Attachment

OUTCOMES OF THE FY 2021-22 COUNTY-ADVOCACY STATE BUDGET ITEMS

HOME LESSN ESS

Homelessness — $7.3 billion for homelessness in Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-22, plus an additional
$4.47 billion in FY 2022-23 for a total homelessness package of $12 billion. This includes
$1 .45 billion ($1.2 billion in federal American Rescue Plan Act [ARPAJ funds and $250 million in
State General Funds [SGFJ)for Project Homekey in FY 2021-22 and $ 1.3 billion ($1 billion federal
ARPA funds and $300 million in SGF) for Project Homekey in FY 2022-23.

County-supported Bring California Home (BCH) Act — $12 billion for homelessness, including
$2 billion in one-time SGF to assist counties, Continuums of Care, and large cities address
homelessness in their communities. $1 billion is provided in FY 2021-22 and $1 billion in
FY 2022-23, with future years subject to appropriation. These funds, which will run through the
Homeless Housing, Assistance, and Prevention program (HHAP), build upon over $1 .5 billion in
flexible aid provided to local jurisdictions over the past three years.

HOUSING

Emergency Rental Assistance — The County supported $1.4 billion federal Emergency Rental
Assistance allocation, via SB 91 (Chapter 2, Statutes of 2021), to assist low-income tenants to
stay housed and help stabilize small property owners.

Eviction Moratorium Extension — Includes the County-supported extension of the State’s
eviction moratorium that was enacted on January 29, 2021, via SB 91 (Chapter 2, Statutes of
2021).

Foreclosure Intervention Housing Preservation Program — $500 million, available for
encumbrance or expenditure and for liquidation until June 30, 2027, for the creation of a
Foreclosure Intervention Housing Preservation program.

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Behavioral Health Continuum Infrastructure Program — $755.7 million ($445.7 million in SGF
and $310 million in federal Coronavirus Fiscal Recovery Fund) in FY 2021-22, $1.4 billion
($1.2 billion SGF and $220 million Coronavirus Fiscal Recover Fund) in FY 2022-23 and
$2.1 million SGF in FY 2023-24 for competitive grants to qualified entities to construct, acquire,
and rehabilitate real estate assets or to invest in needed mobile crisis infrastructure.

Discontinuance of the Lanterman-Petris-Short (LPS) Bed Patients Contracts with Counties
— The Legislature rejected the County-opposed proposal to discontinue State hospitals as a
treatment option for LPS patients over three years, provide treatment for these patients at the
county level only, and utilize State hospital beds for Incompetent to Stand Trail (1ST) treatment.

However, AB 133 (Chapter 143, Statutes of 2021)requires that the California Health and Human
Services Agency (CHHS) and the California Department of State Hospitals (DSH), convene an
1ST Solutions Workgroup to identify solutions to advance alternatives to placing defendants at a
DSH facility who are deemed 1ST. The workgroup must submit recommendations to CHHS and
the California Department of Finance on or before November 30, 2021, for short-term,
medium-term, and long-term solutions that can be accomplished on or before specified dates.

1



Attachment

If the recommendations cannot be completed by December 31 2024, or if other described
conditions are not met, DSH would be authorized to discontinue admissions for specified patients,
impose patient reduction targets, and charge 150 percent of the daily bed rate to counties for
specified patients that are above the patient reduction targets.

Non-Restorable Felony 1ST Patients — AB 133 (Chapter 143, Statutes of 2021), contains the
County-opposed trailer bill language (TBL) to require felony 1ST patients deemed not restorable
to mental competency to be returned to the county within 10 days and remain in the county,
otherwise DSH will charge the county a daily bed rate.

Expansion of HOME Program — The County-supported $100 million in one-time SGF for a
five-year expansion of the program, was not included in the 2021 State Budget Act.

Medi-Cal Peer Support — The County-supported $4.7 million in State funding to begin the Peer
Support Specialist Certification program, was not included in the 2021 State Budget Act.

HEALTH

Expansion of Medi-Cal Coverage and Benefits — Includes the following funding:

• $16.3 million ($6.2 million in SGF), increasing to $201 million ($76 million in SGF) by
FY 2026-27, to allow community health workers to provide benefits and services to Medi-Cal
beneficiaries, effective January 1, 2022;

• $90.5 million ($45.3 million in SGF) in FY 2021-22 and $362.2 million ($181.1 million SGF) in
FY 2022-23, growing to approximately $400 million ($200 million SGF) until April 1, 2021, to
extend Medi-Cal eligibility from 60 days to 12 months for postpartum individuals, effective
April 1, 2022, for up to five years; and

• $403,000 ($152,000 in SGF) in FY 2021-22 and approximately $4.4 million ($1.7 million in
SGF) annually at full implementation to add doula services as a covered benefit in the Medi
Cal program effective January 1, 2022.

LAC + USC Restorative Care Village and General Hospital — The County-supported
$500 million over multiple fiscal years for the reuse initiatives at the LAC + USC Medical Center
Campus was not included in the 2021 State Budget Act. However, as previously indicated in this
report, AB 133 (Chapter 143, Statutes of 2021) provides County-supported funding of
$755.7 million to award competitive grants to qualified entities to construct, acquire, and
rehabilitate real estate assets or to invest in needed mobile crisis infrastructure.

PUBLIC HEALTH

Public Health Infrastructure — $300 million in ongoing SGF beginning in FY 2022-23 to address
the State’s public health infrastructure, health equity, and racial justice.

Public Health Care Systems — County-supported $300 million in one-time SGF to help public
health care systems cover costs associated with critical care delivery needs provided during and
beyond the pandemic.

2



Attachment

California Health Equity Program (AB 1038 - Gipson) — A minimum of $300 million ongoing,
beginning in FY 2022-23 to address the State’s public health infrastructure, health equity, and
racial justice needs.

License and Certification — Continues the County-supported $19.1 million proposal for the third
year of the County’s contract with the State to conduct licensing, certification, and inspection of
approximately 3,200 health care facilities in the County, and $4.5 million to support increased
medical breach and caregiver investigation workload.

Local Health Department Workforce Assessment — $3 million to support a public health
infrastructure study.

JUSTICE

Coroner Training and Equipment — County-supported $1 million for rapid DNA training
technology and mass fatality training.

Division of Juvenile Justice (DJJ) — Dispositional Track TBL — SB 92 (Chapter 18, Statutes
of 2021), includes County-supported provisions clarifying which county agencies are eligible for
SB 823 (Chapter 337, Statutes of 2020) programmatic funding that accompanies the shift of
responsibility and directs funding to county board of supervisors to determine its use.

Human Trafficking Victims Assistance — County-supported $10 million each year for three
years, starting in FY 2021-22, for a total of $30 million in one-time SGF to expand human
trafficking survivor support programs including, but not limited to, advocates, victim assistance to
help human trafficking victims recover from the trauma they experienced and assist with
reintegration into society, and programs to improve outcomes for human trafficking victims.

Repurposing of the Challenger Facility — The County-supported $25 million during FY 2020-
21 and FY 2021-22 was not included in the 2021 State Budget Act. However, as previously
indicated in this report, AB 133 (Chapter 143, Statutes of 2021) provides County-supported
funding of $755.7 million to award competitive grants to qualified entities to construct, acquire,
and rehabilitate real estate assets or to invest in needed mobile crisis infrastructure.

INFRASTRUCTURE

Broadband Infrastructure — $6 billion over a three-year period for broadband infrastructure and
improved access to broadband services throughout the State, including $3.25 billion for middle-
mile infrastructure in unserved communities and $2 billion for last mile, $1 million of which will be
allocated to urban counties.

ECONOMIC RECOVERY

Golden State Stimulus — $2.4 billion proposal to provide a $600 tax refund to qualified taxpayers
was enacted on February 23, 2021, via SB 88 (Chapter 8, Statutes of 2021). Technical
amendments (clean-up language) was enacted on March 17, 2021, via AB 88 (Chapter 12,
Statutes of 2021).

Small Business and Cultural Institutions Grant Program — An additional $1.5 billion to the
$2.5 billion investment the State made in the Small Business COVID-1 9 Relief Grant program for
a total of $4 billion to help businesses stay open and keep Californians employed.

3



Attachment

California Dream Fund — County-supported $35 million in one-time SGF for micro-grants of up
to $10,000 to seed entrepreneurship and small business creation in underserved small business
groups that are facing opportunity gaps, including immigrant Californians and Californians who
speak limited English.

SOCIAL SERVICES

CaIWORKs

• Employment Services Intensive Case Management and Work Participation Rate
Indemnification — $37.5 million in FY 2021-22, $75 million in FY 2022-23, and, subject to
appropriation in the 2023 State Budget Act, $128.5 million in FY 2023-24, and $257 million in
FY 2024-25 and on-going to incrementally increase CaIWORKs intensive case management
services over a four-year period.

• Applicant Earned Income Disregard (EDI) — $1 million in FY 2021-22, $94.8 million in
FY 2022-23, increasing to $135.1 million in 2023-24 and on-going to raise the applicant
earned income disregard from $90 to $450.

• Federal Pandemic Emergency Assistance — Requires the California Department of Social
Services (CDSS) to make a flat rate one-time payment to each CaIWORKs assistance unit
that is an active assistance unit on the date of eligibility. It also requires the amount of the
one-time payment to be based on the funds available and the most recent caseload data, and
that CDSS submit a written report to the Legislature, by November 1, 2021, that includes
information relating to the one-time payments.

• Housing Support Program (HSP) — $190 million in SGF in both FY 2021-22 and
FY 2022-23, available until June 30, 2024, to combat homelessness, including providing
housing support to CaIWORKs recipients at risk of becoming homeless prior to the start of an
eviction and for whom housing instability would be a barrier to self-sufficiency or child
well-being.

• Grant Increases — County-supported $142.9 million in FY 2021-22 to provide a 5.3 percent
increase to the CaIWORKs Maximum Aid Payment effective October 1, 2021.

• Single Allocation — County-supported $68.3 million in FY 2021-22 and $40.8 million in
FY 2022-23 and ongoing to restore the proposed program cut and maintain the CaIWORKs
eligibility funding in the Single Allocation at the FY 2020-2 1 level.

• Assistance for Family Reunification — County-supported $8.7 million in SGF in
FY 2021-22 and ongoing for counites to continue providing CaIWORKs services for no more
than 180 days when a child has been removed from the home and is receiving out-of-home
care. CDSS must issue comprehensive policy, fiscal, and claiming instructions to counties
before July 1, 2022, and notify the Legislature when the Statewide Automated Welfare System
has automated this change.

• Time-On-Aid Exemption and Time Clock — Requires CDSS to automate a one-time process
that allows former CaIWORKs recipients excluded from an existing assistance unit due to the
formerly applicable 48-month time limit, but who have fewer than 60 countable months of time
on aid in CaIWORKs, to be added to the existing assistance unit if all information needed to

4



Attachment

complete an eligibility determination is in the case record and all other eligibility requirements
have been met.

• Overpayments — Includes the County-supported authorization for counties to reduce the
collection of all non-fraudulent related CaIWORKs overpayments that are considered
administrative errors from 10 percent to five percent of a family’s aid payments beginning
April 2020 through the end of the pandemic or June 30, 2022, whichever is sooner, and to
reduce the CaIWORKs overpayment collection timeframe from five to two years.

In-Home Supportive Services (IHSS)

• Seven Percent Fiscal Penalty — Authorizes a County-opposed one-time 1991 Realignment
revenuewithholding equivalentto seven percentofa county’s FY2021-21 IHSS Maintenance
of Effort beginning October 1, 2021, for counties that after, July 1, 2021, do not reach a
collective bargaining agreement for their IHSS providers after several mediation and
facifinding steps.

• County Administration — County-supported caseload increase of approximately $17 million.

CaiFresh

• State County Administration — $33.6 million in SGF for CaiFresh County administration
simplifications and $16 million in one-time federal funds for county administration related to
the CalFresh temporary eligibility expansion for college students. Also includes $5.6 million
in SGF in FY 2021-22, $11 million in SGF in FY 2022-23, and $10 million in SGF in
FY 2023-24 and on-going to protect the expansion of CalFresh to the Supplemental Security
Income caseload for cases that are losing benefits when they exit the Transitional Nutrition
Benefit Program.

• Simplified CalFresh Application for Elderly and Disabled (SB 107)— $33.6 million in SGF
for CalFresh County administration simplifications.

Medi-Cal County Administration — $73 million ($36.5 million SGF) in one-time funding in
FY2021-22 and FY 2022-23 to resume annual Medi-Cal redeterminations upon conclusion of the
federal public health emergency and continuous coverage requirement.

CHILD WELFARE

Family First Prevention Services Act (FFPSA) — $222.5 million in SGF in FY 2021-22 to be
expended over three years to assist counties with new prevention services implementation efforts
allowable under the new federal FFPSA. These one-time resources will assist counties to build
locally driven prevention services and supports for children, youth, and families at risk of entering
foster care.

Child Welfare Services Resource Family Approval (RFA) Process — $85 million in one-time
SGF in FY 2021-22 to reflect actual expenditures and true-up costs for counties to conduct the
RFA process, an integral part of the Continuum of Care Reform effort.

Child Welfare Services — $85 million in one-time SGF to support child welfare service activities.

5



Attachment

Short-Term Residential Therapeutic Program COVID-19 Support — County-supported
$42 million in one-time SGF for Foster Care Short-Term Residential Therapeutic Program
COVID-19 Relief.

Emergency Caregiver Funding — $24.5 million in SGF and federal Temporary Assistance for
Needy Families block grant funds in FY 2021-22 to provide caregivers with up to four months of
emergency assistance payments pending resource family approval and up to twelve months for
cases that meet good cause criteria.

Emergency Child Care Bridge Program for Foster Children — $10 million for program
augmentation.

Child Welfare Services Training System — County-supported $7 million in SGF in both
FY 2021-22 and FY 2022-23 for the training system.

CHILD SUPPORT

Increased Child Support Funding — Restores the funding that was reduced in 2020 including
$19.1 million in ongoing SGF to support Local Child Support Agency staffing and services.

EARLY CARE AND EDUCATION

Early Care and Education Investments — The 2021 State Budget Act makes several
investments including, but not limited to:

• $579 million for a pandemic relief package of federal funds to subsidized childcare, State
preschool, and all licensed early care and education facilities;

• $250 million for facility development with a focus on communities with significant gaps through
September 30, 2024;

• $40 million in one-time funds to expand and strengthen training opportunities for family child
care providers and address the workforce needs of California, as well as career, knowledge,
and skill aspirations of all family childcare providers; and

• $4.8 million for the design of a childcare data system.

GENERAL GOVERNMENT

California Creative Corps Pilot Program — $60 million one-time SGF, to be spent over three
years to implement the California Creative Corps Pilot program. This program will support artists
and local arts organizations with a focus on art campaigns including: public health awareness
messages to stop the spread of COVID-19; public awareness related to water and energy
conservation, and emergency preparedness, relief, and recovery; civic engagement, including
election participation; and social justice and community engagement. The California Arts Council
will provide grants in every county and prioritize grants in zip codes in the lowest quartile of the
California Healthy Places Index.

Creative Youth Development Grant Program — County-supported $40 million one-time SGF in
FY 2021-22, to be spent over three years, to support the California Arts Council’s existing Creative

6



Attachment

Youth Development programs and will target programs in underserved communities. The Arts
Council will use partnerships between community-based organizations, educators, and local
artists to expand participation in these programs statewide.

Public Libraries — Includes the following County-supported funding: $5 million in one-time SGF
for local library jurisdictions with the lowest per capita spending to implement early-learning and
after-school programs to provide services for school-aged children; $3 million in one-time SGF
for local library jurisdictions to purchase bookmobiles and community outreach vehicles to expand
access to books and other library materials; and $800,000 in ongoing SGF to support the Lunch
at the Library program.

Racial Equity and Inclusion — $588,000 in ongoing SGF to establish and support the State’s
first ever Chief Equity Officer within the California Government Operations Agency (GovOps),
which will build upon and implement the work of the California Leads Taskforce. The Chief Equity
Officer will develop a uniform framework for creating equitable policies, practices, and metrics for
hiring and procurement.

Also includes $200,000 in SGF in FY 2021-22 through FY 2025-26 to establish the Racial Equity
Advisory Council, which will advise GovOps in developing statewide policies that promote
diversity, equity, and inclusion in the State workforce. The Administration will continue to work
with the Legislature to finalize the creation of the Council.

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT

High Roads Training Program (HRTP)—$100 million one-time SGFforthe California Workforce
Development Board to fund additional HRTP in current and new sectors, such as property
services, agriculture, forestry, and manufacturing.

Homeless Hiring Tax Credit — Creates the County-supported Homeless Hiring Tax credit for
eligible employers that hire employees including those experiencing homelessness.

UCLA Labor Center — $15 million on a one-time basis to support the UCLA Labor Center facility.
The amount allocated will remain available for encumbrance or expenditure until June 30, 2024.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Exide Cleanup — $322.4 million in SGF over three years to clean an additional approximately
3,000 residential properties with lead contamination from the former Exide battery facility in
Vernon. Also includes $132 million to complete closure activities and to conduct additional
needed cleanup at the former Exide facility, and $16.5 million in SGF to support the State’s Exide
cost recovery efforts.

California Geologic Energy Management Division (CaIGEM) — A County-supported baseline
increase of $4.8 million from the Oil, Gas, and Geothermal Administrative Fund, phased over
three fiscal years to strengthen enforcement at CaIGEM.

Department of Toxic Substance Control (DTSC) Reform — Through SB 158 (Chapter 73,
Statutes of 2021) establishes the Board of Environmental Safety within the DTSC, restructures
and increases charges that support the Hazardous Waste Management Account, restructures
and increases the tax that supports the Toxic Substances Control Account, and provides funding
to support brownfield cleanups and investigations across the state and Exide residential cleanup.

7



Attachment

CLIMATE CHANGE

Zero-Emission Vehicles (ZEV) and ZEV Infrastructure — $2.7 billion in FY 2021-22 and
$3.9 billion ($2.98 billion in SGF, $565 million in Cap and Trade, and $394 million in other funds)
over three years for ZEV and infrastructure investments. These investments include: $2 billion
for heavy-duty zero emission vehicles; $1 .2 billion to invest in consumer adoption of ZEVs and in
clean mobility for disadvantaged and low-income communities; $407 million to demonstrate and
purchase or lease state-of-the-art, clean bus and rail equipment and infrastructure that eliminate
fossil fuel emissions and increase intercity rail and intercity bus frequencies; and $250 million for
manufacturing and supply chain grants to expand California’s ZEV manufacturing footprint.

Recycling and Waste Reduction Proposal & Senate Cap-and-Trade Spending Plan —

County-supported $130 million one-time SGF over two years that will spur new circular economy
growth. The Administration will work with the Legislature over the summer to determine allocation
of these funds.

Community Power Resiliency Grants to Mitigate Efforts of Public Safety Power Shutoffs
(PSPS) Events —$1.5 million from the 2020 Community Power Resiliency appropriation, until
June 30, 2023, to support the continued administration of the local assistance grants and the
development of the requited report. The County supports the proposal to provide $100 million to
restore the Community Resiliency Grant program.

Fire Crew Funding for Contract Counties — The County-supported $14.3 million State budget
request sponsored by the Association of Contract Counties to fund six crews for Contract
Counties to an existing State Budget Change proposal is not included in the 2021 State Budget
Act. However, this proposal is pending as the Legislature is continuing discussions on wildfire
prevention and response funding.

Elimination of Transformative Climate Communities — The Transformative Climate
Communities, if reinstated, would be funded by the State Budget’s Cap-and-Trade Spending Plan,
which is to be finalized later this summer.

IMMIGRATION

Immigration Services — $105.2 million in one-time SGF for the Rapid Response Fund to provide
support for migrant family arrivals at the Southern California border; $15.3 million to provide legal
services to undocumented unaccompanied minors; and $4.7 million for mental health
assessments in support of undocumented minors arriving unaccompanied to the United States,
and for navigation services to connect with existing services that support reunification and post-
placement needs of undocumented minors arriving unaccompanied.

Also includes $25.0 million one-time SGF in FY 2021-22 to fund filing fees for Deferred Action for
Childhood Arrivals (DACA) and Naturalization Filing Fees.

VETERAN AFFAIRS

County Veteran Services Offices (CVSO) — Includes the County-supported proposal for an
increase of $5.4 mil ongoing basis.

8



CalAIM Explained: A Five-Year Plan to Transform Medi-Cal

What Is CalAIM?
California Advancing and Innovating Medi-Cal — known 
as CalAIM — is a far-reaching, multiyear plan to trans-
form California’s Medi-Cal program and to make it 
integrate more seamlessly with other social services. Led 
by California’s Department of Health Care Services, the 
goal of CalAIM is to improve outcomes for the millions of 
Californians covered by Medi-Cal, especially those with 
the most complex needs.

What Are the Goals of CalAIM?
	A Make services more standardized and more equitable 
across the state, bringing consistency to the current 
patchwork of programs that vary by county.

	A Ensure that the Californians who need the most help 
and support actually get it — by emphasizing proac-
tive outreach to bring people with complex needs 
into care and offering a “no wrong door” approach to 
people seeking help.

	A Enable Medi-Cal managed care plans to couple clini-
cal care with a range of new nonmedical services. 
Those services, which will be reimbursed by Medi-Cal, 
include housing supports, medical respite, personal 
care, medically tailored meals, and peer supports.

	A Require plans and incentivize public health systems to 
be more responsive, equitable, and outcome-focused 
by:

	$ Focusing on population health, which involves 
matching the right patients to the right services at 
the right time — in a way that increases equity.

	$ Implementing payment reform to lay the foun-
dation for paying physical and behavioral health 
providers based on outcomes rather than services.

	$ Ensuring greater accountability for Medi-Cal 
managed care plans by requiring them to coordi-
nate access to services provided by counties and 
community-based organizations.

Who Will CalAIM Help?
While CalAIM’s broad reach is intended to help all Medi-
Cal enrollees, many of the reforms focus on improving 
care for people with the most complex needs. This group 
includes:

	$ People experiencing homelessness

	$ Frequently hospitalized patients, including those 
who regularly use emergency rooms as a source of 
care

	$ People with significant behavioral health needs, 
including people with serious mental illness, serious 
emotional disturbance, or substance use disorder

	$ People with complex physical or behavioral health 
needs who are transitioning from jail or prison

	$ Seniors and people living with disabilities, includ-
ing those at risk for institutionalization and eligible 
for long-term care, as well as those living in nursing 
facilities and wishing to transition to the community

	$ Children with complex medical conditions, such as 
cancer, epilepsy, or congenital heart disease

	$ Children and youth in foster care

Timeline for Implementation
The first reforms will start to be implemented in January 
2022, and additional reforms will be phased in through 
2027. Many of the activities that CalAIM will cover require 
a waiver approval from the Centers for Medicare & 
Medicaid Services, and that is expected to be finalized in 
December 2021. In the meantime, work is actively under-
way to ensure a smooth transition from existing programs 
to CalAIM once those first reforms are approved.

Fact Sheet

About the California Health Care Foundation 
For more information, visit us at www.chcf.org/about. 

JULY 2021

http://www.chcf.org
https://www.chcf.org/about/


www.chcf.orgCalifornia Health Care Foundation

 
Alma lives alone and prioritizes healthy eating 
and daily exercise to manage her diabetes and 
heart failure. One day she has a paralyzing 
stroke and needs intensive rehabilitation, as well 
as help with cooking, bathing, and managing her 

medications. She is discharged to a nursing home, but wants to 
return home.

In the current Medi-Cal program, her options for returning home 
are limited. Her recovery is slow, and she stays in the nursing home 
for several months. The social security income she relies on goes 
to paying the nursing home, resulting in the loss of her apartment. 
Ultimately, with daily physical and occupational therapy, she gets 
to the point where she could live independently with the right 
supports, but she does not have the resources to find and furnish 
an apartment that can accommodate her needs or locate and 
hire a caregiver. As a result, the nursing home becomes her home 
even though she doesn’t need that level of care. Alma develops 
a bedsore and is in and out of the hospital because the wound 
keeps getting reinfected. Her Medi-Cal managed care plan is con-
cerned about her frequent hospitalizations, but the plan can’t do 
much about it because her medical care is covered by Medicare 
fee-for-service. The staff in the nursing home are worried about 
her, but the administrator can’t ignore that every time she is dis-
charged from the hospital, the care she gets in the nursing home 
is reimbursed by Medicare at three to four times the payment they 
get from Medi-Cal for the first 60 days. A year after her stroke, 
she’s still living in the nursing home and has spent more than three 
weeks in the hospital in the last six months.

If CalAIM is successful, Alma will receive a visit from a care man-
ager shortly after her stroke. The care manager will elicit her goals, 
and working across the Medicare and Medi-Cal benefits (offered 
by a managed care plan responsible for both), help her get physi-
cal and occupational therapy at home, make modifications to her 
apartment to meet her physical needs, and provide personal care 
services through an agency until she can find a caregiver through 
the In-Home Supportive Services (IHSS) program. The care man-
ager will support her changing needs, organizing transportation to 
appointments, arranging back-up care when her usual IHSS worker 
is unavailable, and working with her primary care physician to help 
simplify her medication regimen. A year after her stroke, she will 
be living at home with the care she needs to keep her out of a 
nursing home or hospital.

 
Brian lived in his car before the pandemic, 
parking it in the lot of the restaurant where he 
washed dishes. After losing his job and his 
parents during the COVID-19 pandemic, he 
sinks into a deep depression. To manage his 

sadness, he drinks heavily. One night his car is towed, and unable 
to pay to retrieve it, he starts living on the streets. As his alcohol 
use worsens, he sometimes loses consciousness in public places.

In the current Medi-Cal program, it is unlikely that Brian will get 
the treatment he needs for his depression and substance use. 
When picked up for being publicly intoxicated, he is taken first to 
the emergency department and then to the county jail, where he 
can access treatment only if he is willing to be formally diagnosed 

with depression and alcohol use disorder. He resists those diag-
noses and continues to suffer, cycling through short-term jail stays 
or trips to the emergency room. His managed care plan notices 
his frequent visits to the emergency department for intoxication 
but only learns about them when they get a claim from the facility, 
limiting their ability to act. In addition, the managed care plan 
finds that he had been disenrolled when his Medi-Cal is suspend-
ed because of a jail stay. His criminal justice involvement makes 
employment and housing further out of reach, driving him deeper 
into a pattern of depression, alcohol use, and trips to the emer-
gency room and jail.

If CalAIM is successful, Brian will be taken to a sobering center 
instead of jail or the emergency room. From the center, he will be 
connected to a care manager to help him find short-term hous-
ing. With a safe place to stay and support from the care manager, 
contracted through his Medi-Cal managed care plan, he’s willing 
to engage in treatment, which includes peer support. When he ex-
periences a relapse, and winds up in the emergency department, 
his care manager gets a real-time notification and is able to meet 
him there and support him through the crisis. Eventually, he’s able 
to get his car back, find work, and transition to subsidized hous-
ing. His care manager will introduce him to a social worker at his 
primary care clinic, providing someone to turn to if he needs help.

 
Linda and John and their daughter Sophia live 
slightly above the poverty line. Sophia, who lives 
with asthma, has Medi-Cal coverage, while John 
and Linda get coverage elsewhere. Linda 
becomes pregnant and enrolls in Medi-Cal 

because she is eligible by virtue of her pregnancy. She goes to all 
of her appointments at a community clinic, and at one of them is 
diagnosed with high blood pressure.

In the current Medi-Cal program, Linda isn’t enrolled in managed 
care. She is given a referral to a specialist, and after calling several, 
is given an appointment in three months, too late to avoid harm to 
the baby. Born early and small, the baby needs lots of extra care, 
putting added stress on the family. Sophia’s asthma flare-ups due 
to wildfire smoke add to the family’s stress, and Linda’s blood pres-
sure remains high.

If CalAIM is successful, Linda would be enrolled in Medi-Cal man-
aged care. Her diagnosis would trigger her managed care plan 
to find her a specialist appointment within a few days. As a result, 
Linda’s blood pressure would be treated and the baby would be 
born almost full term and have fewer needs. The managed care 
plan would contract with a county case manager to provide high-
touch support during and after the baby’s stay in the neonatal 
intensive care unit, helping connect the family to specialty county 
and regional center providers. Even after Linda’s Medi-Cal cover-
age ends, her family would stay on the radar of the Medi-Cal man-
aged care plan. For example, after refilling Sophia’s asthma rescue 
medication twice in a month, Linda would receive a call from the 
plan, making sure that the family has access to what they need to 
stay healthy. If their home needed an air filtration system to reduce 
exposure to particles from nearby fires, the plan could pay to have 
that installed.

How Can CalAIM Improve the Lives of People Enrolled in Medi-Cal?
The following scenarios illustrate the types of people who have the potential to benefit from CalAIM and the kinds of meaningful improvements 
the program is striving to make. 



Health4All Older Adults FAQ
This document seeks to provide partner organizations with information

regarding the implementation of Health4All 50+ as of August 26th 2021.
Please use this as a guide for creating materials for your community.

What is Health4All 50+?

On July 28, Governor Newsom signed into law the removal of immigration status as a barrier to
Full-Scope Medi-Cal eligibility for Californians ages 50 and over. This means that low-income adults
ages 50+, regardless of immigration status, will be eligible for comprehensive Medi-Cal health
insurance coverage, making California’s health system more equitable and universal for all.

When will undocumented immigrants ages 50+ be able to access Full-Scope Medi-Cal?

Implementation of Health4All 50+ is expected to happen in May 2022. The Department of Health Care
Services (DHCS) is preparing for implementation and their goal remains May 2022.

How will eligible patients enroll into Full-Scope Medi-Cal?

Patients who enroll now in Restricted-Scope/Emergency Medi-Cal will automatically be transitioned to
full Medi-Cal without further action. Thus, enrolling in Restricted-Scope Medi-Cal as soon as possible
will allow for a timely transition and is a good way for people to ensure they have access to Full-Scope
care immediately in May 2022. DHCS is expected to mail notices to this population, and the DHCS
website will also be updated with information about implementation in multiple languages.

For folks not currently enrolled in Medi-Cal,  DHCS has a step-by-step guide  on how to apply for
Medi-Cal benefits, including links to the paper and online application.

Find a local health center that can help you enroll in Medi-Cal: bit.ly/390NSYc

What services are included in Full-Scope Medi-Cal?

Full-Scope Medi-Cal has comprehensive health benefits including preventative care, dental, vision, and
prescription drug coverage, among many others. A full list of services can be found here.

https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/services/medi-cal/pages/applyformedi-cal.aspx
http://bit.ly/390NSYc
https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/services/medi-cal/Pages/Medi-Cal_EHB_Benefits.aspx


Will accessing Full-Scope Medi-Cal affect the “Public Charge” test?

Accessing Full-Scope Medi-Cal will not count toward the “Public Charge” test. Using Medi-Cal will
not negatively affect applications for green cards because the Medi-Cal expansion for older adults is
state-funded, not federally funded, AND because the 2019 Public Charge Rule is no longer in effect.

How does Health4All 50+ relate to the repeal of the Medi-Cal Assets test?

California will eliminate the Medi-Cal assets test, which limits seniors and people with disabilities to
assets of no more than $2,000 for individuals and $3,000 for couples in order to access Medi-Cal, in July
2022. If an undocumented Californian over the age of 65 falls over this asset limit, they may not be able
to benefit from Full-Scope Medi-Cal until July 2022.

Will the Full-Scope Medi-Cal coverage retroactively cover previous medical services and/or bills?

Applicants can request retroactive Medi-Cal coverage for up to three months prior to the month of
application. For example: A newly-eligible individual who applies for Full-Scope coverage in the month
of May 2022 can request coverage up to February 2022.

Why is Health4All implementation taking place in May 2022 and not the beginning of the year?

DHCS is undergoing system upgrades, and that date is the soonest DHCS would be ready to implement
older adult expansion.

What is the eligibility criteria for this Medi-Cal expansion?

● Age 50 or older (ages 25 and younger are already eligible)
● Household income under 138% of the Federal Poverty Level (FPL). For example, for a

household of 4 people, this would be an annual household income of $36,570 ( find information
about income requirements here ).

● Live in California
● Immigration status is NOT a criterion for eligibility. Undocumented individuals are eligible.

https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/services/medi-cal/Pages/DoYouQualifyForMedi-Cal.aspx


Eligibility Levels, SELECTED PROGRAMS, 2020

Adults: 138% FPL (ACA expansion)     Pregnant Women: 213% FPL   Children: 266% FPL
Note: The federal poverty level (FPL) in 2021 was $12,760 for an individual.

Medi-Cal Facts and Figures        For more on California’s Medicaid program and how it has evolved over the years, see www.chcf.org.  

C A L I F O R N I A  H E A L T H  C A R E  A L M A N A C  Q U I C K  R E F E R E N C E  G U I D E  AU G U S T  2021

0 to 20
40%

65+
10%

21 to 64
50%

Male
46%

Female
54%

Age Gender

Total Enrollment

13.6 million
Total Enrollment

13.6 million

Enrollment, 2010 TO 2020, SELECTED YEARS IN MILLIONS

0

3

6

9

12

15

202020182016201420122010

■ Fee-for-Service
■ Managed Care

2.7

4.9

3.1

8.9

2.7

10.8
2.3

10.7

1.9
11.2

3.4

4.1

Enrollment, 2010 TO 2020 IN MILLIONS

0

3

6

9

12

15

20202019201820172016201520142013201220112010

■ ACA Expansion
■ Nonexpansion

9.7 9.5

3.8

9.2 8.9

4.0

9.19.9

3.32.5

9.58.6
7.67.67.5

3.93.8 3.7

13.212.0
13.313.5

12.713.0 13.1

Source: Medi-Cal Facts and Figures: Essential Source of Coverage for Millions, August 2021, California Health Care Foundation, August 2021.

CALIFORNIA HEALTH CARE FOUNDATION

Enrollment, January 2021

Notes: Undocumented includes aid categories restricted to only pregnancy-related, long-term care, and 
emergency services for adults who do not have satisfactory immigration status, also known as restricted-scope 
benefits. Other includes long-term care and aid categories including Adoption/Foster Care, Refugee Medical 
Assistance / Entrant Medical Assistance, Breast and Cervical Cancer Treatment Program, Abandoned Baby 
Program, Minor Consent Program, Accelerated Enrollment in the Children Health and Disability Prevention 
Program (CHDP), Trafficking and Crime Victims Assistance Program, and state and county inmates. Source uses 
African American, Asian / Pacific Islander, and Hispanic. Segments may not total 100% due to rounding.

BY AGEBY RACE/ETHNICITY
American Indian /

Alaskan Native (<1%)

Latinx
50%Asian

American
10%

White
18%

Black
7%

Not
Reported

15%

OtherUndocumented

Children's
Health

Insurance
Program

Parent/
Caretaker 
Relative
and Child
38%

ACA Expansion
(age 19–64)

28%

Seniors and 
People with 
Disabilities
15%

10%    

7%
3%

BY AID CATEGORY

MANAGED CARE MODELS

■  County Organized Health Systems (COHS)  
■ Two-Plan
■ Geographic Managed Care (GMC)
■ Regional 
■ Imperial 
■ San Benito

TOTAL ENROLLEES 
13.6 million

Note: Enrollment is from November of each year.

Note: Enrollment is from November of each year.

http://www.chcf.org/publication/2021-edition-medi-cal-facts-figures
https://www.chcf.org/publication/2021-edition-medi-cal-facts-figures


California Health Care 

Foundation

1438 Webster Street 

Suite 400 

Oakland, CA 94612

510.238.1040

www.chcf.org

* Figures presented are estimates for FY 2019–20 calculated as of May 2020 and reflect annual spending.

Note: Segments may not total 100% due to rounding. 

Source: Medi-Cal Facts and Figures: Essential Source of Coverage for Millions, August 2021, California Health Care Foundation, August 2021.

CALIFORNIA HEALTH CARE FOUNDATION

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 
FY 2019–20

K–12 
Education
39%

Higher 
Education
12%

Other 
Health/Social 
Services
12%

Corrections/
Rehabilitation

9%

Medi-Cal
16%

Other
Programs

12%

General Fund
Expenditures

$150 billion

Mental Health (3%)
Dental (1%)
Drug Medi-Cal (<1%)

Long-Term Care
Pharmacy (2%)

Other FFS (1%)

Hospital 
Inpatient
14%

Other
10%

3%

Professional
7%  

Managed Care
50%

Medicare
    6%

Total Spending

$94.7 billion FFS

MEDI-CAL EXPENDITURES* 
BY SERVICE CATEGORY, FY 2019-20

Notes: FFS is fee-for-service. Other FFS services includes medical 
transportation, home health, and other services. Other includes audits/
lawsuits, state hospitals / developmental centers, recoveries, and 
miscellaneous services. 

Uninsured

Privately Purchased

Employment-Based

Medicare and Medi-Cal

Medicare

Medi-Cal

25%

7%

15%

14%

14%

20%

DELAYED CARE FOR ANY REASON 
BY SOURCE OF COVERAGE, 2019

— <1%— <1%
3% 2%

SpendingEnrollees

■ Other
■ Pregnant People
■ Children
■ Families  
■ Seniors
■ Adults
■ People with Disabilities

17%

35%

8%

29%

17%

19%

24%

31%
9%

6%

ENROLLEES AND SPENDING* 
BY ELIGIBILIT Y CATEGORY, FY 2019–20

Notes: Other includes Hospital Presumptive Eligibility and other aid 
codes. Notes: 2019–20 general fund expenditures as reported in the 2020–21 

budget. Includes expenditures for medical care services, eligibility 
(county administration), fiscal intermediary management, and benefits 
(medical care and services).

0

3

6

9

12

15

2019-202018-192017–182016–172015–162014–152013–142012–13

7.6

12.0

8.6

13.2 13.5 13.3
13.0 12.7

15.4%
16.4%

15.3% 15.8% 16.0% 16.0%
14.5% 15.5%

■ Enrollment
■ % of General Fund for Medi-Cal

MEDI-CAL ENROLLMENT AND SHARE OF GENERAL FUND  
FY 2013 TO FY 2020

OVERALL AVERAGE: $5,873

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

14000

16000

18000

20000

People
with Disabilities

SeniorsAdultsPregnant
People

FamiliesChildren

$1,944 $2,939

$4,461 $5,040

$14,134

$20,669

MEDI-CAL ANNUAL SPENDING PER ENROLLEE* 
BY ELIGIBILIT Y CATEGORY, FY 2019–20

Notes: Reported values exclude Hospital Presumptive Eligibility and 
other aid codes totaling 0.3% of enrollees. 

Note: Based on self-reported insurance status. When asked by survey 
researchers about health coverage, some immigrants who are 
undocumented and who have used restricted-scope Medi-Cal may 
respond that they have Medi-Cal coverage. 

http://www.chcf.org
https://www.chcf.org/publication/2021-edition-medi-cal-facts-figures


From: Sandra Young
Subject: Washington – Pursuit of County Advocacy Position on Federal Legislation Related to Public Health Infrastructure -

8/06/21
Date: Friday, August 6, 2021 2:25:10 PM

Washington – Pursuit of County Advocacy Position on Federal
Legislation Related to Public Health Infrastructure
 
Executive Summary
 
This report contains the following pursuit of County position:
 

Support S. 674 (Murray, D-WA).  This measure would establish a Core Public Health
Infrastructure Program at the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), awarding
grants to state, local, tribal and territorial health departments to ensure they have the tools,
workforce and systems in place to address existing and emerging health threats and reduce
health disparities.  Therefore, unless otherwise directed by the Board, consistent with existing
policy, the Washington, D.C. Advocates will support S. 674 and similar measures

 

 
Pursuit of County Position on Federal Legislation
 
PUBLIC HEALTH INFRASTRUCTURE SAVES LIVES ACT
 
Background

S.674 (Murray, D-WA), as introduced on March 10, 2021, would appropriate $750 million in
Federal Fiscal Year (FFY) 2022, $1 billion in FFY 2023, $2 billion in FFY 2024, $3 billion in FFY 2025,
and $4.5 billion in FFY 2026 and each subsequent year, to direct the U.S. Secretary of Health and
Human Services through the Director of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention to
establish a core public heath infrastructure program to strengthen the public health system of the
United States, including the nation’s ability to respond to the COVID-19 pandemic.
Core public health infrastructure would include the ability or capacity track the health of a
community and respond to emergencies of all kind.
No less than 50 percent of the funds would be awarded as grants to each State or territorial
health department, and to local health departments that serve 500,000 people or more.  
No less than 30 percent of the funds would be awarded as competitive grants to State, territorial,
or local health departments.  Priority would be given to applicants demonstrating core public
health infrastructure needs.
Entities receiving these grants must expend the funds to supplement and not supplant non-
Federal and Federal funds otherwise available to them for the purpose of addressing core public
health infrastructure needs and must maintain expenditures of non-Federal amounts at a level
not less than that of the fiscal year preceding the fiscal year for which the entity receives the
grant.

 

mailto:SYoung@ceo.lacounty.gov
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.congress.gov%2Fbill%2F117th-congress%2Fsenate-bill%2F674%2Ftext&data=04%7C01%7CVAntonio%40bos.lacounty.gov%7C86a767249df94b726f5a08d95920a90a%7C7faea7986ad04fc9b068fcbcaed341f6%7C0%7C0%7C637638819102552806%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=4Hy6bf4n6LzPNpnT50fZLfjgX1AnO6mIukk1VbvqNq4%3D&reserved=0


County Impact
The Department of Public Health (DPH) supports federal funding and related legislation, including
S.674, to strengthen the nation’s public health capabilities by filling long-standing gaps in public
health, enabling modernization of outdated technologies and systems, and building a foundation
for a more effective, efficient public health response to future pandemics. 
DPH reports that due to the prolonged underinvestment by the federal government in state and
local public health infrastructure, there has been a steady decline in public health workforce,
scientific expertise, clinical capacity, and the ability to respond to diverse and dynamic community
needs.  The shortage of the resources was exacerbated by the COVID-19 pandemic response.
DPH reports that it was forced to divert substantial resources from critical public health services
for COVID-19 response activities such as emergency operation coordination, public information
and warning, epidemiology and surveillance, infection control and prevention, laboratory services,
vaccine dispensation, pharmaceutical and non-pharmaceutical interventions, patient care and
management, environmental services and community outreach.
DPH reports that federal investment in public health infrastructure could be immediately put to
use for critical issue areas, distinct and separate from the COVID-19 response, including sexually
transmitted diseases (STD) screening and treatment services, tuberculosis control and prevention
efforts, communicable disease control, public health laboratory enhancements, digital
infrastructure, chronic disease control and prevention efforts, and to enhance programs focused
on elders, domestic violence and violence prevention. 

 
Support and Opposition

S.674 has 20 co-sponsors and is supported by over 315 organizations including: Southern
California Public Health Association, American Public Health Association, Delaware Public Health
Association, Illinois Public Health Association, Johnson County Public Health, Louisiana Public
Health Institute, Nevada Public Health Association, New Jersey Public Health Association, New
York State Public Health Association, Washington State Department of Health, Washington State
Public Health Association, and Wisconsin Public Health Association, among many others.
S.674 was referred to the Senate Health, Education, Labor and Pensions Committee on March 10,
2021.

 
Recommendation

This Office and DPH support S.674 and similar measures that provide increased funding for state,
local, tribal and territorial core public health infrastructure as they would help ensure that local
public health departments have the tools, workforce and system in place to address existing and
emerging health threats and reduce health disparities .
Therefore, unless otherwise directed by the Board, consistent with existing policies to support
proposals that increase funding for public health, the Washington, D.C. Advocates will support
S.674 and similar measures.

 

 
 
Thank you,
 



Sandra Young
Chief Executive Office
Legislative Affairs and Intergovernmental Relations
Phone: ( 213) 974 -1724
Email:  Syoung@ceo.lacounty.gov
 
 

mailto:Syoung@ceo.lacounty.gov


 

1 

 

Ending the HIV Epidemic in the US (EHE) – Quarterly Stakeholder Webinar 
Federal Agency Updates 

July 14, 2021 
 
The following includes high-level updates from federal agencies on improving outcomes of Syringe Service Programs (SSPs) and advancing the 
EHE initiative. 
 

 

EHE HOPWA Resource Tool 

● HUD has developed an EHE HOPWA Resource Tool, currently available on the AHEAD Dashboard. HUD will 

continue to work collaboratively with EHE leadership and commit to furthering work on federal partnerships 

toward this effort. 

 

 

FY21 Funding 

● CDC funding in FY21 will support testing expansion, more locations, extended hours of operation, and 

additional services in existing SSPs to ensure meeting the needs of the community.  

 

SSP Activity Expansion 

● 23 of 32 EHE plans described activities to expand SSPs—and 25 jurisdictions have proposed evidence-based 

strategies to address substance use, including increasing the number of venues and prescribers that offer 

medication-assisted treatment for opioid use disorder and syringe services. 

 

Community Engagement Priority Populations Identified in EHE Plans 

● 19 EHE plans included PWID among their community engagement priority populations. 

● 18 EHE plans included persons experiencing homelessness among their community engagement priority 

populations. 

https://ahead.hiv.gov/resources


 

2 

 

Technical Assistance & Additional Resources 

● National Harm Reduction Technical Assistance Center: https://www.cdc.gov/harmreductionta/index.html . 

● Technical package on SSP implementation: https://www.cdc.gov/ssp/docs/SSP-Technical-Package.pdf . 

● Suite of materials is available: www.cdc.gov/ssp . 

 

HRSA HAB  

Quarterly EHE Recipient Webinars 

The second quarterly EHE recipient webinar took place on Wednesday, June 16th. Upcoming webinars: 

● September 15, 2021 

● December 8, 2021 

 

Community Engagement Session 

● Since the last quarterly webinar, HRSA HAB has hosted 4 Regional EHE Virtual Community Engagement 

Sessions 

 

Upcoming Sessions 

● Mountain West (Regions 8 & 10) – August 10 & 12, 2021 

● South Central (Region 6) – August 17 & 19, 2021 

● Southeast (Region 4) – September 7 & 9, 2021 

 

HRSA BPHC 

Primary Care HIV Prevention (PCHP) 

● FY 2022 President’s Budget Request: $50 million to support up to 140 additional PCHP health centers.  

https://www.cdc.gov/harmreductionta/index.html
https://www.cdc.gov/ssp/docs/SSP-Technical-Package.pdf
http://www.cdc.gov/ssp
https://hab.hrsa.gov/
https://targethiv.org/calendar/hrsa-ehe-listening-regions-8-10
https://targethiv.org/calendar/hrsa-ehe-listening-region-6
https://targethiv.org/calendar/hrsa-ehe-listening-region-4
https://bphc.hrsa.gov/


 

3 

● FY 2021 PCHP funding: $48 million to provide expanded support for the Phase 1 health centers and add 

approximately 108 new PCHP health centers - applications are currently under review for an anticipated 

August 1 award date. 

● FY 2020: $54 million to support 195 health centers - Primary Care HIV Prevention (PCHP) funding to expand 

prevention and treatment services to people at high risk for HIV transmission, including Pre Exposure 

Prophylaxis (PrEP)-related services, outreach, and care coordination at the nation’s health centers - 

additional implementation data will be available in early August. 

 

Preliminary SSP Implementation Data 

● Health centers are reporting engagement with some form of SSPs nationwide, including in CA, IN, NY, and OH 

 

Indian Health Service  

HIV Testing & Incidence 

● HIV screening coverage of all persons ages 13-64 as per national guidelines increased from 30.6% in 2012 

to 57.2% in 2020. These are unique patients.  In 2020, IHS’s overall HIV testing volume was 33,962 persons, 

representing 8% of the user population tested. 

● HIV incidence stable, HIV mortality declining.  A stable transmission rate and a lower mortality rate are 

positive indicators – a 21% increase in HIV patients in 2014-2018 and a 31% drop in mortality in the same 

period means HIV patient cohorts are growing.  The key to successful viral suppression is case 

management using remote and in-person case management support specific to the context. 

National Surveillance Data 

● MHAF funds assisted IHS in establishing a collaboration with the CDC Division of HIV/AIDS Prevention to 

analyze national surveillance data on HIV diagnosis, deaths, and continuum of care metrics for American 

Indian/Alaska Natives. IHS and CDC staff stratified the national data by IHS Service Area to evaluate 

geographic variations in Indian Country. 

 

https://public3.pagefreezer.com/browse/HHS%20%E2%80%93%C2%A0About%20News/20-01-2021T12:29/https:/www.hhs.gov/about/news/2020/02/26/hhs-awards-117-million-to-end-hiv-epidemic-in-the-united-states.html
https://www.ihs.gov/hivaids/
https://www.ihs.gov/hivaids/


 

4 

 

NIH EHE Awards & Funding 

● At least 30 NIH EHE Awards to be funded Summer 2021. Information on EHE awards made in 2019 and 2020 
can be accessed on the CFAR website. 

  
● New NIH EHE research funding opportunities were announced this quarter. Selected examples: 

○ NOT-MD-21-023 involves a funding collaboration between the National Institute of Minority Health 

and Health Disparities and the Minority HIV/AIDS Fund for Research Centers in Minority Institutions  
○ NOT-MD-21-020 supplements to support research on populations that experience health disparities, 

socioeconomically disadvantaged populations, underserved rural populations, and sexual and gender 

minorities 
○ RFA-AI-21-023 Respond pillar epidemiology research to better understand HIV susceptibility and 

ongoing transmission 
○ RFA-AI-21-024 Implementation science regarding multidisciplinary approaches in HIV care and 

treatment 

○ RFA-AI-21-025 Diagnose and Prevent pillar research to reduce HIV incidence 
○ RFA-AI-20-069 Innovative Models for Delivering PrEP and STI Services (on HIV.gov) 

○ PAR-20-274 New Models of Integrated HIV/AIDS, Addiction, and Primary Care Services 

PAR-20-036 Understanding HIV Viral Suppression and Transmission 
○ 

○ 

Other NIH EHE-related funding opportunities are available here 

  
Ongoing NIH EHE Projects on SSP 

● Implementation of Telemedicine Test and Treat for On-site Initiation of Antiretroviral Therapy at Miami’s 

IDEA Exchange SSP 
Jurisdiction: Miami-Dade County, FL 

Pillars: Diagnose, Treat, Respond 

● Mobile Delivery of PrEP and Medication Assisted Treatment at an SSP – A Pilot Study 

Jurisdiction: Miami Dade County, FL 

Pillars: Treat, Prevent 

https://www.niaid.nih.gov/research/cfar-arc-ending-hiv-epidemic-supplement-awards
https://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/notice-files/NOT-MD-21-023.html
https://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/notice-files/NOT-MD-21-020.html
https://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/rfa-files/rfa-ai-21-023.html
https://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/rfa-files/rfa-ai-21-024.html
https://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/rfa-files/rfa-ai-21-025.html
https://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/rfa-files/RFA-AI-20-069.html
https://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/pa-files/PAR-20-274.html
https://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/pa-files/PAR-20-036.html
https://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/search_results.htm?scope=pa&year=active


 

5 

 

Ongoing SAMHSA SSP Funding and Support 

● Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grants (SABG) 

● State Opioid Response Grants (SOR) 

● Minority AIDS Initiative (MAI) Programs 

 

 

https://www.samhsa.gov/grants/block-grants/sabg
https://www.samhsa.gov/grants/grant-announcements/ti-20-012
https://www.samhsa.gov/grants/grant-announcements/sm-18-004


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

If your federal unemployment benefits are 

ending, you are encouraged to apply for these 

vital programs which have been expanded by 

the American Rescue Plan: 

• Over $234 per person per month in food assistance via 

 (GetCalFresh.org) whether you are working or not. 

• Rental and utility assistance via  

(HousingIsKey.com). Get 100 percent of rent and utilities 

paid. Contact the Rent Relief call center: 1-833-430-2122 

• Californians can apply directly to the county human 

services agency for cash aid and services for families 

with children (CalWORKs), food assistance (CalFresh), 

and free health insurance (Medi-Cal) through 

. 

• Health insurance—for as low as $1 per month for 

workers who received unemployment benefits, through 

 (CoveredCA.com). 

Which federal unemployment benefits are 

ending September 4, 2021? 

• Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) created for 

self-employed workers and others who don’t qualify for 

regular state Unemployment Insurance (UI). 

• Pandemic Emergency Unemployment Compensation 

(PEUC) that provides additional weeks of unemployment 

benefits beyond the basic 26 weeks of regular state UI. 

• Pandemic Additional Compensation (PAC), also known as 

Federal Pandemic Unemployment Compensation (FPUC), 

that provides an extra $300 per week of benefits for workers 

collecting PUA, PEUC, FED-ED, and regular state UI. 

• Mixed Earner Unemployment Compensation (MEUC) 

supplement that provides an extra $100 per week in 

benefits for regular state UI recipients who earned at 

least $5,000 in self-employed earnings. 

NOTE: A separate extension of regular UI benefits known as the 

FED-ED will no longer be payable after September 11, 2021. 

 
 

 

 

 
 

2021 edd.ca.gov 

 
For help finding gainful work, job training, and other employment services, you are also 

encouraged to access the following Employment Development Department (EDD) resources: 

• CalJOBSSM (CalJOBS.ca.gov) is the state’s online, no-cost virtual job center that includes over a million job listings from 

private job boards and recruitment sites. 

• Job search assistance, resume writing, interview preparation, and access to job training is available through 

America’s Job Center of California (edd.ca.gov/office_locator) locations throughout the state. 

• For more information about services available, see EDD’s Returning to Work (edd.ca.gov/return-to-work.htm) webpage. 

 

 

 

Apply for Vital Food, Housing, Utility, and Health Care Assistance 

https://www.getcalfresh.org/en/?s=eddJuneEN%20
http://housingiskey.com/
https://benefitscal.org/
http://coveredca.com/
http://caljobs.ca.gov/
https://edd.ca.gov/office_locator/
https://edd.ca.gov/unemployment/return-to-work.htm


How the Center Is Doing Its Part to End Blood Donation Discrimination Against Gay and Bi Men

https://lgbtnewsnow.org/how-the-center-is-doing-its-part-to-end-blood-donation-discrimination-against-gay-and-bi-men/[8/13/2021 1:30:00 PM]

TRENDING
LA Pro Sports Teams Cheer the Center’s Work

      

https://lgbtnewsnow.org/la-pro-sports-teams-cheer-the-centers-work/
https://twitter.com/LALGBTCenter
https://www.facebook.com/LAlgbtcenter/
https://www.instagram.com/lalgbtcenter/
https://www.youtube.com/user/LAGayCenter
https://lgbtnewsnow.org/
https://events.lalgbtcenter.org/


How the Center Is Doing Its Part to End Blood Donation Discrimination Against Gay and Bi Men

https://lgbtnewsnow.org/how-the-center-is-doing-its-part-to-end-blood-donation-discrimination-against-gay-and-bi-men/[8/13/2021 1:30:00 PM]

YOU ARE AT: Home » Community » Health » How the Center Is Doing Its Part to End Blood Donation Discrimination
Against Gay and Bi Men

NAVIGATE 

HEALTHJULY 30, 2021

How the Center Is Doing Its Part to End Blood Donation Discrimination
Against Gay and Bi Men

By Greg Hernandez

https://lgbtnewsnow.org/
https://lgbtnewsnow.org/category/community/
https://lgbtnewsnow.org/category/community/health/
https://events.lalgbtcenter.org/
https://lgbtnewsnow.org/category/community/health/
https://lgbtnewsnow.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/BloodDonation.jpg


How the Center Is Doing Its Part to End Blood Donation Discrimination Against Gay and Bi Men

https://lgbtnewsnow.org/how-the-center-is-doing-its-part-to-end-blood-donation-discrimination-against-gay-and-bi-men/[8/13/2021 1:30:00 PM]

If a gay or bisexual man wants to donate blood in the United States today, he is not supposed to have had sex with another man

for at least three months prior.

Paul Osborne had something to say about the policy.

“It’s entirely discriminatory—people need blood,” said the 51-year-old before walking into the Los Angeles LGBT Center’s

McDonald/Wright Building for an appointment. “They should open it up to everyone so that everyone can give blood. Then, they

can have a bigger supply for those who need it, particularly those with a less common blood type.”

In an effort to change the policy, the Center is one of eight LGBT centers nationwide that are each responsible for recruiting

250–300 gay and bi men between 18 to 39 years old for the ADVANCE (Assessing Donor Variability and New Concepts in

Eligibility) study funded through a contract with the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA).

The pilot study is being launched by three of the nation’s largest blood centers: Vitalant, OneBlood, and the American Red

Cross.

“Even though it’s taken the FDA and blood organizations this long, this is a really important moment,” pointed out the Center’s

Director of Research Risa Flynn. “It’s important that everybody who is eligible step up and participate to give us the data we

need.”

The study will evaluate alternatives to the FDA’s current blood donor policy which is less stringent than the 1985 complete ban

on gay and bi men donating blood. At that time, nearly four decades ago, there was little science on the mechanisms of HIV

transmission, and the AIDS epidemic was concentrated in the gay community.

“When the epidemic started, we knew so little about transmission,” said Flynn. “There was this very intense fear—health

professionals were afraid to interact with patients who were infected—which carried over into the blood supply. People became

infected with HIV through donated blood.”

The complete ban was lifted in December 2015. But, in April 2020, the policy was revised to require gay and bi men to abstain

from sex for one year in order to donate blood although, according to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, all

donated blood products are now tested for HIV and other pathogens such as hepatitis C virus.

“From the perspective of the Center and our community, it communicated such intense stigma and discrimination,” said Flynn.

“People want to donate their blood and do an act of public good—but still being told it’s not safe. They’re made to feel judged for

who they are.”

The ADVANCE study is looking at eliminating the three-month time period deferral in favor of having an extended questionnaire

for potential donors to assess any risk behavior.

“There already is a pretty substantive questionnaire that anybody donating blood has to complete,” explained Flynn. “The study’s

https://advancestudy.org/
https://advancestudy.org/
https://www.cdc.gov/bloodsafety/basics.html


How the Center Is Doing Its Part to End Blood Donation Discrimination Against Gay and Bi Men

https://lgbtnewsnow.org/how-the-center-is-doing-its-part-to-end-blood-donation-discrimination-against-gay-and-bi-men/[8/13/2021 1:30:00 PM]

RELATED POSTS

idea is that there would just be some additional questions asked. We know a lot now about what kinds of behavior leads to the

likeliness of HIV infection: sex without condoms, substance use, number of partners.”

Participants in the study will have a blood sample drawn for HIV testing and will answer different questions designed to

determine individual HIV risk factors. The study will assess if the questions related to behavior are effective in distinguishing gay

and bi men who have recently tested positive for HIV from those who have not. Its findings will help determine the next steps

needed to modify the donor history questionnaire.

Data collected from the ADVANCE study will then be submitted to the FDA who will review and decide next steps.

For Center client Michael Campo, 62, it is incredulous to him that a loosened FDA policy still exists today.

“Discrimination is bad no matter what,” said Campo, who identifies as bisexual and lived through the AIDS pandemic. “Putting

stipulations on one group is bad. I didn’t even know something like this was still possible in this day and age. It should be equal

all the way around.”

To learn more about the ADVANCE study and to enroll, visit ADVANCEstudy.org

 

Share this:

 

Living With HIV and Drinking
Alcohol? Research Study Offers
Support

AUGUST 11, 2021

We’ve Got Team Spirit! First-Ever
TogetheRide Raised Millions of
Dollars and Logged 800,000+ Miles

JULY 1, 2021

Vax to the Max: Los Angeles LGBT
Center Aims to Vaccinate Trans and
Non-Binary Community in Safe,
Festive Space

JUNE 11, 2021

https://advancestudy.org/
https://lgbtnewsnow.org/how-the-center-is-doing-its-part-to-end-blood-donation-discrimination-against-gay-and-bi-men/?share=facebook&nb=1
https://lgbtnewsnow.org/how-the-center-is-doing-its-part-to-end-blood-donation-discrimination-against-gay-and-bi-men/?share=facebook&nb=1
https://lgbtnewsnow.org/how-the-center-is-doing-its-part-to-end-blood-donation-discrimination-against-gay-and-bi-men/?share=twitter&nb=1
https://lgbtnewsnow.org/how-the-center-is-doing-its-part-to-end-blood-donation-discrimination-against-gay-and-bi-men/?share=twitter&nb=1
https://lgbtnewsnow.org/living-with-hiv-and-drinking-alcohol-researchers-may-want-to-study-you/
https://lgbtnewsnow.org/living-with-hiv-and-drinking-alcohol-researchers-may-want-to-study-you/
https://lgbtnewsnow.org/living-with-hiv-and-drinking-alcohol-researchers-may-want-to-study-you/
https://lgbtnewsnow.org/living-with-hiv-and-drinking-alcohol-researchers-may-want-to-study-you/
https://lgbtnewsnow.org/weve-got-team-spirit-first-ever-togetheride-raised-millions-of-dollars-and-logged-800000-miles/
https://lgbtnewsnow.org/weve-got-team-spirit-first-ever-togetheride-raised-millions-of-dollars-and-logged-800000-miles/
https://lgbtnewsnow.org/weve-got-team-spirit-first-ever-togetheride-raised-millions-of-dollars-and-logged-800000-miles/
https://lgbtnewsnow.org/weve-got-team-spirit-first-ever-togetheride-raised-millions-of-dollars-and-logged-800000-miles/
https://lgbtnewsnow.org/vax-to-the-max-los-angeles-lgbt-center-aims-to-vaccinate-trans-and-non-binary-community-in-safe-festive-space/
https://lgbtnewsnow.org/vax-to-the-max-los-angeles-lgbt-center-aims-to-vaccinate-trans-and-non-binary-community-in-safe-festive-space/
https://lgbtnewsnow.org/vax-to-the-max-los-angeles-lgbt-center-aims-to-vaccinate-trans-and-non-binary-community-in-safe-festive-space/
https://lgbtnewsnow.org/vax-to-the-max-los-angeles-lgbt-center-aims-to-vaccinate-trans-and-non-binary-community-in-safe-festive-space/
https://lgbtnewsnow.org/vax-to-the-max-los-angeles-lgbt-center-aims-to-vaccinate-trans-and-non-binary-community-in-safe-festive-space/


How the Center Is Doing Its Part to End Blood Donation Discrimination Against Gay and Bi Men

https://lgbtnewsnow.org/how-the-center-is-doing-its-part-to-end-blood-donation-discrimination-against-gay-and-bi-men/[8/13/2021 1:30:00 PM]

ABOUT US

LGBT News Now

LGBT News Now is a publication of the Los Angeles LGBT Center. Celebrating its 50th anniversary in 2019, the Center is the

largest LGBT organization in the world, dedicated to building a world where LGBT thrive as healthy, equal, and complete

members of society. Learn more at lalgbtcenter.org.

FOLLOW US ON INSTAGRAM

FEBRUARY 25, 2021

FEBRUARY 24, 2020

FEBRUARY 22, 2020

JANUARY 20, 2020

PHOTO GALLERIES

“Darkness/Light” Exhibit Illuminates the Virtual Art World

Slay Models Visit Trans Wellness Center (2020)

The Future is Black: Embracing Our Roots (2020)

Women’s March LA (2020)

http://www.lalgbtcenter.org/
https://lgbtnewsnow.org/darkness-light-exhibit-illuminates-the-virtual-art-world/
https://lgbtnewsnow.org/slaymodelsvisittwc/
https://lgbtnewsnow.org/the-future-is-black-embracing-our-roots-2020/
https://lgbtnewsnow.org/womens-march-2020/
https://lgbtnewsnow.org/darkness-light-exhibit-illuminates-the-virtual-art-world/
https://lgbtnewsnow.org/slaymodelsvisittwc/
https://lgbtnewsnow.org/the-future-is-black-embracing-our-roots-2020/
https://lgbtnewsnow.org/womens-march-2020/
https://www.instagram.com/p/CShOXzCj3vz/
https://www.instagram.com/p/CSfRvkXlDTK/
https://www.instagram.com/p/CSenSVSjLdJ/
https://www.instagram.com/p/CScZJvULZuV/
https://www.instagram.com/p/CScCmsNrvHM/
https://www.instagram.com/p/CSZfTKHjX1G/


How the Center Is Doing Its Part to End Blood Donation Discrimination Against Gay and Bi Men

https://lgbtnewsnow.org/how-the-center-is-doing-its-part-to-end-blood-donation-discrimination-against-gay-and-bi-men/[8/13/2021 1:30:00 PM]

Follow on Instagram

STAY CONNECTED

Subscribe

Copyright © 2020 Los Angeles LGBT Center Terms of Service · Privacy · Contact Us

https://www.instagram.com/lalgbtcenter/
https://www.instagram.com/lalgbtcenter/
https://lalgbtcenter.org/subscribe-for-updates
https://lalgbtcenter.org/subscribe-for-updates
https://lalgbtcenter.org/administrative/terms-of-service
https://lalgbtcenter.org/administrative/privacy-policy
https://lalgbtcenter.org/about-the-center/contact-us
https://www.instagram.com/p/CScZJvULZuV/
https://www.instagram.com/p/CScCmsNrvHM/
https://www.instagram.com/p/CSZfTKHjX1G/
https://www.instagram.com/p/CSXxFqADqql/
https://www.instagram.com/p/CSW62OXjDvn/
https://www.instagram.com/p/CSUduT3MAkb/


1

An HIV Federal Policy Agenda by 
People Living with HIV

DEMANDING BETTER:



2

This document was a collaborative effort informed by our relationships with thousands of people living with 
HIV throughout the United States, as well as our lived experience. 

Authors contributed thought leadership as well as writing, research, reflection, and editing time. We are 
grateful to Martha Cameron, Barb Cardell, Marco Castro-Bojorquez, Cecilia Chung, Tami Haught, Vanessa 
Johnson, Ronald Johnson, Naina Khanna, Kamaria Laffrey, Lorenzo Lewis, Mark Misrok, Heather O’Connor, 
Venita Ray, Malcolm Reid, Bamby Salcedo, Linda Scruggs, Waheedah Shabazz-El, Andrew Spieldenner, Kiara 
St. James, Sean Strub, and Evany Turk for their contributions.

We are additionally especially indebted to Tyler Barbarin, Breanna Diaz, Kelly Flannery, Jennie Smith-Camejo, 
and Allie Watson for thought leadership, writing, editing, research, and communications support on this 
momentous project.

We dedicate this agenda to the many people living with HIV who paved the way for our understanding of 
HIV as an issue of justice, and on whose shoulders we stand. Some are still with us and too many have been 
lost along the way.

May this collective set of priorities, created jointly by U.S. based networks of people living with HIV for the 
first time ever, assure a better world for all of us. 

For Mary. For Marco. For Deloris. For Loren. For Juanita. 

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

pwn-usa.org



3

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I. Executive Summary            
 

II. Background             
  

III. Issue Areas and Recommendations

1. Issue Area 1. Concretely Elevate Meaningful Involvement of People Living with HIV and  
Disproportionately Impacted Communities in the HIV Response

2. Issue Area 2. Proactively Create an Affirming Human Rights Environment for People Living 
with HIV: Address Stigma; Eliminate HIV Criminalization and Halt Molecular HIV Surveillance

3. Issue Area 3: Addressing Inequities in the Federal Response: Attend to Racial and Gender 
Disparities

4. Issue Area 4. Add Sex Workers and Immigrants Living with HIV as Priority Populations 
Throughout the Federal Response

5. Issue Area 5. Affirmatively Commit to Improving Quality of Life for People Living with HIV

4

7

10

10

13

21

24

28



4

Networks of people living with HIV in the United 
States have come together as the U.S. People 
Living with HIV Caucus (HIV Caucus) to outline 
our policy agenda for the federal response to the 
HIV epidemic. People living with HIV networks 
are organized formations created, led by, and 
accountable to the estimated 1.1 million people 
living with HIV in the United States. They are 
vehicles through which we, as people living with 
HIV, can define our own agenda, choose our own 
leaders, and speak with collective voices. 

For stakeholders in the federal government, the 
HIV Caucus brings a unique lens, informed by lived 
experience, to the development of policies to 
ensure better care, treatment, and quality of life for 
people living with HIV. The networks which make 
up the HIV Caucus have been involved as service 
providers, have run programs that serve people 
living with HIV, and have built community-based 
organizations and advocacy initiatives from the 
ground up. We are in direct contact with tens of 
thousands of people living with HIV throughout 
the United States. 

These unique abilities and access inform our work 
and led us to create this living policy agenda to 
collect our expertise into a road map for lawmakers 
and other key stakeholders to use in addressing the 
HIV epidemic at the federal level.  

An HIV Federal Policy Agenda by 
People Living with HIV

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This policy agenda contains recommendations 
in 5 issues areas which must be centered in 
every aspect of the federal HIV response:

1. Concretely elevating the meaningful 
involvement of people living with HIV and 
disproportionately impacted communities 
in the HIV response;  

2. Proactively creating an affirming human 
rights environment for people living with 
HIV by addressing stigma, eliminating HIV 
criminalization, and halting molecular HIV 
surveillance; 

3. Addressing inequities in the federal 
response by attending to racial and gender 
disparities; 

4. Adding sex workers and immigrants living 
with HIV as priority populations throughout 
the federal response; and 

5. Affirmatively committing to improving 
quality of life for people living with HIV. 

To address each of these issue areas, we have 
suggested concrete recommendations for the 
associated executive agencies, the HIV National 
Strategic Plan, and the Ending the HIV Epidemic 
Plan, which are broadly delineated on the pages 
that follow.

DEMANDING BETTER:



5

Concretely elevating the meaningful involvement of people living with HIV and disproportionately 
impacted communities in the HIV response
Staff federal bodies addressing the epidemic, such as the Office of National AIDS Policy, with people living 
with HIV from the communities most impacted by the epidemic and recharter the  HIV advisory boards of 
the federal agencies to include a minimum of two seats for representatives of the HIV Caucus.
Develop a process to solicit input from, engage and consult with the HIV Caucus, and include meaningful 
involvement of people living with HIV indicators in the final version of the HIV National Strategic Plan and 
in updates to the Ending the HIV Epidemic Plan.

Proactively creating an affirming human rights environment for people living with HIV
Identify stigma-reduction activities that partners in the HIV response can engage in, require Ending the 
Epidemics jurisdictions to create plans that incorporate these activities, and resource people living with 
HIV networks to develop and implement stigma-reduction initiatives.
Utilize data collection tools and interventions that examine structural change.
Promote advocacy efforts to remove punitive laws and policies, like HIV criminalization, by acknowledging 
the federal government’s role in creating them and making clear commitments in federal plans to end HIV 
criminalization.
Declare a moratorium on molecular HIV surveillance and partner with people living with HIV networks to 
develop standards for obtaining informed consent; privacy protections; and security, sharing, and storage 
protocols.
Implement community generated standards in all aspects of the federal HIV response and ensure funding 
is in place for training and compliance.

Addressing inequities in the federal response: attend to racial and gender disparities
Explicitly include racial and gender disparities as elements of the HIV epidemic to be addressed in all 
funding opportunities and create grant opportunities for and led by these populations.
Require Ending the Epidemic jurisdictions to target resources to Black, Indigenous, and other people of 
color, especially those who are also gay and bisexual men, people of trans experience, people who use 
drugs, sex workers, and immigrants. 
Require jurisdictions and grantees to provide care services to dependents while people living with HIV 
receive services and to screen for intimate partner violence. 
Adding sex workers and immigrants living with HIV as priority populations throughout the federal 
response
Push to prohibit the practice of using condom possession as evidence of sex work and eliminate federal 
policies conflating sex work and human trafficking. 
Prioritize and require commitments to the decriminalization of sex work, including restrictions of 
individuals with sex work-related or drug-related convictions from accessing federal programs and 
services.
Ensure health care is accessible regardless of immigration status.
Add sex workers and immigrants as priority populations in the federal HIV response and fund programs led 
by and serving them accordingly.
Fund language services, particularly those that are in-person, and require certain grantees to staff certified 
medical interpreters or train staff on interpretation utilization.
Affirmatively commit to improve quality of life for people living with HIV
Create a minimum standard of care and quality of life for people living with HIV, promulgate regulations 
requiring those providing health care to people living with HIV to conform to those standards, and monitor 
and report how these standards are being upheld. 



6

Establish access to online and in-person benefits counseling/advisement for people living with HIV; design 
system to improve portability of benefits between jurisdictions; and create programs to train, recruit, and 
hire people living with HIV into the HIV workforce and other employment opportunities.
Fully fund Housing Opportunities for People with AIDS and other federal housing programs and enforce 
the Fair Housing Act to address housing discrimination.
Require the federal HIV programs to track and address housing for people living with HIV.
Improve the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program to account for regional differences, increase 
overall benefits, continue extensions of work requirements, and reduce administrative burdens for people 
living with HIV.
Improve, expand, and fund access to sexual and reproductive health care for people living with HIV, 
including transition-related care, and monitor this progress with metrics in the federal HIV response.
Fund research and create accessible guidelines for birthing people living with HIV to breast/chest-feed 
their children that do not include criminalization.



7

About Us
We are networks of people living with HIV (PLHIV 
networks) in the United States. PLHIV networks 
are organized formations created, led by, and 
accountable to the estimated 1.1 million people 
living with HIV (PLHIV) in the United States. PLHIV 
networks are vehicles through which we, as PLHIV, 
can define our own agenda, choose our own 
leaders, and speak with a collective voice.

Our networks represent communities most 
impacted by the epidemic in the United States: 
Black gay and bisexual men living with HIV in 
the U.S. South, Black cisgender and transgender 
women living with HIV, transgender women of 
color living with HIV, Latinx people living with HIV, 
survivors of HIV criminalization, and people aging 
with HIV. Our constituencies are diverse – including 
groups organized around race, gender, age, gender 
identity, sexual orientation, and immigration status 
– and we work across coalitions and communities 
on issues that impact us. 

PLHIV networks bring a unique lens, informed by 
lived experience, to the development of policies 
to ensure better care, access to treatment, and 
quality of life for PLHIV. As PLHIV, we understand 
HIV-related stigma, discrimination, and structural 
conditions -- including racism, homophobia, 
sexism, transphobia, xenophobia, ableism, and 
poverty -- in direct, embodied ways. Many of us 
have been involved as service providers, have 
developed and led programs that serve PLHIV, 
and have built community-based organizations 
(CBOs) and advocacy initiatives from the ground 
up. We are in direct contact with tens of thousands 
of PLHIV throughout the United States and are 
consequently able to identify and, where resources 

An HIV Federal Policy Agenda by 
People Living with HIV

BACKGROUND allow, respond to emerging trends quickly.

There is a marked difference between collaborating 
with or taking input from individual PLHIV and 
engaging with organized formations of PLHIV. 
Processes to take input from or consult with 
individuals living with HIV generally have no 
available mechanisms for, nor resources to support, 
community accountability. Nor do they provide 
real avenues to support engagement by PLHIV 
representing the communities most affected 
by HIV, who may be facing various barriers that 
circumscribe their ability to effectively participate 
in decision-making or advisory processes. Thus, 
working with individual PLHIV is frequently 
tokenizing and disempowering to PLHIV and 
reinforces the inequities in race, gender, and 
class that have framed dominant discourse and 
policymaking on the HIV epidemic to date.

The United States People Living with HIV Caucus 
(HIV Caucus) emerged in 2010 from the need 
for a national voice for PLHIV. The HIV Caucus is 
composed of members Global Network of People 
Living with AIDS -- North America, International 
Community of Women with HIV/AIDS -- North 
America, National Working Positive Coalition, 
Positively Trans, Positive Women’s Network-USA 
(PWN), Reunion Project, SERO Project, and THRIVE 
SS. As a national “network of networks,” the HIV 
Caucus has taken the lead on several issues that 
PLHIV face, including addressing national HIV plans 
and policies that affect us.1 The HIV Caucus has 
been a coordinating partner with AIDS United and 
Treatment Access Expansion Project at AIDSWatch, 
the national HIV advocacy day, bringing together 
hundreds of PLHIV and allies from around the 
country each year in Washington, D.C., to engage 
legislators and federal agencies.

It is long past time for national leadership on HIV 

DEMANDING BETTER:



8

to make this shift towards formally recognizing 
PLHIV networks as necessary partners to help 
organize, inform, and implement the federal 
domestic response. Put simply, you cannot end 
the HIV epidemic without us. This is no longer 
a demand – it is an absolute imperative. It is in 
this spirit of partnership that we bring the below 
analysis of the current federal response and our 
recommendations forward.

Contextualizing the Federal 
Response to the United States HIV 
Epidemic
The federal response to the domestic HIV epidemic 
is situated within a larger context of politics and 
culture, including sex negativity, HIV-related 
stigma, racism, homophobia, transphobia, sexism, 
classism, and the criminalization of poverty. As a 
result, since the first cases of AIDS were reported 
40 years ago, and while health care providers, 
clinicians, and community advocates organized to 
develop compassionate approaches, the political 
response itself has been plagued by an overall lack 
of will to actively value, invest in, and affirm the 
lives of those communities most impacted by the 
domestic HIV epidemic -- the same communities 
our networks represent.

For nearly 30 years, the U.S. did not have a 
comprehensive, national plan to address the HIV/
AIDS epidemic. Critical programs and policies 
to provide health care and treatment to PLHIV, 
especially the Ryan White HIV/AIDS Program, and 
various initiatives to prevent HIV funded by the 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), 
collectively formed a patchwork response to the 
domestic epidemic. This fragmented approach to 
HIV was ironic given that the U.S. engaged with 
other countries to develop their annual national 
plans (known as Country Operational Plans, or 
COPs) as a required component of the funding 
process under the President’s Emergency Plan 
for AIDS Relief (PEPFAR), established in 20032. 
However, it was also inevitable – prior to the 
adoption and enactment of the Patient Protection 
and Affordable Care Act (ACA), health insurers were 
legally permitted to discriminate against people 

with pre-existing conditions3, such that PLHIV in 
the U.S. were not generally eligible for private or 
employer-sponsored health insurance coverage4, 
and relied on a medley of social and health related 
services to fill in the gaps.

In the mid-2000s, as early data began to show 
that viral suppression in PLHIV would reduce 
the likelihood of onward HIV transmission, 
epidemiologists began making the case that any 
successful plan to “end the HIV epidemic“ would 
have to rest on a foundation of two primary 
bedrocks: 

1. Aggressive HIV testing to identify new 
diagnoses and 

2. Medical treatment to suppress the viral loads of 
those living with HIV. 

This became known as the “test and treat” model. 
Some advocates pushed to expand the model’s 
frame first to “testing, linkage, and care” (TLC), 
then to TLC+, in a discursive recognition that 
successfully implementing widespread and early 
HIV treatment for those who receive a positive 
diagnosis requires first that people living with 
HIV are in medical care and that they were likely 
to need other services and support in order to 
facilitate access to that medical care.5

 The United States National HIV/AIDS Strategy: 
2010-2020

The Obama administration’s release of a 2010-2015 
National HIV/AIDS Strategy for the United States 
(NHAS, or the NHAS)6 in July 2010 represented 
a significant milestone. The NHAS was a White 
House-level document, complete with the 
Presidential seal. It was designed as the first cross-
government response to HIV, explicitly requiring 
leadership and action by multiple federal agencies, 
along with involvement from other stakeholders 
including the private sector and faith sector, to 
achieve four major goals: 

1. reducing new HIV transmissions; 

2. increasing access to care and improving health 
outcomes for people living with HIV; 

3. reducing HIV-related health disparities; and 

4. achieving coordination in the national HIV 
response.7 



9

Operational components of NHAS, such as the 
CDC’s Enhanced Comprehensive Prevention 
Plans (ECHPP) and the “Twelve Cities” approach8, 
represented early stages in a geographical 
approach to test-and-treat type strategies.

In 2015, the NHAS was updated and re-released 
with new language, new metrics, and a 2020 
timeframe for achievements.9 The four-goal 
structure remained, with added emphasis on 
increasing HIV testing and linking people who 
tested positive to care; providing support to retain 
PLHIV in care; achieving viral suppression; and 
focusing HIV efforts on populations most impacted 
by HIV, including people in the southern states.10

The Ending the HIV Epidemic Plan: 2019-present

In January 2019, the U.S. Department of Health 
and Human Services (HHS) released a ten-year 
operational plan setting targets of reducing the 
number of new HIV acquisitions in the United 
States by 75 percent by 2025, then by at least 90 
percent by 2030, through a geographic focus on 
the 48 hardest-hit counties and the seven states 
with a “substantial number of HIV diagnoses in 
rural areas.”11

This plan is known as the Ending the HIV Epidemic 
Plan (EHE) and rests on four pillars: 

1. diagnose; 

2. treat; 

3. prevent (through “proven interventions, 
including pre-exposure prophylaxis and syringe 
services programs;” and 

4. respond to “potential HIV outbreaks to get 
needed prevention and treatment services to 
those who need them.” 12

The fourth and final pillar relies on invasive, 
nonconsensual HIV surveillance activities known 
broadly as molecular HIV surveillance (MHS) or 
cluster tracing.13 Funding has been appropriated 
from Congress in fiscal years 2020 and 2021 to 
support the launch of the EHE.14

 The EHE in its current iteration is viewed by PLHIV 
networks as deeply flawed in its equation of PLHIV 
and our viruses to problems that must be surveilled 
without our consent and managed and controlled 
via treatment, rather than attending to us as equal 

citizens with claims to human rights and dignity. 
We also believe the EHE is necessarily limited 
in its effectiveness due to its overly biomedical 
focus, lack of attention to structural and social 
issues, and failure to partner with PLHIV networks 
on developing a robust plan and corresponding 
budget for meaningful community engagement at 
the federal and jurisdictional level.

The HIV National Strategic Plan: 2021-present

In early December 2020, as the second NHAS 
was coming to a close, HHS released a draft of a 
third iteration of a national HIV strategy for public 
comment, renaming it the HIV National Strategic 
Plan for 2021-2025 (HIV Plan). A major intent 
of the draft updated plan was to align the HIV 
national strategy with the EHE federal initiative. 
After a brief comment period, the outgoing Trump 
administration released the 2021-2025 update in 
mid-January 2021.15

PLHIV networks submitted comments on the draft 
plan, including the HIV Caucus and PWN. The 
HIV Caucus’s and PWN’s comments highlighted 
shortcomings and gaps in the draft plan, notably:

1. the importance of involving organized PLHIV 
networks;

2. serious concerns with the draft plan’s inclusion 
of the use of HIV genomic sequencing data, 
cluster detection, and data derived from MHS;

3. lack of inclusion of immigrants and sex workers 
in the draft plan;

4. inadequate attention to structural 
determinants of health, most notably racism 
and racial inequities; and 

5. inadequate attention to improving the quality 
of life of people living with HIV.16 

We are disappointed to note that PLHIV networks’ 
recommendations were largely not addressed in 
the final version of the HIV Plan released in January 
2021.

The below set of policy recommendations seeks to 
offer a path forward that will strengthen the overall 
domestic federal response through a specific focus 
on improving the structures themselves via which 
the HIV response is organized and led, along with 



10

Issue Area 1. Concretely Elevate 
Meaningful Involvement of People 
Living with HIV and Disproportionately 
Impacted Communities in the HIV 
Response

Meaningful Involvement of People Living with 
HIV: Defining the Issue

CDC’s Notice of Funding Opportunity PS20-2010 
acknowledges that “[r]eaching and maintaining 
viral suppression among people with HIV is the 
most effective way to reduce new infections.”17 
Biomedical tools needed to meet this already exist, 
such as antiretrovirals, pre-exposure prophylaxis, 
and post-exposure prophylaxis. The primary 
impediments to “ending the HIV epidemic” are 
structural and social; thus, visible, organized, and 
effective leadership by PLHIV in all aspects of the 
HIV response is more important than ever.

PLHIV are, by necessity, intimately familiar with 
factors that place individuals and communities 
at risk for acquiring HIV in the first place, such 
as barriers to accessing care and treatment and 
challenges to living a full and healthy life with 
dignity. When PLHIV are effectively involved in 
program and policy development, implementation, 
and monitoring, the relevance and effectiveness 
of strategies improve. Moreover, raising visibility of 
PLHIV and elevating their voices and experiences 
can help decrease HIV-related stigma and 
discrimination.

Meaningful involvement of people with HIV/
AIDS (MIPA) is a globally recognized principle first 
articulated in the Denver Principles in 1983 and 

endorsed by the United Nations Programme on 
HIV/AIDS (UNAIDS), the body that coordinates 
global action on the HIV/ AIDS epidemic.18 As 
UNAIDS explains, at its most basic level, MIPA does 
two important things: 

1. Recognizes the important contribution that 
people living with and affected by HIV/AIDS 
can have in the response to the epidemic as 
equal partners; and 

2. Creates a space within society for involvement 
and active participation of PLHIV in all aspects 
of that response.19

The HIV Caucus has put forth a body of work that 
further articulates MIPA within a modern U.S. 
context to acknowledge that MIPA must fully 
integrate a lens around racial, gender, class, and 
other axes of power and privilege to be truly 
“meaningful.” The HIV Caucus definition of MIPA 
goes beyond merely accounting for HIV-positive 
status to include representation and expertise 
from constituencies that are disproportionately 
affected by the epidemic. Within the U.S. and 
territories, this means that true MIPA must account 
for regional differences as well as intentionally 
developing and supporting leaders living with HIV 
from marginalized communities, especially Black 
and Latinx people, youth, people who use drugs, 
immigrants, the LGBTQ community, cisgender and 
transgender women, people with incarceration 
experience, sex workers, people aging with HIV, 
and so many others. 

There is no “one-size-fits-all” model to assure 
meaningful engagement of community, and it 
takes time for government and public health 
partners to build trust with communities that 
have been harmed by multiple systems. Through 
real and ongoing partnership with organized, 
constituency-led formations that reflect most 
impacted communities, like PLHIV networks, these 
nuances can be addressed over time.

Involving PLHIV networks in decision-making 
and implementation translates into concrete 
benefits for public health leadership, including: 
pre-existing community trust and cultural humility 
that facilitates development and implementation 
of strong programs; a real-time sense of 
challenges and opportunities on the ground; 

concrete improvements to major policies guiding 
that response in the U.S. as of July 2021– the HIV 
Plan and the EHE. Again, because the HIV epidemic 
and response are situated within and rest on 
broader systems, this document also identifies 
some policy areas of broader focus that must be 
considered as foundational to creating a safe, 
dignified, and rights-based environment for people 
living with and most vulnerable to acquiring HIV.

ISSUE AREAS AND 
RECOMMENDATIONS 



11

informed analysis of the myriad and complex 
effects of interlocking stigma and discrimination; 
increased effectiveness of policies and programs; 
and improved sustainability of projects and 
organizations.

This space within society can be formalized 
through various mechanisms. For example, in 
the Ryan White Part A program, jurisdictional 
planning councils composed of individuals who 
make decisions about the allocation of resources 
are legislatively mandated to meet requirements 
including “reflectiveness” of the local epidemic 
and “representation” in filling various types of 
membership categories.20 The legislation also 
mandates that 33 percent of planning council 
members are people who receive Ryan White 
Part A services and who do not have a conflict 
of interest as staff, paid consultants, or board 
members of Part A funded entities.21 In addition, 
guidance followed by the Global Fund reflects clear 
commitments to this type of structured civil society 
participation by requiring its Country Coordinating 
Mechanisms to “show evidence of membership of 
people that are both living with and representing 
people living with HIV” and of people from and 
representing “key populations.”22

MIPA: Opportunities to Strengthen Meaningful 
Involvement of People Living with HIV in the 
Federal Domestic HIV Response

The federal domestic HIV response can be 
strengthened through true partnership with PLHIV 
networks. The collective voices and organized 
leadership of PLHIV, as represented in national and 
local PLHIV networks, must be viewed as essential 
to crafting or changing HIV policy; prevention, 
care, and treatment guidelines; data collection and 
surveillance practices; the HIV research agenda; in 
the design of HIV service delivery; and in all aspects 
of monitoring and evaluation. The best way to 
achieve this is by consulting and involving PLHIV 
networks as critical stakeholders and partners at 
every level of the policy and program decision-
making that so profoundly affect our lives. 

True MIPA requires resources, planning and 
accountability, and these must be included in the plan 
with commensurate metrics, indicators, strategies, 
and funding.

Currently, neither the HIV Plan nor the EHE have 
real mechanisms that incorporate the core tenants 
of MIPA: organized, ongoing, and meaningful 
engagement with PLHIV. The HIV Plan does not 
explicitly require federal agencies, efforts, or 
initiatives to partner with PLHIV networks and 
lacks any specific accountability to the community 
of PLHIV. While PS20-2010, an implementation 
component of the EHE, acknowledges the 
importance of community engagement as 
part of its’ “respond” pillar and requires that 
25 percent of funds be designated towards 
“community engagement,” the CDC’s definition of 
engagement23 is limited and poorly defined. 

Similarly, the three national advisory bodies 
providing guidance to federal agencies on HIV 
policy – the President’s Advisory Council on HIV/
AIDS (PACHA), the CDC/HRSA Advisory Committee 
on HIV, Viral Hepatitis and STD Prevention and 
Treatment (also known as CHACHSPT or CHAC), 
and the Office of AIDS Research Advisory Council 
(OARAC) -- currently have no formal guidance 
mandating organized involvement from PLHIV 
networks, although some of them require 
representation of PLHIV.24

Established in 1993 during the Clinton 
administration, the Office of National AIDS Policy 
(ONAP) is tasked with coordinating an integrated 
response to the domestic and global HIV epidemic, 
specifically on matters of prevention, treatment 
and care. ONAP also oversaw community 
engagement efforts, utilizing both virtual and in-
person mechanisms to hear from, connect with, 
and be accountable to PLHIV.25 

Unfortunately, the Trump administration 
shut down ONAP, leaving a significant gap in 
coordination and dismantling an avenue for 
community engagement and feedback on federal 
HIV policy and initiatives like the HIV Plan and 
EHE.26 

The Biden administration recently reconstituted 
ONAP as part of the Domestic Policy Council and 
appointed Harold Phillips, a Black, gay man openly 
living with HIV, as director to lead that office.27 This 
is a positive step forward in embodying meaningful 
involvement of people living with HIV. To support 
that, it is more important than ever that this newly 



12

constituted ONAP be equipped to meet the needs 
of PLHIV. Doing so requires ONAP to be robustly 
staffed, resourced, and supported to lead the 
federal response, and to directly engage PLHIV 
networks as part of its mandate.

Recommendations for Issue Area 1 - Meaningful Involvement of People Living with HIV

Recommended Agency, 
Federal Body, or Policy

Recommended Action(s)

White House/Office of the 
President of the United 
States

1. Require ONAP staffing structure to include diverse PLHIV from the com-
munities most impacted by the epidemic, including Black gay and bisexu-
al men, Black cisgender women, and transgender women of color.

2. Recharter PACHA, CHAC and OARAC to each include at least two standing 
seats for designated representatives of the HIV Caucus, to be filled by the 
HIV Caucus utilizing representatives of our own choosing.

Department of Health and 
Human Services

1. The Office of HIV/AIDS and Infectious Disease Policy should develop a 
formal and regular process to solicit input from, engage and consult with 
the HIV Caucus, as the representative collective of all U.S.-based national 
PLHIV networks.

2. Amend the HIV Plan to include measurable metrics for formal 
engagement of PLHIV networks.

3. Amend the EHE and future funding related to it to:

4. Redefine community engagement beyond resourcing already developed 
plans, including paid consultation and decision-making on all aspects of 
the EHE by PLHIV networks;

5. Apply such a commitment to community engagement across the EHE 
plans – beyond but including the “cluster detection and response” pillar.

6. Amend the EHE, the HIV Plan, and require future HIV initiatives to require 
MIPA indicators for federal, state, and local advisory and decision-making 
bodies with purview over HIV, including local EHE jurisdictional planning 
processes. The required MIPA indicators should include meaningful PLHIV 
engagement and leadership from the communities most impacted by the 
domestic epidemic.

PLHIV have been responsible for mass shifts 
in the ways that HIV is understood, prevented, 
treated, and addressed: our activism, choices, and 
actions have built organizations, fought stigma, 
and advanced science. We are a powerful and 
underutilized resource that, when supported and 
engaged appropriately, can dramatically improve 

efficacy of public health interventions and 
programs, reduce HIV transmission, and improve 
quality of life and health outcomes for PLHIV. 
The federal response can structurally achieve this 
by making a formal commitment to measurable 
MIPA.



13

Issue Area 2. Proactively Create an 
Affirming Human Rights Environment for 
People Living with HIV: Address Stigma; 
Eliminate HIV Criminalization and Halt 
Molecular HIV Surveillance

2A. Addressing HIV-Related Stigma.

HIV-Related Stigma: Defining the Issue

HIV-related stigma and other intersectional stigmas 
persist among and against PLHIV. Intersectional 
stigma refers to the ways that multiple kinds 
of stigmas - around gender identity, sexual 
orientation, socioeconomic class, mental health, 
history of drug use, incarceration, and/or sex 
work - are compounded for some PLHIV.28 These 
have deleterious impacts on people’s lives, as 
they experience further marginalization from 
communities and institutions. Intersectional 
stigma also can result in being targeted by multiple 
punitive laws and policies, as well as bias and 
discrimination in health care, law enforcement, 
employment and education. 

Where most of the literature places HIV-related 
stigma either as a psychodynamic model 
(how people feel) or related to a public health 
outcome (clinical usage), PLHIV experience 
stigma throughout every part of their lives. Legal 
frameworks such as HIV criminalization provide 
powerful proof of institutionalized stigma. 
Stigma affects how PLHIV find support,29 whether 
PLHIV are successful in pursuing education and 
employment,30 and overall quality of life31.

The result of these stigmas is often seen in the 
lack of social protections provided to the diverse 
communities of PLHIV. Criminalization based on 
HIV-status is one clear aspect of this, yet PLHIV 
face multiple vulnerabilities. Punitive laws around 
sex work and drug use affect PLHIV, as well as 
how intensive policing disproportionately affects 
the Black community, people of transgender 
experience, people with disabilities, and 
immigrants in the U.S. The EHE notes that HIV-
related stigma, homophobia, and transphobia are 
contributing barriers to a successful HIV response, 
yet there is no clear initiative in the $670 million 
plan to address and dismantle these barriers.32 

In order to address these issues, the Global 
Network of People with HIV/AIDS (GNP+) 
developed the People Living with HIV Stigma 
Index (Stigma Index).33 The Stigma Index is a 
community-led way to document stigma in a 
country and develop action plans to address it. 
The Stigma Index has been conducted in over 100 
countries with over 100,000 people living with HIV 
involved.34 In the U.S., the attempt to conduct the 
Stigma Index was cut short due to funding.35 

HIV-Related Stigma: Opportunities to Strengthen 
the Federal Response

The HIV Plan envisions “every person with HIV 
ha[ving] high-quality care and treatment and 
liv[ing] free from stigma and discrimination,” and 
HIV-related stigmas in the form of interpersonal, 
community, health system, and structural stigma 
and discrimination are acknowledged as a barrier 
to achieving public health goals throughout 
it.36 HIV-related stigma is framed as a problem, a 
challenge to overcome, and a barrier throughout 
the HIV Plan, which proposes some concrete and 
useful strategies to address this: developing and 
implementing campaigns and resources to reduce 
HIV-related stigma;37 training health care staff on 
stigma and discrimination;38 increasing health 
literacy among patients; supporting communities 
to address HIV-related stigma;39 reframing public 
health and HIV messaging campaigns that 
may perpetuate stigma;40 and developing and 
implementing evidence-based interventions 
designed to reduce HIV-related stigma and 
discrimination in public health and health 
care systems41. Indeed, HIV-related stigma and 
discrimination may be the problem and barrier 
to achieving HIV prevention, care, and treatment 
goals most consistently identified throughout the 
HIV Plan.

Despite this overwhelming acknowledgment 
that HIV-related stigma represents a tremendous 
barrier, there is only one indicator within the HIV 
Plan that holds the federal response accountable 
to address this. It holds measurable success 
solely at the individual level, suggesting the use 
of a 10-item questionnaire to assess whether 
individuals diagnosed with HIV are experiencing 
reduced stigma.42 The HIV Plan and broader 
federal HIV response would benefit from ensuring 



14

that its metrics to assess success in reducing or 
eliminating HIV-related stigma are grounded in 
what PLHIV are asking for and that they seek to 
address individual, community, and structural HIV-
related stigma and discrimination.

Recommendations for Issue Area 2A - Addressing HIV-Related Stigma

Recommended Agency, 
Federal Body, or Policy

Recommended Action(s)

Department of Health and 
Human Services

1. In partnership with PLHIV networks, identify specific stigma-reduction 
activities that health departments, AIDS Service Organizations (ASOs) and 
Community-Based Organizations (CBOs), health clinics and other partners 
in the HIV response can engage in.

2. Require grantees to address employment barriers at all levels for PLHIV as 
an important way to combat stigma.

3. Resource PLHIV networks to develop and implement stigma-reduction 
initiatives that reflect the intersectional kinds of stigma that impact the 
local community of PLHIV.

HIV National Strategic Plan 1. Center the lived experience of intersectional stigma amongst PLHIV, 
inclusive of Black, Indigenous, and other people of color; people of 
transgender experience; gay and bisexual men; sex workers; people who 
use drugs; immigrants; and people who are incarcerated and in other 
institutional settings.

2. Utilize data collection tools and interventions that go beyond individual 
feelings and examine structural change, such as, the GNP+ Stigma Index 
2.0. This could include building and resourcing PLHIV networks.

Ending the HIV Epidemic 
Plan

1. Require jurisdictions to have clear, actionable, resourced community-led 
initiatives to reduce HIV-related stigma and other intersectional stigmas.

2. Identify resources that work towards community-led stigma reduction 
and community resilience building in its portfolio.

3. Promote advocacy efforts to remove punitive laws and policies and 
acknowledge how they contribute to HIV-related stigma.



15

HIV Criminalization: Opportunities to Strengthen 
Federal Leadership

Both the HIV Plan and EHE advise state 
governments to reform or repeal HIV 
criminalization laws and practices,50 but do 
not provide resources or requirements in their 
respective plans. 

EHE does not require its priority jurisdictions to 
address criminalization in their plans,51 leaving it 
up to each jurisdiction to decide for themselves 
whether to address their respective HIV 
criminalization laws.52 

The HIV Plan recognizes the detrimental impact 
HIV criminalization has on PLHIV, noting how it 
fuels HIV-related stigma and discrimination.53 To 
achieve the goal of ending HIV-related stigma and 
discrimination, the HIV Plan provides one strategy 
that calls for reforming state HIV criminalization 
laws to be rooted in science and public health 
strategies.54 It also identifies the need to educate 
legislators, prosecutors and law enforcement on 
HIV transmission risks.55

Federal leadership on the HIV response has an 
important role to play in creating an affirming 
legal, social, and political climate for people living 
with and vulnerable to HIV to engage in health 
care and have all their human rights protected. 

2B. Eliminating HIV Criminalization

HIV Criminalization: Defining the Issue

HIV criminalization is the unjust use of criminal 
laws, policies, and practices to police, regulate, 
control, and punish PLHIV based on their HIV-
positive status. HIV criminalization laws exist at 
the state level and vary in scope from state to 
state.43 HIV-specific laws may criminalize a range 
of activities including alleged HIV non-disclosure 
prior to sex, potential or perceived HIV exposure 
through many different means, or unintentional 
transmission of the virus.44 Although these laws 
do not exist in every state or territory in the U.S., 
PLHIV have been convicted or received sentence 
enhancements based upon their HIV status even 
when no HIV-specific statute exists,45 and even 
when no risk of HIV transmission was scientifically 
possible.46 

By contributing to an environment where PLHIV 
can be targeted and punished, HIV criminalization 
laws present a deterrent to achieving 
federal HIV prevention and care goals, while 
institutionalizing HIV stigma as part of the legal 
system. Furthermore, data from several states 
with HIV criminalization laws provide evidence 
of racial and gender bias in their application, 
disproportionately enforced against Black and 
Latinx gay and bisexual men and cisgender and 
transgender women.47

HIV criminalization inflicts long-lasting harm 
on PLHIV, their families, and their communities. 
A prosecution or investigation related to HIV 
status itself and negative media attention may 
lead to violations of confidentiality, job loss, 
housing insecurity, complications with custody 
arrangements, and more. A conviction under 
an HIV criminalization law may lead to a person 
being placed on a sex offender registry, which 
has implications for stigma, childcare, housing, 
employment, food security, and mental and 
emotional well-being.48 Thus, the practice of 
criminalization is in direct opposition to strategies 
that seek to improve access to and sustained 
connection to prevention and treatment methods 
for the most vulnerable populations.49 



16

2C. Declare a Moratorium on Molecular 
HIV Surveillance Until Adequate 
Safeguards Protecting the Privacy and 
Autonomy of People Living with HIV Are 
Implemented

Molecular HIV Surveillance: Defining the Issue

Molecular HIV surveillance (MHS) refers to the 
practice of using HIV genetic material to compare 
with other HIV genomic sequences to determine 
whether acquisitions are similar enough to be 
related to each other and therefore linked. For 
PLHIV, MHS begins in the clinical setting by 
which during a medical visit, often early in an 
individual’s diagnosis, blood is drawn and from 
it HIV genetic material is sequenced, stored in a 
database, and shared with other databases. For 
public health purposes, MHS is primarily used for 
“cluster detection,” or the practice of identifying 
instances when it appears there may be multiple 
linked HIV acquisitions appearing within a short 
amount of time, thereby triggering a public health 
investigation and response. Of notable concern, 
the processes of HIV genomic sequencing, data 

Recommendations for Issue Area 2B - Eliminating HIV Criminalization

Recommended Agency, 
Federal Body, or Policy

Recommended Action(s)

HIV National Strategic Plan 1. Draw clear connections between criminalization and the disparate health 
outcomes of various groups such as Black, Indigenous, and other people 
of color, sex workers, and those who use drugs.

2. Strengthen the focus on negative consequences of criminalization on 
access to and retention in HIV care and treatment.

Ending the HIV Epidemic 
Plan

1. Acknowledge the federal government’s role in creating HIV 
criminalization laws and make equal commitments to repeal these laws.

2. Require EHE jurisdiction plans to include clear commitments to support 
state efforts to reform or repeal HIV criminalization laws as a condition for 
funding. 

3. Call for EHE jurisdictions that are being funded to engage with PLHIV 
who have experienced incarceration to address the residual impacts of 
criminalization, including access to adequate treatment and care.

Congress 1. Pass a Repeal Existing Policies that Encourages and Allow Legal 
(REPEAL) HIV Criminalization Act that is consistent with current HIV 
decriminalization advocates’ understanding and strategy and that 
incentivizes states to reform or repeal their respective laws. 

storage, and data sharing -- essential to MHS -- 
are conducted without an individual’s consent 
and knowledge.

As PLHIV networks, we strongly oppose these 
practices for several reasons that generally fall 
into the following categories, some of which are 
interlinked: 

1. Lack of informed consent from PLHIV;

2. Lack of consultation or meaningful 
engagement with PLHIV in development 
and implementation of MHS;

3. Wide variation in state-level data sharing 
environments and legal protections for MHS 
data;

4. Risk of potential data misuse in civil, 
immigration, and/or criminal proceedings;

5. Concerns about breaches of privacy and 
confidentiality; and

6. Lack of consistent standards for 
competency in the HIV disease investigation 
intervention workforce to attend to 
sensitivities around stigma, culture, and 
violence.



17

Lack of consent from and consultation with people 
living with HIV. 

PLHIV generally do not know, nor have 
consented, to having our HIV genomic sequence 
data collected, shared, stored, and utilized in 
this way by public health authorities. This is a 
fundamental breach of trust. Due to the lack of 
informed consent, MHS may undermine trust in 
the health system, deterring people from seeking 
HIV screening and testing in the first place and 
from engaging in health care once diagnosed. 
This presents a serious problem for “ending the 
HIV epidemic” efforts. PLHIV tend to be from 
communities that already have justifiable distrust 
of medical and research institutions, as well as 
public health authorities, and may have made 
significant efforts to overcome that distrust to 
participate in their health care.56 

HIV clinicians and health care providers frequently 
go to great lengths to ensure safety and 
confidentiality for their patients – and cannot 
opt out of the use of this medical information for 
surveillance purposes.57 

While PS20-2010, which is an implementation 
component of the EHE, acknowledges the 
importance of community engagement as 
part of its “respond” pillar and requires that 
25 percent of funds be designated toward 
“community engagement,”58 this is too little, too 
late, considering that several years ago, the CDC’s 
PS18-1802 mandated funded health departments 
to tackle MHS as a core component of their 
prevention efforts59. 

Wide variation in state-level data sharing 
environments and legal protections for MHS data. 

Laws protecting the privacy of health data and 
permitting sharing and use of molecular HIV 
data vary widely from state to state, and there 
is no current national standard that would 
uniformly protect misuse of this data for people 
living with HIV.60 The National Association of 
State and Territorial AIDS Directors (NASTAD) 
produced an analysis of the legal and regulatory 
HIV data privacy environment in ten states and 
found wide variation in how well HIV data is 
protected and under what conditions personally 
identifiable data may be shared without the 

person’s consent, including sharing HIV data with 
law enforcement.61 In particular, NASTAD’s report 
found that:

“In general, statutes provided health 
departments with authority to disclose 
personally identifiable HIV data without 
consent (emphasis added) for the following 
general purposes: surveillance, investigation, 
or control of communicable disease; 
treatment, payment, research, or health care 
operations; justifiable public health need. 
Within this broad statutory authority, a few 
states enumerated specific allowable and 
unallowable health department HIV data-
sharing activities (particularly for data-sharing 
related to law enforcement and research). 
However, the vast majority of statutory 
schemes used more general language 
giving discretion to health departments and 
their legal counsel to act under fairly broad 
authority as long as the statute’s purposes 
were met. This lack of specificity in state laws 
places great importance on health department 
internal data-sharing policies and gatekeeping 
functions.”62

While every state had protections for reducing 
data shared with law enforcement, states vary 
on the strength of the legal protections in place 
to compel a health department to produce HIV 
data, and which data may be shared, for law 
enforcement purposes. Ultimately, much is left up 
to the discretion of the health department’s legal 
counsel. Further, there is substantial variation in 
legal authority to share personally identifiable 
information of PLHIV for research purposes.63

Risk of potential data misuse in civil, immigration, 
and/or criminal proceedings. 

As acknowledged in the HIV Plan, over 30 states 
still have laws criminalizing PLHIV, and even more 
prosecute PLHIV under other general criminal 
laws, including assault.64 Among PLHIV, Black 
and Latinx people, sex workers, queer and trans 
people,65 immigrants, those who are unhoused or 
marginally housed,66 people who use drugs, and 
people who live with mental illness are already 
frequently targeted by law enforcement.67 In 
criminal prosecutions for alleged HIV exposure, 



18

prosecutors may seek to introduce evidence 
that the defendant or plaintiff is part of a 
transmission cluster.68 Judges, prosecutors and 
juries may be biased due to stigma and may also 
not understand the science enough to know its 
limitations (for example, MHS cannot currently 
demonstrate direct transmission, only whether 
viruses are closely related). For immigrants of 
any legal status, it is unclear what protections 
exist if MHS data were presented in immigration 
proceedings. This creates further vulnerability for 
communities already vulnerable to surveillance 
and policing.

Concerns about breaches of privacy and 
confidentiality. 

Attention from public health departments 
and from media linked to “cluster detection” 
investigations can disclose private health 
information of PLHIV, even inadvertently. One 
newspaper in Seattle went so far as to publicly 
identify a street on which an “HIV outbreak” 
was happening and to name that the people 
involved were unhoused, sex workers, and/or drug 
users.69 This type of disclosure presents a risk of 
further targeting from police for PLHIV. Worse, it 
is well documented that PLHIV have lost jobs,70 
housing, and even their lives71 as a consequence 
of disclosure of HIV status. These types of 
irresponsible actions by public health officials can 
literally put our lives at risk.

Health department workforces do not 
have consistent standards for training and 
implementation that protect people living with 
HIV from possible harm. 

While the CDC recognizes the need for the public 
health workforce to receive training in culture 
and diversity,72 it is unclear to what extent contact 
tracers, disease investigators, or cluster detection 
responders are receiving specific training in the 
nuances of HIV stigma, disclosure and privacy 
sensitivities, and risks for community violence 
and criminalization. Cultural competence is a 
necessary skill for members of the public health 
workforce engaged in such sensitive activities, and 
recommendations from experts support ensuring 
that under-represented populations, such as 
PLHIV, are involved in developing effective health 
solutions.73 

Dr. George Ayala and other PLHIV have called for 
not offering partner notification services where 
PLHIV and other socially marginalized groups are 
criminalized74 if the risks of doing so outweigh the 
benefits.75 Anecdotally, there are many examples 
of public health HIV contact tracing activities 
paving the way for inadvertent disclosure of HIV-
positive status in employment settings, housing, 
and with family members. Significant and ongoing 
workforce training is necessary to ensure safety for 
people living with and vulnerable to HIV who may 
be involved in cluster detection investigations.

In summary, the practice of MHS, cluster 
detection, and corresponding public health 
investigations create vulnerabilities for 
inadvertent disclosure; stigma; risks to physical 
safety, employment, and housing; and even 
criminal liability for PLHIV. MHS and cluster 
detection practices must be stopped immediately 
and have no place in any national HIV plan until 
significant steps are taken to address these 
concerns. Sharing of HIV data is a sensitive issue 
and must be thoughtfully considered in real, 
meaningful partnership with PLHIV networks 
before it is further implemented.

Opportunities to strengthen HIV data privacy 
and sharing protections  

Currently, MHS comprises one of four pillars 
of the EHE.76 Recent federal budgets have 
prioritized CDC funding for cluster detection and 
response77, and the CDC is essentially requiring 
health departments funded under EHE efforts 
systematically implement and/or scale MHS 
activities.78 The HIV Plan also highlights MHS 
and cluster detection and response among 
“activities that exemplify improved integration 
and coordination of efforts” -- which is one of the 
four primary goals of the HIV Plan.79 Further, the 
HIV Plan explicitly names the need to improve 
coordination “across partners to quickly detect 
and respond to HIV outbreaks” as a strategy.80

The HIV Plan explicitly calls for “enhanc[ing] the 
quality, accessibility, sharing, and use of data, 
including HIV prevention and care continuum 
data and social determinants of health data,” and 
goes on to describe data sharing across disparate 
systems as a top priority.81 Such an expansion of 



19

MHS without strong and consistent data privacy 
and confidentiality laws, coupled with boundaries 
on the sharing of HIV genomic sequence data and 
identifiable information about PLHIV, is dangerous 
and irresponsible.

Health departments describe the CDC’s 2011 
guidance on HIV data privacy and security as a 
crucial resource in informing their own internal 
data privacy policies.82 That guidance explicitly 
states that “data collection and use policies should 
reflect respect for the rights of individuals and 
community groups and minimize undue burden.”83 
It calls for training of individuals who have access 
to identifiable health information in policies and 

procedures for data sharing, laws governing data 
sharing, procedures for storing data – but does 
not require any training in, for example, specific 
sensitivities around HIV stigma, criminalization, 
and other dangers of HIV-positive status 
disclosure.84

PLHIV networks are not alone in their call for 
adequate legal safeguards and community 
education on MHS. AIDS United’s Public Policy 
Committee has issued a strong set of principles 
and recommendations to guide the use of MHS.85 
We support many of these recommendations 
and have provided additional recommendations 
below:

Recommendations for Issue Area 2C - Molecular HIV Surveillance

Agency, Federal Body, 
or Policy

Recommended Action(s)

Department of Health 
and Human Services

1. Work in collaboration with PLHIV networks to develop and implement a 
process to obtain informed consent from PLHIV before HIV genomic se-
quence data is collected, analyzed, stored, and/or shared.

2. Issue a public statement that affirmatively clarifies that HIV genomic se-
quence data cannot be used in criminal, civil, or immigration proceedings.

3. Work in collaboration with the HIV Caucus to develop consistent national 
standards on HIV data security, sharing, and storage that explicitly prohibit 
sharing HIV genomic sequence data with law enforcement, immigration 
enforcement, employers, and other relevant entities and which limit the 
amount of time HIV data can be stored and how it may be shared.

Ending the HIV Epidemic 
Plan

1. Remove the requirement that EHE-funded jurisdictions conduct MHS activ-
ities.

2. Prohibit EHE-funded jurisdictions from conducting MHS activities if they 
cannot meet the security, storage, and data-sharing standards described 
above.

HIV National Strategic 
Plan

1. Remove MHS and all cluster detection and response activities from the HIV 
Plan until the above issues have been addressed.

White House Office of 
National AIDS Policy

1. Declare an immediate moratorium on the further collection, use, and 
sharing of MHS data in public health efforts until the above standards are 
achieved.

2. Develop community engagement standards that require active involve-
ment from PLHIV networks in any future development of HIV-related data 
collection, use, sharing, and storage.



20

Centers for Disease 
Control and Prevention

1. Require that any jurisdictions funded to conduct MHS prove they can meet 
the standards created above.

2. Require certification from state and local jurisdictions that public health 
officials will comply with CDC data security guidance and only share data 
with law enforcement pursuant to a valid, enforceable court order issued 
following notice to the subject(s). Effective notice should both inform 
subjects that their data has been sought and provide them an opportunity 
to oppose disclosure in court. 

3. Fund initiatives to educate public health department staff and legal 
counsel on the legal safeguards and required processes and protections for 
disclosing public health information to law enforcement. 

4. Make funding for MHS and research based on MHS contingent upon such 
certification. 

5. Partner with the HIV Caucus to develop and implement a curriculum for 
relevant public health workforce staff inclusive of content on HIV stigma, 
HIV criminalization, cultural sensitivities on HIV, and risks of HIV status 
disclosure.

6. Require that all staff involved in disease investigation, contact tracing, 
partner notification, MHS, and cluster detection response receive this 
training. 

7. Require that HIV genomic sequence data be stored in an anonymized 
form that cannot be re-identified. This should include the use of advanced 
anonymization techniques that make molecular surveillance data resistant 
to re-identification by algorithms or humans.

8. Develop standardized, publicly available disclosures to ensure that PLHIV 
are informed of routine and potential use of their identifiable health 
information, including any contemplated use of individual, identifiable 
treatment information and resistance testing results, and including their 
right to object to having their data used in this  this way. 



21

Issue Area 3: Addressing Inequities in 
the Federal Response: Attend to Racial 
and Gender Disparities

Addressing Racial and Gender Inequities in the 
Federal Response: Defining the Issue

Racial Inequities. HIV has a disproportionate 
impact on Black, Latinx, and Indigenous 
communities which is inadequately addressed by 
every domestic HIV plan. The CDC has consistently 
found that Black and Latinx communities are 
disproportionately affected by HIV compared to 
other racial/ethnic groups. For example, while 
Black individuals represented 13 percent of the 
U.S. population, they represented 41 percent of 
PLHIV in 2018 CDC data.86 While Latinx individuals 
represented 18 percent of the population, 23 
percent of PLHIV were Latinx in the same year.87 In 
the U.S., gay and bisexual men - particularly Black, 
Latinx and Indigenous - constitute the majority 
of new HIV diagnoses, yet this is not reflected 
in funding and resources for community-led 
programs.88 

Among cisgender and transgender women, Black 
women are disproportionately affected by HIV as 
compared to women of other races/ethnicities.89 
From 2014-2018, the rate of new HIV acquisitions 
among cisgender Black women was 13 times that 
of white women and four times that of Latinx 
women.90 Further, in 2017, Black Americans had 
an age-adjusted HIV-related death rate of 6.6 per 
100,000, compared to 0.9 per 100,000 for white 
Americans.91 

The impacts of structural racism92 are not limited 
to relative rates of HIV acquisition. They impact 
all areas of life, including economic opportunity 
and justice, well-being, and mental health care. 
Until structural racism and racism within the HIV 
epidemic is explicitly recognized and addressed, 
the HIV epidemic will not end. Expanding 
biomedical responses without attention to the 
racism that prevents Black, Latinx, and Indigenous 
people from accessing HIV prevention, care, and 
treatment in the first place will only further the 
racial disparities in the HIV epidemic. Instead, the 
focus must be on structural and social drivers of 
health; dismantling oppressive, discriminatory 
systems; and understanding and ameliorating the 

effects of understandable medical mistrust.

Gender Inequities. Women, including women 
of trans experience, account for about a quarter 
of the domestic HIV epidemic.93 In 2018 alone, 
an estimated 7,189 cisgender women and 554 
transgender women were newly diagnosed with 
HIV in the United States.94 The single largest 
percentage increase in the number of persons 
living with HIV from 2014 through 2018 by 
gender was among transgender women.95 Gender 
disparities are also racialized and geographic: 
Black, Latinx, and other women of color represent 
a majority of women living with HIV in the United 
States and a majority of new HIV acquisitions.96

Black cisgender women, who live at the 
intersection of anti-Black racism and gender-
based oppression, are disproportionately 
impacted by HIV.97 Cisgender women with HIV 
are concentrated in the South, which in 2018 had 
more reported HIV acquisitions (3,988) among 
adult women and adolescents than any other 
region.98 

In health care settings, stigma and bias against 
transgender people may compromise access to 
quality services, as well as policies restricting what 
can be covered by payer sources. Transgender 
people face discrimination in all aspects of 
life, from housing to health care, from public 
accommodations to policing, from employment 
to education. Again, race and gender intersect 
in complex ways: Black, Indigenous, and other 
transgender people of color face even higher rates 
of discrimination and violence in these settings. 
In health care settings, stigma and bias against 
transgender people itself may compromise access 
to quality services, as well as policies in the form 
of structural stigma that restrict what can be 
covered by payer sources. While important moves 
have been made to restore non-discrimination 
protections, for transgender people living with 
HIV, it can still be nearly impossible to find 
culturally relevant and non-stigmatizing health 
services and providers.

 Transgender and cisgender women living with 
and at risk for HIV face severe challenges to  
accessing services, health care, and information 
they need, including socioeconomic and 



22

structural barriers such as poverty, cultural 
inequities, and intimate partner violence (IPV).99 
Women living with HIV are more likely to 
receive some care, but less likely to be retained 
in care, as compared to the statistical average 
person living with HIV.100 

The rates of death among PLHIV reflect this 
disparity, as cisgender women, transgender 
women, Black people, people of more than 
one race, and people in the South saw 
smaller gains in their rates of deaths from HIV 
from 2010 until 2018 than other PLHIV, and 
women are more likely to die of HIV related 
complications than men.101 Higher percentages 
of cisgender women and transgender women 
who are clients of the Ryan White HIV/AIDS 
Program are living below the federal poverty 
line than men.102 Fifty-five percent of women 
living with HIV report experiences of intimate 
partner violence, and the associated trauma 
can also lead to poor treatment outcomes and 
higher transmission risks.103 Without focused 
attention to racial and gender inequities, these 
interrelated disparities will continue to persist. 

Racial and Gender Disparities: Opportunities 
to Strengthen Federal Leadership

As noted above, both the EHE and the HIV 
Plan do not provide enough focus and 
concrete steps to address gender or racial 
disparities as they pertain to PLHIV. The racial 
inequalities of the federal response can be 
more firmly grasped by reviewing the way 
funding is provided to grantees as part of the 
EHE plan.104 The first three Notice of Funding 
Opportunities105 make no mention of racial 
disparities as it pertains to HIV, except to give 
an example of a program focused upon Black 
men who have sex with men.106 However, 
addressing the needs of Black, Latinx, and 
Indigenous people who are disproportionately 
affected by the epidemic is not mentioned in 
any of these three funding opportunities.107 
Even when Black, Latinx, Indigenous, and 
people of color do begin to be noted as under-
served populations, there is no focus outside 
of viral suppression108 or access to PrEP.109 
HIV-related stigma as it intersects with racial 
disparities is only mentioned in one funding 

opportunity, and there it is not substantively 
addressed.110 

As with racial disparities, cisgender women111 and 
transgender people are generally not prioritized in 
funding decisions. When women are mentioned, 
it is generally in the context of PrEP access or 
testing,112 not sexual and reproductive health care 
needs, care-taking responsibilities, or the other 
unique needs of women. Even when women 
are addressed in funding opportunities, these 
opportunities are grossly underfunded when 
compared to the scale of the issues.113 

While racial disparities have been more fully 
addressed in the HIV Plan, which includes 
concrete commitments to strengthen civil rights 
laws,114 its discussion of other social and structural 
drivers of health which result in racial disparities 
is lacking.115 While these issues116 are addressed 
more broadly as they relate to all under-served 
populations, there are no commitments to address 
these issues directly as to how they impact Black, 
Latinx, and Indigenous communities.117 

Similarly, gender disparities also receive a more 
complete, yet still inadequate treatment in the HIV 
Plan. We are pleased to see that transgender and 
Black women are noted as priority populations.118 
Further, the need to scale up trauma-informed 
services is included as a goal.119 The need 
for comprehensive, supportive services for 
transgender individuals as well as a discussion of 
the challenges that exist is present; however, the 
indicators of success are biomedical indicators 
of viral suppression.120 Still, the HIV Plan makes 
no mention of sexual and reproductive health,121 
of gender specific disparities in employment 
and housing, and other challenges to care 
and well-being that exist, such as care-taking 
responsibilities, discrimination based upon 
gender, and mistrust of medical professionals. 



23

Recommendations for Issue Area 3 - Inequities in the Federal Response

Recommended Agency, 
Federal Body, or Policy

Recommended Action(s)

White House/Office of 
National AIDS Policy

1. Explicitly center racial equity throughout the federal HIV response by 
including Black, Latinx, Indigenous, and other people of color as priority 
populations in funding opportunities.

2. Explicitly include racial and gender disparities as elements to be addressed 
in all grant funded opportunities. 

Department of Health and 
Human Services

1. Fund via grants Black-led organizations addressing the epidemic through 
a racial equity lens.

2. Fund programs led by women and people of trans experience to address 
the HIV epidemic through a gender equity lens.

End the HIV Epidemic Plan 1. Require that jurisdictional resources be targeted for Black, Indigenous, 
and other people of color, especially those who are also gay and bisexual 
men, people of trans experience, people who use drugs, sex workers, and 
immigrants.

2. Create funding opportunities that specifically address social and structural 
drivers of health as they relate to Black, Indigenous, and other people of 
color.

3. Prioritize funding for organizations run by members of the communities to 
be served. 

4. Require grantees to include intimate partner violence screenings in health 
care and supportive service settings. 

5. Require jurisdictions to create and fund programs that provide care-taking 
services for the dependents of PLHIV while they are receiving services. 

HIV National Strategic 
Plan

1. Include a racial and gender equity lens that is informed by the direct 
inclusion of community by hiring them as staff in federal agencies and 
paying them for their work.

2. Utilize multiple factors to gauge the success of the HIV Plan outside of viral 
suppression.



24

must be fully decriminalized; HIV-related sentence 
enhancements for sex work must be repealed; 
and sex workers, especially from Black, Indigenous 
and people of color communities, should be 
meaningfully engaged as partners in designing 
and implementing HIV prevention, care, and anti-
stigma efforts.

Immigrants Living with HIV: Defining the Issue  

Immigrants have been excluded from most 
health services due to legislative and regulatory 
exclusions.130 Even with the advent of the ACA, 
millions of undocumented individuals remain 
unable to access health care and other services 
that support access to health care.131 In addition, 
fear for safety and language injustice persist as 
barriers, particularly in the last five years.

Regulatory barriers have been erected to prevent 
immigrants living with HIV from accessing systems 
of care they need and have a right to, including 
health care.132 These barriers have fueled medical 
mistrust and service avoidance among immigrant 
communities, specifically Black, Latinx, and Asian 
communities – communities that intersect with 
the HIV Plan’s named priority populations.133 
For example, in 2019, the Trump administration 
promulgated a rule radically redefining the 
“public charge” test, essentially punishing some 
immigrants for relying on public programs like 
health care, housing and nutrition programs.134 
While the Trump administration’s rule has been 
blocked, the chilling effect135 will be long-lasting 
and will exacerbate health disparities. 

In addition to traditional medical service 
providers, the U.S. Immigration and Customs 
Enforcement (ICE) has been utilized and is 
tasked with providing care to immigrants in 
detention centers.136 Carceral systems, including 
ICE detention centers, have consistently failed 
to provide quality and competent health care to 
immigrants living with HIV. ICE’s gross medical 
negligence has led to the death of some.137 
Roxsana Hernández and Johana Medina, both 
transgender women, sought asylum in the 
U.S. based on their HIV status, but were denied 
medical care and died in ICE custody. Despite 
the legal requirement to provide immigrants in 
detention with medical treatment and care, ICE 

Issue Area 4. Add Sex Workers and 
Immigrants Living with HIV as Priority 
Populations Throughout the Federal 
Response.

Sex Workers Living with HIV: Defining the Issue

Sex workers are at a greater vulnerability for 
acquiring HIV and other STIs than the general 
population.122 For transgender women, those who 
had ever done sex work were over 25 times more 
likely to be living with HIV (15.32 percent) than 
the general population (0.6 percent).123 This is due 
to various social and structural factors that create 
substantial barriers to HIV prevention, treatment, 
and care, such as criminalization of sex work, lack 
of employment protections for sex workers, and 
intersections between poverty and sex work, 
which may increase vulnerability in the first place. 

Criminalization of sex work takes many different 
forms, including targeted and often racist,124 
homophobic, and/or transphobic policing of 
people perceived to be engaged in sex work 
under various forms of loitering laws, “condoms as 
evidence” laws--which create a structural barrier to 
sex workers protecting their own sex health-- and 
intersections with HIV criminalization laws.125

Sex workers are also at increased risk for violence 
from community and from law enforcement,126 
and, in many U.S. states and territories, bear the 
brunt of HIV-related prosecutions, convictions, 
and sentence enhancements.127 Practices such 
as “cluster detection and response,” under the 
umbrella of MHS activities embedded in the 
EHE’s implementation, have even led to media 
disclosures that specifically name streets where 
sex workers and people who use substances live 
and/or work.128 HIV services and government 
programs may themselves stigmatize and 
structurally exclude people in the sex trade.129

To truly end the HIV epidemic, the HIV Plan must 
assure that competent and non-stigmatizing 
HIV services are provided to sex workers and 
that sex workers can safely participate in 
HIV services and benefit from other publicly 
funded programs without fear of judgment, 
criminalization, exclusion, or confidentiality 
violations. To ensure this is possible, sex work 



25

While the final version of the HIV Plan 
does minimally mention sex work and 
immigration status in the context of stigma 
and discrimination,141 it fails to articulate 
a commitment to address these needs 
systematically throughout the federal response, 
for example within HIV prevention and care 
efforts; nor does the HIV Plan articulate concrete 
strategies that could better meet the goal of 
reducing HIV-related stigma and discrimination 
for these populations, improve their engagement 
in health care, and eliminate barriers to HIV 
prevention efforts.

refused to provide HIV treatment for Hernandez, 
resulting in her death.138 The HIV Plan cannot 
ignore the detrimental impact detention and 
incarceration has on migrants living with HIV 
-- this must be included in any plan to address 
the HIV epidemic, regardless of someone’s 
immigration status.

For non-English speaking immigrants, language 
barriers may play a role in exacerbating health 
disparities for marginalized communities.139 
The HIV Plan briefly mentions language barriers 
but fails to convey the ways that culture is 
embedded in language, and thus that translation 
and interpretation go beyond a straightforward 
word-for-word translation. Language justice is 
about access, in terms of its accessibility and 
engagement with communities. It is about making 
health terms and information understood and 
communicated within cultural context, with 
cultural relevance, so that community members 
can make thoughtful health choices and assert 
their decisions. To achieve the prevention and 
care goals of the HIV Plan, immigrants of any legal 
status and immigrants who do not speak, read, 
or write English must be assured high-quality HIV 
prevention, care and facilitative services; must be 
able to participate safely and without financial 
or legal repercussions in HIV programs; and must 
have unfettered access to treatment.

Opportunities to Strengthen the Federal 
Domestic HIV Response for Sex Workers and 
Immigrants 

The HIV Plan currently recognizes five populations 
as “priority populations”: 

1. gay, bisexual, and other men who have sex 
with men, in particular Black, Latino, and 
American Indian/Alaska Native men;

2. Black women;

3. transgender women;

4. youth aged 13-24; and

5. people who inject drugs.140

Notably absent from the HIV Plan are sex workers 
and immigrants, two communities that have 
specific needs in relation to HIV and which are 
often structurally absent from decision-making 
and advisory processes, for a range of reasons. 



26

Recommendations for Issue Area 4 - Sex Workers and Immigrants as Priority 
Populations

Recommended 
Agency, Federal Body, 
or Policy

Recommended Action(s)

White House/Office of 
the President

1. Advocate for legislation to prohibit the practice of using condom possession 
as evidence of sex work

2. Modify or eliminate existing federal policies that conflate sex work and 
human trafficking and that prevent sex workers from accessing services such 
as health care, HIV prevention, and support.

3. Work with the Office of the Global AIDS Coordinator to repeal “anti-
prostitution pledge” requirements entirely from PEPFAR and anti-trafficking 
funds.

4. Ensure health care access regardless of an individual’s immigration status.

5. Prioritize funding to community-based organizations led by and/or serving 
immigrant populations.

Department of Health 
and Human Services

1. Implementation plans for the HIV Plan should address training of health 
care professionals to end stigma and discrimination against those who are 
involved in the sex trade.

2. Prioritize funding for harm reduction and rights-based health care services 
for sex workers of all genders and all ages.

3. Require meaningful engagement of Black, Latinx, Indigenous, and other 
people of color communities-- especially PLHIV, people who use drugs, 
immigrants, sex workers, people of trans experience, and gay and bisexual 
men--in HIV planning and resourcing in every health jurisdiction.

4. Fund CBOs to strategize, inform, and implement programs and policies in the 
HIV response.

5. Develop and implement community-accountability models for public health 
jurisdictions to ensure that those most marginalized are indeed reached.

Centers for Disease 
Control and Prevention

1. Issue a statement that explains how laws that rest on condom possession as 
evidence of sex work harm HIV prevention, testing, and clinical care efforts 
and may place sex workers at risk for violence.

Congress 1. Pass the SAFE Sex Worker Study Act of 2021

2. Pass the HEAL for Immigrant Families Act of 2021

3. Pass the American Dream and Promise Act of 2021

4. Repeal exclusions and eliminate policies that prevent and/or hinder 
individuals with commercial sex and drug-related convictions from applying 
for and/or receiving student loans, public housing or housing assistance, 
public assistance, or other government-funded social services.



27

HIV National Strategic 
Plan

1. Add sex workers as a priority population.

2. Add immigrants, of any legal status, as a priority population.

3. Explicitly recommend resourcing for community-led organizations and 
programs for people of color, especially in the following communities: 
people living with HIV, people who use drugs, immigrants, sex workers, 
people of trans experience, and gay and bisexual men.

4. Discourage “general public” approaches in the HIV response. This “general 
public” affirms a white, cisgender, able-bodied, middle class norm that 
excludes everyone else.

5. Explicitly name and call for addressing the criminalization of sex work and 
stigma and discrimination against sex workers as a barrier to HIV prevention, 
care, and anti-stigma efforts.

6. Prioritize funding and partnership opportunities with community-based 
organizations led by and for sex workers.

7. Prioritize funding for in-person interpreters and other translation services for 
people with limited English proficiency.

8. Prioritize funding immigrant-led and immigrant- serving community-based 
HIV organizations for communication and health literacy programs.

9. Require AIDS service organizations (ASOs) to staff certified medical 
interpreters and/or train staff on proper interpreter utilization. 

10. Ensure that translation includes understanding cultural contexts and 
frameworks for health, disease, and treatment options.

End the HIV Epidemic 
Plan

1. Require EHE-funded jurisdictions to demonstrate a commitment to 
decriminalizing commercial sex work, including addressing loitering laws 
and condoms as evidence laws.

2. Require EHE-funded jurisdictions to include resources for community 
mobilization of sex workers to respond to violence and discrimination.



28

Issue Area 5. Affirmatively Commit to 
Improving Quality of Life for People 
Living with HIV.

Improving Quality of Life for People Living with 
HIV: Defining the Issue

Although there are more than a million PLHIV 
in the United States, quality of life for PLHIV has 
long been an afterthought in the federal HIV 
response. While the HIV Plan makes “improv[ing] 
the health-related quality of life” for people aging 
with HIV a “key commitment”142 and also seeks to 
both develop and scale interventions to improve 
quality of life for people living with HIV,143 it does 
not do so in a broad and inclusive way. Both 
descriptions of quality of life included in the HIV 
Plan focus on viral loads, viral suppression, and 
other health-related outcomes.144 While these 
biomedical markers are components of the quality 
of life for PLHIV, they are not an acceptable proxy 
for a well-rounded understanding of well-being or 
quality of life. 

Instead, the HIV Plan and other federal responses 
to HIV must value and create concrete metrics 
for emotional, mental, psychological, spiritual, 
and physical wellness - irrespective of viral 
suppression. Quality of life for PLHIV must be 
measured by a key set of metrics in any plans to 
address the HIV epidemic, and the federal HIV 
response must acknowledge that commitments 
to quality of life for people living with HIV must 
continue as long as people living with HIV are 
here. The human right to quality of life for people 
living with HIV, and the federal government’s 
responsibility to assure that, does not end even 
when we get to zero new HIV acquisitions. Thus, 
quality of life for people living with HIV deserves 
its own pillars in the HIV Plan and the EHE, along 
with commensurate strategies, metrics, and 
indicators to measure success.

Quality of life is interrelated with social and 
structural drivers of the HIV epidemic and of worse 
health outcomes for some PLHIV. It is interlinked 
with and inseparable from upholding human 
rights for people living with HIV, as described 
above. For decades, far too little attention has 
been paid in the federal government’s HIV 
response to the social and structural drivers of 

inequity. While the HIV Plan includes some of 
these important social and structural factors, such 
as systemic racism, safe and affordable housing, 
access to culturally competent, trauma-informed 
health care, and gender disparities, it could be 
strengthened by concrete commitments to 
strategies and solutions. The EHE is completely 
missing an explicit analysis of and commitment to 
social and structural drivers of inequity. Until these 
factors are addressed explicitly and with firm 
commitments, any plan to address the national 
HIV epidemic will be unsuccessful and will not 
adequately address the needs of PLHIV.

There is a lack of consensus in the academic and 
medical community on the specific dimensions 
of quality of life, but it is generally understood 
as being multifaceted and concerning a person’s 
own perception of their well-being and level of 
functioning in important areas of their life.145 
There are various scales that have been utilized 
in measuring the quality of life of people living 
with HIV.146 One omnipresent problem is that most 
of these metrics focus on biomedical markers, 
and inadequate research has been done on what 
quality of life means for people living with HIV 
beyond these markers.

Additional research is required to determine what 
scale and metrics are the best measure(s) of the 
quality of life for people living with HIV, with an 
understanding that this metric may be different 
for individuals who are Black, Indigenous, and 
other people of color; cisgender; transgender; sex 
workers; immigrants; and of different geographies, 
due to racism, poverty, homophobia, transphobia, 
and lack of language justice.147

Opportunities to Strengthen the Federal 
Domestic HIV Response for Quality of Life for 
People Living with HIV

Priorities that continue to arise in conversations 
with our PLHIV networks concerning quality 
of life include employment; economic justice; 
health care costs and quality; the availability of 
non-stigmatizing and high-quality sexual and 
reproductive health care for PLHIV; access to 
trauma-informed care and services; and ending 
enacted, internalized, interpersonal, community, 
and institutional stigma. 



29

Any plan to end the HIV epidemic must center 
these priorities and include them as concrete 
metrics in its plan.

Recommendations for Issue Area 5 - Quality of Life for People Living with HIV

Recommended Agency, 
Federal Body, or Policy

Recommended Action(s)

Department of Health and 
Human Services

1. Promulgate regulations requiring private insurers to uphold the HIV Plan’s 
minimum standard of care for all PLHIV.

2. Lead the creation of report cards148 on the state of quality of life for PLHIV 
in the country and the quality of care provided by federally funded 
programs and services.

National Institutes of 
Health

1. Fund research into developing a standard quality of life assessment for 
people living with HIV focused on quality of life outside of biomedical 
indicators.

Centers for Medicare and 
Medicaid Services

1. Adopt the minimum standard of care developed in the HIV Plan and 
incorporate it into care provided by CMS.



30

HIV National Strategic Plan 1. Set a minimum standard for quality of life for PLHIV which includes:

a. Opportunities for employment and education for all people living 
with HIV.149

b. Increasing the ease of transferring benefits across jurisdictions.

c. Access to long-term sustainable housing for people living with HIV.150  
This should include senior housing for aging PLHIV and housing for 
PLHIV with dependents. 

d. Services for people living with HIV should incorporate access to 
nutrition service programs, including SNAP.151

2. PLHIV who receive health care from any payer source should have a 
minimum standard of care152 which:

a. Is culturally relevant and affirms and funds the sexual and 
reproductive health care needs of people with HIV at all life stages and 
of all gender identities, including transgender women.153 This should 
include reporting mechanisms which are easily understood by and 
communicated to people living with HIV;

b. Provides mental health services and the choice of mental health 
provider to people living with HIV;

c. Provides affordable health care coverage, where total health care 
costs (inclusive of premiums, medications, copays, etc.) do not exceed 
9.83 percent154 of the income of a person living with HIV; and

d. Practices trauma-informed care, including screening and intervention 
for lifetime abuse and intimate partner violence, in HIV clinical and 
community-based settings.

3. Express support from the federal government for the repeal of HIV 
criminalization, which acknowledges the role it played in advancing these 
laws; education to state legislatures on their harms; and conditioning 
funding on their modernization or repeal.

4. The incorporation and study of accurate stigma metrics.155

5. Require that all materials on HIV-related services be translated into the 
primary languages spoken in the jurisdiction and incorporate translation 
services into clinical and supportive service settings for people living with 
HIV.

6. Incorporate quality of life surveys into federally funded clinical and 
supportive service settings, with the aim of using the data to connect 
people to additional support, including psychological, spiritual, and 
emotional support systems.



31

5A. Establishing a Strong Safety Net for 
People Living with HIV

Economic Justice and Employment for People 
Living with HIV

Economic justice does not have a set definition 
but can be understood as principles and practice 
that allow for PLHIV to live without negative 
employment or economic consequences related 
to their health status, disability, sex, gender or 
gender expression, sexual orientation, family 
responsibilities, and/or race or ethnicity. 

Maintaining access to health care and economic 
stability can entrap PLHIV in poverty. Policies for 
ongoing eligibility for Supplemental Security 
Income (SSI)/Social Security Disability Income 
(SSDI), Medicaid/Medicare, AIDS Drug Assistance 
Programs (ADAPs), Housing Opportunities for 
Persons with AIDS (HOPWA), and other programs 
designed to improve health and well-being, 
are complex and serve as disincentives to 
employment for people living with HIV or other 
chronic health conditions and disabilities.156 The 
lack of assistance to understand and navigate 
these policies can also serve as a disincentive 
or barrier to employment for enrolled PLHIV 
concerned about protecting their health and well-
being and that of their families.

In addition, the lack of portability of benefits can 
prevent PLHIV from relocating to environments 
where they might thrive. PLHIV who are 
economically reliant on or choose employment 
receive little to no access to employment-related 
information, services, or resources to enable well-
informed decisions about work or facilitate self-
determined plans for employment and economic 
health and well-being. 

Economic justice for PLHIV must also include 
a commitment to recruiting and training 
community members to join the expanded HIV 
workforce. PLHIV are the subject matter experts 
on programs that support PLHIV and are expert 
navigators. We encourage a creative approach to 
valuing lived experience as qualification for these 
positions beyond formal education requirements. 
When adding PLHIV to the HIV workforce, they 
must be at all levels of leadership, not simply 

relegated to the frontline staff, peer support staff, 
or testing and outreach. 

Access for all PLHIV to non-discriminatory, non-
stigmatizing employment-related information, 
services, and resources has not been developed 
in most of the country, nor prioritized by public 
health or workforce development systems, 
despite more limited access to disability benefits, 
and high rates of poverty, unemployment, and 
underemployment for PLHIV. The public health 
system response to HIV has deferred attention 
to employment needs of PLHIV to the workforce 
development system, which does not prioritize 
health and well-being strategies or outcomes, 
nor implement policies or training, to ensure 
effective, responsive service delivery based 
on understanding distinct needs and issues of 
priority populations disproportionately impacted 
by HIV.



32

Recommendations for Issue Area 5A - Economic Justice and Employment

Recommended Agency, 
Federal Body, or Policy

Recommended Action(s)

White House/Office of the 
President of the United 
States

1. ONAP to be responsible for convening a federal and community 
workgroup including representation of the Employment and Training 
Administration (ETA) of the Department of Labor, the Department of 
Education, the Department of Housing and Urban Development, the 
Department of Justice, the Social Security Administration, the Centers 
for Medicaid and Medicare Services (CMS), HHS Health Resources and 
Services Administration HIV/AIDS Bureau (HRSA/HAB), PLHIV networks, 
and other community leaders to outline strategies to eliminate economic 
and employment inequities for PLHIV and facilitate self-determined 
transitions to work without risk to health and well-being.

HIV National Strategic Plan 1. Establish access to benefits counseling/advisement for PLHIV enrolled in 
or eligible for SSI/SSDI, Medicaid/Medicare, ADAPs, HOPWA, and other 
programs designed to improve health and well-being, for well-informed 
and well-supported employment-related decision-making and transitions 
of PLHIV allowing maximal protection of health care, financial, and 
housing supports.

2. Assign responsibility to the Social Security Administration (SSA), CMS, 
HRSA/HAB, and HUD Office of HIV/AIDS Housing (HUD/OHH) for 
collaborating with community leaders to evaluate program policies for 
impacts on considering and navigating employment transitions for PLHIV 
and for identification of updates needed to policies designed to reduce 
barriers and disincentives to working and optimize health and well-being.

3. Design portability of benefits between jurisdictions so PLHIV can more as 
needed or desired.

4. Require a formal HIV workforce recruitment and training program to hire 
PLHIV and commit to a targeted number or percentage of PLHIV in the 
HIV workforce.

5. Revise policy of the HRSA/HAB to allow direct service responses to 
employment needs of PLHIV within the Ryan White HIV/AIDS Program 
(RWHAP), recategorizing employment services as allowable for funding 
among RWHAP supportive services addressing core needs of PLHIV.

6. Ensure implementation of a RWHAP-centered community-led PLHIV 
employment initiative, with designated funding from the ETA, and ETA’s 
collaboration in its implementation with HRSA/HAB.

7. Establish ongoing training in the AIDS Education and Training Centers 
(AETCs) of HRSA/HAB for HIV service providers on employment service 
delivery, linking and partnering with the workforce development and 
vocational rehabilitation systems, and interactions between work 
earnings and health care/treatment coverage, financial, and housing 
benefits.



33

Housing as a Human Right and Necessary 
Precursor to Care and Treatment for People 
Living with HIV

It has long been understood by PLHIV, researchers, 
activists, and policy makers that housing is a form 
of health care for people living with HIV.157 Despite 
this knowledge, housing instability remains a 
primary concern for PLHIV,158 as many federal 
housing programs are underfunded and under-
resourced.

PLHIV are at a much higher risk of being unstably 
housed or homeless than the general population. 
In 2016, the U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD) Office of HIV/
AIDS Housing published data showing that an 
estimated 145,366 PLHIV in the United States, 
or about 12 percent of all PLHIV, have a current 
unmet housing need.159 This data showed that 44 
percent needed ongoing assistance to pay rent, 
36 percent sought supportive housing placement, 
and 20 percent had short-term emergency 
assistance needs to secure or maintain housing.160 

A lack of stable housing is not only an issue of 
a lack of shelter for PLHIV. Numerous studies 
have shown that it has a deleterious effect on 
the health outcomes for PLHIV, including mental 
health outcomes.161 A lack of stable housing also 
affects a person’s ability to obtain and maintain 
employment.162

These effects are not experienced equally by 
all PLHIV. Instead, there are stark differences in 
housing instability, and its effects, based upon 
an individual’s race, age, and gender. People 
of transgender experience are more likely to 
be unstably housed than cisgender men and 
women.163 Black, Indigenous, and other people 
of color are also more likely to be homeless in 
America when compared to the national average 
and white American.164 In order to effectively 
implement any federal response to addressing 
the HIV epidemic and the health and equality of 
life for PLHIV, housing insecurity will need to be 
addressed.

Congress 1. Require SSA to update long-unchanged work incentive policies and 
calculations to increase the ability of PLHIV and other people with 
disabilities and chronic health conditions to attempt working with 
increased health coverage, financial, and housing security.

2. Require SSA to fund the establishment of accessible online information 
resources accurately reflecting policies applicable in each U.S. state and 
territory.

3. Allocate additional funds for SSA’s Work Incentives Planning and 
Assistance (WIPA) program to more realistically scale up staffing 
proportionate to needs of PLHIV and other disabled SSI/SSDI beneficiaries 
for individualized in-person and remote benefits counseling/advisement, 
from considering work through transitions to employment.

4. Include designated funds to address employment needs of PLHIV through 
public health and workforce development collaboration in the upcoming 
reauthorization of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA).



34

Recommendations for Issue Area 5A - Housing

Recommended Agency, 
Federal Body, or Policy

Recommended Action(s)

White House/Office of the 
President of the United 
States

1. Call for HOPWA to be funded at $600 million in the President’s Budget 
Request.

2. Call for Increased funding for federal housing programs relied on by 
people living with HIV such as Housing Choice Vouchers, rental assistance, 
and subsidized housing in the President’s budget request.

Department of Justice 1. Enforce the Fair Housing Act to address discrimination against women; 
immigrants; LGBTQ individuals; Black Indigenous, and other people of 
color; and people with criminal convictions.

HIV National Strategic Plan 1. Include concrete housing metrics in the implementation plan, such as: 90 
percent of PLHIV are in long-term stable housing.

2. Include concrete commitments that people aging with HIV have access to 
senior housing.

Ending the HIV Epidemic 
Plan

1. Consider housing availability and create metrics and programs to increase 
housing access among people living with HIV in developing jurisdictional 
plans.

2. Address the quality of life metrics created by the HIV Plan in creating 
jurisdictional plans.

Food and Nutrition Security for People Living 
with HIV

Many PLHIV rely on federally funded programs 
to access essentials like food and nutrition 
services, often through the Supplemental 
Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP). This can 
be demonstrated by membership data collected 
by Positive Women’s Network - USA, which 
consistently indicates that between 40-50 percent 
of the women and people of trans experience 
living with HIV who are members of the 
organization depend on SNAP to feed themselves 
and their families.165 

These food assistance programs are critical for 
PLHIV to receive good nutrition, which in turn 
supports overall health, helps with immune 
system function, and can help maintain a healthy 
weight, which helps with the absorption of HIV 
medicines. Reducing the stress associated with 
food insecurity also improves the overall quality of 
life for PLHIV. Further, a recent study showed that 
the rate of HIV diagnoses is associated with a state 
income limit for SNAP eligibility, meaning the 
higher the income limits a state imposes is related 

to higher numbers of HIV acquisitions.166

Currently, many SNAP eligibility requirements are 
harsh, and the benefits are insufficient. In 2018, 
SNAP benefits averaged only $1.40 per person, 
per meal.167 Even the maximum benefit, which is 
the equivalent of $1.86 per meal, does not cover 
the cost of a meal in 99 percent of continental 
counties and Washington, DC.168 Benefits at this 
level cannot support an individual’s or family’s 
nutritional needs. While the benefits are intended 
to be supplemental, many participants contend 
that the benefits levels are too low to assist them 
with purchasing food for the month.

SNAP is a program with very low rates of fraud, 
but its administrative burdens often make it so 
those who need the benefits cannot access them. 
While some of the harsh requirements have been 
relaxed during the pendency of the COVID-19 
pandemic, more long term changes are required 
for the benefits of the program to be realized 
by everyone who needs them. These burdens 
include lengthy applications, high documentation 
requirements, in-person interviews, and the need 
to recertify or reapply to maintain benefits. 



35

These requirements prevent some individuals who 
are eligible for SNAP from receiving them, though 
they could use the benefits to lift themselves and 
their families out of poverty. An example of this 
can be seen in a recent Michigan study, which 
found that half of SNAP recipients who lost their 

benefits during their first year of enrollment 
were still eligible for SNAP when they left the 
program.169 These burdens and the inadequate 
benefits hinder a program which could be an 
important mechanism to improving the quality of 
life for PLHIV.

Recommendations for Issue Area 5A - Food and Nutrition Security

Recommended Agency, 
Federal Body, or Policy

Recommended Action(s)

Department of Agriculture 1. Account for local and regional costs of living in determining SNAP benefit 
levels.

2. Continue the SNAP extensions of the 3-month work requirement period 
implemented during the COVID-19 pandemic.

3. Incentivize states to remove additional administrative SNAP burdens and 
work requirements.

4. Simplify the administrative burdens of SNAP by continuing the 
elimination of in person visits, permitting online recertification, increasing 
waivers, telephonic benefits applications, and extending recertification 
periods. This could also be achieved by providing funding to states to 
receive the technology required for implementing telephonic benefit 
applications and online recertifications.

Congress 1. Repeal the ban on SNAP and TANF for individuals with felony drug 
convictions contained in 21 U.S. Code § 862a.

2. Increase SNAP’s maximum allotment by 15 percent and raise the 
minimum benefit to $30 per month from its current level of $16 per 
month.



36

5B. Improving Health Care Access and 
Quality of Health Care for People Living 
with HIV

Health Care Access for People Living with HIV

About 50 percent of PLHIV in the U.S. are not 
receiving regular HIV-related care.170 It is therefore 
unlikely that these individuals, and potentially 
more, are receiving other kinds of care they 
need, including mental health care, sexual and 
reproductive health care, and specialty care. A 
multitude of factors lead to this, but often, the 
prohibitive costs of health care, stigmatizing 
experiences in health care settings, and 
discrimination are to blame.

Twelve states have still not expanded Medicaid,171 
even given the incentives under the ACA and the 
recent COVID-19 relief packages. In states where 
Medicaid has been expanded, only 5 percent of 
people remain uninsured, compared to the 19 
percent in states where Medicaid has not been 
expanded.172 A majority of the states that have 
not adopted Medicaid expansion are in the South, 
where approximately 45 percent of all PLHIV in the 
United States reside.173 

Even the Ryan White HIV/AIDS Program fails to 
adequately provide the wrap-around services that 
clients need to be successful and live full, healthy 
lives. Further, out-of-pocket costs for prescription 
medications174 and copays for care visits can still 
be prohibitively expensive for PLHIV. Even with the 
benefits gained from the ACA, problematic health 
insurance practices, like copay accumulators,175 
are on the rise, which could also increase cost for 
PLHIV.

The federal response to HIV does not address 
the need for quality and non-stigmatizing sexual 
and reproductive health care for people already 
living with HIV.176 People of all genders living 
with HIV require sexual and reproductive health 
care; unfortunately, this is one of the areas where 
people living with HIV suffer from the greatest 
stigma, lack of understanding, and discrimination 
from health care providers. High quality, non-
stigmatizing sexual and reproductive health 
care for all PLHIV is crucial to ensure well-being. 
For transgender people living with HIV, finding 

gender-affirming care in a non-discriminatory 
setting is essential to health and well-being.177 
This is especially true as many states are currently 
undermining the rights of transgender individuals. 
Further, postnatal people who are living with HIV 
can face stigma and even criminalization for their 
choice to breastfeed. Access to abortion care, 
birth control, and other family planning tools are 
also severely restricted in many states. Culturally 
relevant, non-stigmatizing, and comprehensive 
sexual and reproductive health care is essential to 
the quality of life of PLHIV.

While the HIV Plan mentions trauma-informed 
care and service delivery models, no explicit 
commitments are mentioned, and it is not 
included in other areas of the federal response 
to HIV. It is well documented that people living 
with HIV live with trauma and its downstream 
effects at rates well above the general population. 
A lack of explicit commitments to providing care 
and services that are trauma-informed will lead 
to stigmatizing and harmful experiences for the 
PLHIV who access these care programs.

It is important to note that issues related to HIV 
related health care are not equally distributed 
among PLHIV. The brunt of these problems is 
borne by Black, Indigenous, and other people of 
color, LGBTQ individuals, immigrants, cisgender 
women, and transgender women living with HIV, 
who face co-occurring oppressions like racism, 
sexism, and economic oppression.



37

Recommendations for Issue Area 5B - Improving Health Care Access

Recommended Agency, 
Federal Body, or Policy

Recommended Action(s)

HIV National Strategic Plan 1. Revise the definition of quality of care to include a quality of life metric 
and a standard of care that is easily understood by PLHIV.

2. Make explicit commitments to integrate trauma-informed service 
delivery for people living with HIV in all federal plans to end the HIV 
epidemic, such as mandatory trainings on trauma-informed approaches 
for clinicians, providers and administrators; data collection on rates of 
intimate partner violence, post-traumatic stress disorder symptoms, 
substance use, depression, stigma, social isolation; implementation and 
evaluation of trauma-informed primary care models in clinics serving 
people living with HIV; integration of evidence-based responses to PTSD 
into existing funded clinical services, including therapy, psychiatry, 
medication adherence, and substance abuse treatment; and fostering 
collaborations between organizations addressing violence and trauma 
and those providing care and services to people living with HIV.

3. Develop a minimum standard of care for people with HIV who receive 
health care from any payer source. Such a standard should be adopted 
by CMS as well as by the Ryan White Program and any other payers. The 
following components should be included:
a. Culturally relevant care that affirms the sexual and reproductive 

health care needs of people with HIV at all life stages and of all gender 
identities, including transgender women.

b. High-quality clinical care – including affordable, accessible medication 
and insurance payment in areas where Medicaid has not been 
expanded under the ACA.

c. Trauma-informed care practices, including screening and intervention 
for lifetime abuse and intimate partner violence, in HIV clinical and 
community-based settings.

d. Services that facilitate PLHIV access to care as needed, including: 
childcare, transportation, substance use and mental health services, 
and housing.          

e. Define and implement a standard of gender-responsive care for 
people with HIV that includes the above sets of services. Prioritize 
funding for models that meet this standard within programs, such as 
the Ryan White Program. 

4. Acknowledge racial injustice as a driver of the epidemic and include these 
factors in the response.

5. Expand the response beyond biomedical solutions and consider the role 
of culture, structural drivers of health, and solving for root cause analysis.

White House/Office of the 
President of the United 
States

1. Support increased funding for the Ryan White HIV/AIDS Program to 
$2.768 billion in FY 2022.178

2. Support universal health care plans, including Medicare for All.



38

5C. Inclusion of Sexual and 
Reproductive Health and Rights for 
People Living with HIV

People of all genders living with HIV 
require sexual and reproductive health 
care; unfortunately, this is one of the sites 
where people living with HIV suffer from the 
greatest stigma, lack of understanding, and 
discrimination from health care providers. 
High quality, non-stigmatizing sexual and 
reproductive health care for all people living 
with HIV is crucial to ensure well-being and 
overall health. Yet, there is little mention 
in the HIV Plan ensuring quality and non-
stigmatizing sexual and reproductive health 
care for people living with HIV, limited to how 
it pertains to raising awareness of HIV and 
improving integrated services.179 The inclusion 
of the sexual and reproductive health and 
rights of people living with HIV is essential to 
ending the epidemic.

Ensuring High-Quality, Non-Stigmatizing, 
Trans-Inclusive, and Culturally Relevant 
Sexual and Reproductive Health Care for 
People Living with HIV

The first goal of the HIV Plan is “to prevent 
new HIV infections” by, in part, increasing 
awareness of HIV, increasing knowledge of 
HIV status, and increasing capacity of health 
care delivery systems to prevent and diagnose 
HIV.180 To meet this goal, the HIV Plan notes 
the need to better utilize non-primary care 
providers, such as STD specialty clinics, Title 
X family planning sites, and OB-GYN visits.181 
We echo the need to utilize opportunities and 

to increase competency of the public health 
workforce in providing care for people living 
with HIV, especially to people who may not 
have regular access to a primary care provider 
for whom these encounters may be one of 
their rare entry points into the health care 
system.

But more than just utilizing these providers 
as ways to diagnose and prevent HIV, the HIV 
Plan should prioritize the overall sexual and 
reproductive health needs of people living 
with HIV, regardless of viral suppression. Sexual 
health, sexual pleasure, and reproductive 
health care and rights are cornerstone human 
rights182 which must be a priority in the HIV 
response. It is not enough to increase testing 
and awareness in sexual and reproductive 
health care settings. The HIV Plan must 
consider the distinct sexual and reproductive 
health needs of people living with HIV. Also, 
cisgender women living with HIV who are 
receiving HIV-related medical care frequently 
are not offered sexual and reproductive 
health services or are referred elsewhere, even 
though women living with HIV are at elevated 
risk for gynecological complications.183

For transgender people living with HIV, it is 
especially important that gender-affirming 
care is provided and that providers and 
clinicians are well-versed on their options 
and rights. Transgender people face high 
rates of discrimination, stigma, and lack of 
trans-competent care in health care settings. 
According to the National Transgender 
Discrimination Survey, of surveyed 
participants, one in three transgender people 
delayed or avoided preventive health care out 

Department of Health and 
Human Services

1. Remove barriers to accessing 75/25 waivers through the Ryan White HIV/
AIDS Program.

2. Rescind 85 FR 29164, which expressly permits insurers to adopt copay 
accumulator adjustment policies (CAAPs), and implement a rule 
disallowing this practice.

Congress 3. Pass the HIV Epidemic Loan-Repayment Program (HELP) Act of 2021

4. Pass the Medicare For All Act of 2021

5. Pass the Equality Act of 2021



39

encounters with the health care system. They face 
higher maternal mortality rates, and once they 
have children, BlPOC individuals are also more 
likely to be limited in options of how to feed their 
children and steered away from breast/chest-
feeding. The HIV Plan must recognize the impact 
that racial health disparities, including structural 
racism, and poverty has on options PLHIV have 
children and to breast/chest-feed their children.

of fear of discrimination or disrespect.184 Moreover, 
in the reproductive health care context, in a study 
of obstetrician-gynecologists, 80 percent had no 
trans-specific health care training in residency and 
only 33 percent reported feeling comfortable in 
providing care to transmasculine patients.185

Addressing Breast/Chest-feeding for People 
Living with HIV

The HIV Plan does not address breast/chest-
feeding anywhere, although it does discuss HIV 
care as it relates to pregnant women186 on two 
occasions.187 These discussions focus on testing 
pregnant people for HIV, on which the health 
care system already receives a high rating,188 
and biomedical research into tools to prevent 
both HIV and pregnancy in women. The HIV 
Plan ignores and fails to advance whole swaths 
of the experience that must be navigated by 
people living with HIV who would like to become 
pregnant and parent.

Choices on how parents feed their infants are 
complex and multifaceted. People who parent 
should be given the full range of options, and a 
complete understanding of the risks and benefits 
of each, prior to making these decisions. In other 
countries, PLHIV are not discouraged from breast/
chest-feeding; rather, they are educated on their 
options to do so safely. Yet, the CDC discourages 
PLHIV from breast/chest-feeding and has not 
provided guidance to medical professionals on 
ways to assist patients who would like to breast/
chest-feed their children.189 We know PLHIV 
can have healthy, HIV-negative babies, and are 
capable of making informed decisions about 
breast/chest-feeding.190 However, they must be 
given support and information from their care 
team. Further, they should not fear criminalization 
or interventions from medical professionals or 
child protection systems in response to how they 
choose to feed their children.

These inadequacies in our systems of 
navigating pregnancy and breast/chest-feeding 
disproportionately affect Black and Latinx women, 
transgender, and gender non-conforming people, 
who acquire HIV at higher rates than the rest of 
the country and contend with the intersecting 
oppressions of racism, stigma, and sexism in 



40

Recommendations for Issue Area 5C - Sexual and Reproductive Health and Rights

Recommended Agency, 
Federal Body, or Policy

Recommended Action(s)

Department of Health and 
Human Services

1. Finalize and implement the proposed rule, “Ensuring Access to Equitable, 
Affordable, Client- Centered, Quality Family Planning Services,” RIN 0937-
AA11, which would strengthen the Title X family planning grant program 
and reverse the domestic gag rule.

2. Fully integrate comprehensive sexual and reproductive health care 
throughout the Ryan White Program.

3. Work with networks of people living with HIV to develop HIV-related 
guidelines on breast/chest-feeding to ensure they are up to date, reflect 
best practices and complexities of child feeding, and are consistent across 
disciplines; develop comprehensive postpartum guidelines for people 
living with HIV.191 

National Institutes of 
Health

1. Develop and promote a research agenda on breast/chest-feeding that 
leverages existing findings, seeks novel applications of relevant data, and 
addresses knowledge gaps.

2. Partner with other agencies to disseminate research findings in an 
accessible way to providers and people living with HIV.

HIV National Strategic Plan 1. Include goals and metrics that focus on improving the sexual and 
reproductive health of PLHIV, including metrics for increased rates of 
recommended second Pap smear screening for newly diagnosed women, 
counseling on fertility desires and intentions, and increased rates of 
screening for intimate partner violence among women living with HIV in 
care.

2. Support informed consent standards that accurately and fully inform 
people of the implications of transition-related care, regardless of age, 
gender, or gender expression.

3. Discuss and fund research into safe practices for people living with HIV to 
breast/chest-feed children.

Ending the HIV Epidemic 
Plan

1. Require jurisdictions to create and provide sexual and reproductive health 
care guidance for providers to deliver to people living with HIV which 
includes information on how to access transition-related care, pregnancy 
care, breast/chest-feeding care, and contraceptive care.

2. Require jurisdictions to fund programs for providing comprehensive, 
culturally competent sexual and reproductive health care to people 
living with HIV, such as training programs for providers and ways for 
people living with HIV to access funds to pay for transition-related care, 
pregnancy care, breast/chest-feeding care, and contraceptive care.

3. Require jurisdictions to take a firm stance against the criminalization of 
breast/chest-feeding for people living with HIV and to take affirmative 
steps to educate child welfare agencies within the jurisdiction on the 
science around people living with HIV breast/chest-feeding.



41

Congress 1. Pass the Real Education and Access for Healthy Youth Act of 2021

2. Pass the Women’s Health Protection Act of 2021

3. Pass the Equal Access to Abortion Coverage in Health Insurance (EACH) 
Act of 2021

4. Pass the Abortion Is Health Care Everywhere Act of 2021

Endnotes

1 See, e.g., U.S. People Living with HIV Caucus [hereinafter HIV Caucus], Opportunities and Mechanisms for Involving People 
Living with HIV/AIDS in the Nat’l HIV/AIDS Strategy’s Implementation (July 2011), https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ryFJk-akJQgFBiMx-
hkc-6widiME-2mf-/view; HIV Caucus, Moving Towards Positive Health, Dignity and Prevention (July 2011), https://drive.google.com/
file/d/1xv5K3eVKtcOc-UVoCz-tVBkvYCisSfkM/view.

2 See generally, Country and Regional Operational Plans, U.S. Dep’t of State, https://www.state.gov/country-operation-
al-plans (last visited June 24, 2021).

3 Elizabeth Guo et al., Eliminating Coverage Discrimination Through the Essential Health Benefit’s Anti-Discrimination Provi-
sions, 107 Am. J. Pub. Health 2 (2017), https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC5227931/.

4 Jennifer Kates & Lindsey Dawson, Insurance Coverage Changes for People Under the ACA, Kaiser Family Foundation (2017), 
https://www.kff.org/health-reform/issue-brief/insurance-coverage-changes-for-people-with-hiv-under-the-aca/.

5 Michael J. Mugavero et al., Health care system and policy factors influencing engagement in HIV medical care: piecing togeth-
er the fragments of a fractured health care delivery system, 52 Clinical Infectious Disease, suppl. 2, S238, S238-39 (2011), https://www.
ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC3106258/.

6 Off. of Nat. AIDS Pol’y, Exec. Off. of the President, National HIV/AIDS Strategy (2010) [hereinafter National Strategy], hivgov-
prod-v3.s3.amazonaws.com.

7 Id. at 9.

8 U.S Dep’t of Health and Human Services, 12 Cities Strategy, https://www.hiv.gov/sites/default/files/NHAS-HHS-12.pdf (last 
visited June 24, 2021).

9 Off. of Nat. AIDS Pol’y, Exec. Off. of the President, National HIV/AIDS Strategy Updated to 2020 (2015) [hereinafter Updated 
National Strategy], https://obamawhitehouse.archives.gov/sites/default/files/docs/national_hiv_aids_strategy_update_2020.pdf.

10 Id. at 8-11.

11 Off. of Infectious Disease and HIV/AIDS Pol’y, What Is Ending the HIV Epidemic in the U.S.?, HIV.gov (June 2, 2021), https://
www.hiv.gov/federal-response/ending-the-hiv-epidemic/overview.

12 Off. of Infectious Disease and HIV/AIDS Pol’y, Key Strategies in the Plan, HIV.gov (May 8, 2020), https://www.hiv.gov/feder-
al-response/ending-the-hiv-epidemic/key-strategies.

13 Positive Women’s Network-USA, Ending the Epidemic Requires Consent and Community Leadership, https://www.pwn-usa.
org/trainings-resources/policy-advocacy/ete-factsheet-2019/ (last visited June 28, 2021).

14 Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2020, Pub. L. No. 116-94; Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2021, Pub. L. No. 116-
260.

15 U.S. Dep’t of Health and Human Services, HIV National Strategic Plan: A Roadmap to End The Epidemic for the United 
States 2021-2025 (2021) [hereinafter HIV Plan], https://hivgov-prod-v3.s3.amazonaws.com/s3fs-public/HIV-National-Strate-
gic-Plan-2021-2025.pdf.

16 The comments expressed serious concern with the draft HIV Plan’s inclusion of the use of HIV genomic sequencing data, 
cluster detection, and data derived from molecular HIV surveillance. The comments further offered specific ways in which the draft 
HIV Plan could be strengthened, for example, by adding explicit commitments to employment and economic justice for PLHIV, 
sexual and reproductive health care for people of all genders living with HIV, and explicitly addressing the prevention, health care, 
and human rights needs of immigrants, of people of trans experience, and of sex workers. HIV Caucus Comments on National HIV 
Strategy, U.S. People Living with HIV Caucus (Dec. 13, 2020), https://www.hivcaucus.org/blog/hiv-caucus-comments-on-nation-

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ryFJk-akJQgFBiMxhkc-6widiME-2mf-/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ryFJk-akJQgFBiMxhkc-6widiME-2mf-/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1xv5K3eVKtcOc-UVoCz-tVBkvYCisSfkM/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1xv5K3eVKtcOc-UVoCz-tVBkvYCisSfkM/view
https://www.state.gov/country-operational-plans
https://www.state.gov/country-operational-plans
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC5227931/
https://www.kff.org/health-reform/issue-brief/insurance-coverage-changes-for-people-with-hiv-under-the-aca/.
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC3106258/
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC3106258/
http://hivgov-prod-v3.s3.amazonaws.com
http://hivgov-prod-v3.s3.amazonaws.com
https://www.hiv.gov/sites/default/files/NHAS-HHS-12.pdf
https://obamawhitehouse.archives.gov/sites/default/files/docs/national_hiv_aids_strategy_update_2020.pdf
http://HIV.gov
https://www.hiv.gov/federal-response/ending-the-hiv-epidemic/overview
https://www.hiv.gov/federal-response/ending-the-hiv-epidemic/overview
http://HIV.gov
https://www.hiv.gov/federal-response/ending-the-hiv-epidemic/key-strategies
https://www.hiv.gov/federal-response/ending-the-hiv-epidemic/key-strategies
https://www.pwn-usa.org/trainings-resources/policy-advocacy/ete-factsheet-2019/
https://www.pwn-usa.org/trainings-resources/policy-advocacy/ete-factsheet-2019/
https://hivgov-prod-v3.s3.amazonaws.com/s3fs-public/HIV-National-Strategic-Plan-2021-2025.pdf
https://hivgov-prod-v3.s3.amazonaws.com/s3fs-public/HIV-National-Strategic-Plan-2021-2025.pdf
https://www.hivcaucus.org/blog/hiv-caucus-comments-on-national-hiv-strategy


42

al-hiv-strategy; PWN’s Comment on the Draft HIV National Strategic Plan 2021-2025, Positive Women’s Network (Dec. 17, 2020), 
https://www.pwn-usa.org/pwns-comment-on-the-draft-hiv-national-strategic-plan-2021-2025/.

17 U.S. Dep’t of Health and Hum. Serv., Notice of Funding Opportunity, CDC-RFA-PS20-2010, 1, 3 (Jan. 23, 2020), https://
www.cdc.gov/hiv/pdf/funding/announcements/ps20-2010/CDC-RFA-PS20-2010.pdf.

18 The Denver Principles, UNAIDS (1983) https://data.unaids.org/pub/externaldocument/2007/gipa1983denverprinciples_
en.pdf

19 The Greater Involvement of People Living with HIV (GIPA), UNAIDS (2007) https://data.unaids.org/pub/briefingnote/2007/
jc1299_policy_brief_gipa.pdf

20 Health Res. and Servs. Admin., Ryan White HIV/AIDS Program Legislation (February 2021) https://hab.hrsa.gov/about-ryan-
white-hivaids-program/ryan-white-hivaids-program-legislation.

21 HIV Health Care Services Program, ch. 6A, subch.XXIV (codified at 42 U.S.C. § 300ff-12(b)(5)(C)).

22 The Global Fund, Country Coordinating Mechanism Policy Including Principles and Requirements, (2018), https://www.the-
globalfund.org/media/7421/ccm_countrycoordinatingmechanism_policy_en.pdf.

23 Notice of Funding Opportunity, CDC-RFA-PS20-2010, at 10; 13 (Jan. 23, 2020), https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/pdf/funding/an-
nouncements/ps20-2010/CDC-RFA-PS20-2010.pdf.

24 See Dep’t of Health and Hum. Serv., Charter of the CDC/HRSA Advisory Committee on HIV, Viral Hepatitis and STD Prevention 
and Treatment 1, 3 (2020), https://www.cdc.gov/faca/committees/pdfs/chachspt/chachspt-charter-508.pdf; Dep’t of Health and 
Hum. Serv., Charter - Office of AIDS Research Advisory Council 1, 3 (2018), https://www.oar.nih.gov/sites/default/files/OARAC_Char-
ter_2018_508.pdf; but see, Dep’t of Health and Hum. Serv., Charter - Presidential Advisory Committee on HIV/AIDS 1, 4, (2020) https://
hivgov-prod-v3.s3.amazonaws.com/s3fs-public/pacha-charter-2020.pdf.

25 See White House, President Obama, National HIV/AIDS Strategy (2009)  https://obamawhitehouse.archives.gov/administra-
tion/eop/onap/nhas/activities.

26 Dan Tracer, Report: Trump Closes Down White House Office of AIDS Policy, Queerty (Jan. 20, 2017) https://www.queerty.
com/report-trump-closes-white-house-office-aids-policy-20170120.

27 See Dep’t of Health and Hum. Serv., White House Appoints Harold Phillips to lead Office of HIV National AIDS Policy, (June 9, 
2021) https://www.hiv.gov/blog/white-house-appoints-harold-phillips-lead-office-national-aids-policy.

28 Lisa Bowleg et al. “It’s an Uphill Battle Everyday”: Intersectionality, Low-Income Black Heterosexual Men, and Implications for 
HIV Prevention Research and Interventions, 14 Psychology of Men & Masculinity 1, 25-34 (2013), https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/
articles/PMC3591486/.

29 Frank H. Galvan et al., HIV Stigma and Social Support among African Americans, 22 AIDS Patient Care and STDs 5, 423–436 
(2008), https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC2831751/.

30 Joseph S. Lightner et al., Associations of internalized and anticipated HIV stigma with returning to work for persons living with 
HIV, 16 PLOS ONE 6 (2021), https://journals.plos.org/plosone/article?id=10.1371/journal.pone.0252783.

31 William L.Holzemer et al., Exploring HIV Stigma and Quality of Life for Persons Living With HIV Infection, 11 J. of the Ass’n of 
Nurses in AIDS Care, no. 3,  May-June 2009, 161-168, https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/abs/pii/S1055329009000338.

32 What Is Ending the HIV Epidemic in the U.S.?, HIV.gov (June 2, 2021), https://www.hiv.gov/federal-response/end-
ing-the-hiv-epidemic/overview.

33 The People Living with HIV Stigma Index, https://www.stigmaindex.org/ (last visited June 28, 2021).

34 What is the People Living with HIV Stigma Index?, The People Living with HIV Stigma Index, https://www.stigmaindex.org/
about-the-stigma-index/what-is-the-people-living-with-hiv-stigma-index/ (last visited June 28, 2021).

35 USA Louisiana, The People Living with HIV Stigma Index, https://www.stigmaindex.org/country-report/usa-louisiana/ 
(last visited June 28, 2021); USA Michigan, The People Living with HIV Stigma Index, https://www.stigmaindex.org/country-report/
usa-michigan/ (last visited June 28, 2021); USA New Jersey, The People Living with HIV Stigma Index, https://www.stigmaindex.org/
country-report/usa-new-jersey/ (last visited June 28, 2021); c.f., Andrew R. Spieldenner et al., From Consumer to Community-Based 
Researcher: Lessons from the PLHIV Stigma Index, in Narrating Patienthood: Engaging Diverse Voices on Health, Communication, 
and the Patient Experience 151 (2019) (describing the data collection process).

https://www.hivcaucus.org/blog/hiv-caucus-comments-on-national-hiv-strategy
https://www.pwn-usa.org/pwns-comment-on-the-draft-hiv-national-strategic-plan-2021-2025/
https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/pdf/funding/announcements/ps20-2010/CDC-RFA-PS20-2010.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/pdf/funding/announcements/ps20-2010/CDC-RFA-PS20-2010.pdf
https://data.unaids.org/pub/externaldocument/2007/gipa1983denverprinciples_en.pdf
https://data.unaids.org/pub/externaldocument/2007/gipa1983denverprinciples_en.pdf
https://data.unaids.org/pub/briefingnote/2007/jc1299_policy_brief_gipa.pdf
https://data.unaids.org/pub/briefingnote/2007/jc1299_policy_brief_gipa.pdf
 https://hab.hrsa.gov/about-ryan-white-hivaids-program/ryan-white-hivaids-program-legislation
 https://hab.hrsa.gov/about-ryan-white-hivaids-program/ryan-white-hivaids-program-legislation
https://www.theglobalfund.org/media/7421/ccm_countrycoordinatingmechanism_policy_en.pdf
https://www.theglobalfund.org/media/7421/ccm_countrycoordinatingmechanism_policy_en.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/pdf/funding/announcements/ps20-2010/CDC-RFA-PS20-2010.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/pdf/funding/announcements/ps20-2010/CDC-RFA-PS20-2010.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/faca/committees/pdfs/chachspt/chachspt-charter-508.pdf
https://www.oar.nih.gov/sites/default/files/OARAC_Charter_2018_508.pdf
https://www.oar.nih.gov/sites/default/files/OARAC_Charter_2018_508.pdf
https://hivgov-prod-v3.s3.amazonaws.com/s3fs-public/pacha-charter-2020.pdf
https://hivgov-prod-v3.s3.amazonaws.com/s3fs-public/pacha-charter-2020.pdf
https://obamawhitehouse.archives.gov/administration/eop/onap/nhas/activities
https://obamawhitehouse.archives.gov/administration/eop/onap/nhas/activities
https://www.queerty.com/report-trump-closes-white-house-office-aids-policy-20170120
https://www.queerty.com/report-trump-closes-white-house-office-aids-policy-20170120
https://www.hiv.gov/blog/white-house-appoints-harold-phillips-lead-office-national-aids-policy
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC3591486/
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC3591486/
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC2831751/
https://journals.plos.org/plosone/article?id=10.1371/journal.pone.0252783
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/abs/pii/S1055329009000338
http://HIV.gov
https://www.hiv.gov/federal-response/ending-the-hiv-epidemic/overview
https://www.hiv.gov/federal-response/ending-the-hiv-epidemic/overview
https://www.stigmaindex.org/
https://www.stigmaindex.org/about-the-stigma-index/what-is-the-people-living-with-hiv-stigma-index/
https://www.stigmaindex.org/about-the-stigma-index/what-is-the-people-living-with-hiv-stigma-index/
https://www.stigmaindex.org/country-report/usa-louisiana/
https://www.stigmaindex.org/country-report/usa-michigan/
https://www.stigmaindex.org/country-report/usa-michigan/
https://www.stigmaindex.org/country-report/usa-new-jersey/
https://www.stigmaindex.org/country-report/usa-new-jersey/


43

36 HIV Plan, supra note 15, at 8.

37 Id. at 32.

38 Id. at 36; 47.

39 Id. at 38; 47.

40 Id. at 49.

41 Id. at 51.

42 HIV Plan, supra note 15, at 4.

43 See Center for HIV Law and Policy, HIV Criminalization in the United States (July 2020), https://www.hivlawandpolicy.org/
sites/default/files/HIV%20Criminalization%20in%20the%20US%20%282020%29.pdf.

44 E.g., S.C. Code Ann. § 44-29-145 (2016); Ga. Code Ann. § 16-5-60(c) (2016).

45 See e.g., Lopez v. State, 288 S.W.3d 148, 154 (Tex. App. 2009) (remanding the case for a new trial due to the trial court’s 
erroneous admission of extraneous acts. However, the aggravating factor in the HIV positive defendant’s conviction on two counts 
of aggravated sexual assault was the deadly weapon of his bodily fluids).

46 See e.g., Hall v. Commonwealth, 1997 Va. App. Lexis 782, (Va. Ct. App. 1997) (unpublished) (finding a defendant’s biting of 
a store employee and breaking his skin following a shoplifting incident supported the inference that the defendant “intended to 
infect [him] with AIDS, a deadly disease” which satisfied the requisite statutory element of malicious intent).

47 Trevor Hoppe, Punishing disease: HIV and the criminalization of sickness, U.C. Press (2017).

48 Elizabeth Weill-Greenberg, The Push to End ‘Punishment Fever’ Against People with HIV, The Appeal (April, 11, 2019), https://
theappeal.org/the-push-to-end-punishment-fever-against-people-with-hiv/.

49 Trevor Hoppe, Punishing disease: HIV and the criminalization of sickness, U.C. Press (2017).

50 HIV Plan, supra note 15, at 46; HIV Criminalization and Ending the HIV Epidemic, Cts. for Disease Prevention and Control 
(June 24, 2021), https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/policies/law/criminalization-ehe.html.

51 HIV Criminalization and Ending the HIV Epidemic, Cts. for Disease Prevention and Control (June 24, 2021) (recommending 
but not requiring reform to HIV criminalization laws) , https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/policies/law/criminalization-ehe.html.

52 Compare Fla. Dep’t of Health, Florida’s Unified Ending the HIV Epidemic Draft Plan, (2019) (containing no mention of HIV 
criminalization reform), http://www.floridahealth.gov/diseases-and-conditions/aids/ehe/_documents/draft-fl-unified-ehe-plan.
pdf,  with Ga. Dep’t of Hum. Res., Ending the HIV Epidemic in Georgia, 53 (2020) (containing goals to reform HIV criminalization 
laws), https://static1.squarespace.com/static/5e50179ca696a950a547f95d/t/5ff32fb4fc8ee327dd607adf/1609773001220/GA+E-
HE+Plan+12.2020.pdf.

53 HIV Plan, supra note 15, at 46.

54 Id. at 46-47.

55 Id. at 46.

56 Laura M. Bogart et al., HIV-Related Medical Mistrust, HIV Testing, and HIV Risk in the National Survey on HIV in the Black Com-
munity, 45 Behav. Med., no. 2, 134, 142 (2019), https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC6783255/pdf/nihms-1052568.pdf.

57 See State Laboratory Reporting Laws: Viral Load and CD4 Requirements, Ctrs. for Disease Prevention and Control (Feb. 1, 
2021),  https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/policies/law/states/reporting.html.

58 U.S. Dep’t of Health and Hum. Serv., Notice of Funding Opportunity, CDC-RFA-PS20-2010, 1, 10, 13 (Jan. 23, 2020), https://
www.cdc.gov/hiv/pdf/funding/announcements/ps20-2010/CDC-RFA-PS20-2010.pdf.

59 U.S. Dep’t of Health and Hum. Serv., Notice of Funding Opportunity, CDC-RFA-PS18-1802, 1, 26 (June 27, 2017), https://
www.cdc.gov/hiv/pdf/funding/announcements/ps18-1802/cdc-hiv-ps18-1802-nofo.pdf.

60 HIV Data Privacy and Confidentiality Legal & Ethical Considerations for Health Department Data Sharing, NASTAD 1, 3 (June 
2018), https://www.nastad.org/sites/default/files/Uploads/2018/nastad-hiv-data-privacy-06062018.pdf.

https://www.hivlawandpolicy.org/sites/default/files/HIV%20Criminalization%20in%20the%20US%20%282020%29.pdf
https://www.hivlawandpolicy.org/sites/default/files/HIV%20Criminalization%20in%20the%20US%20%282020%29.pdf
https://theappeal.org/the-push-to-end-punishment-fever-against-people-with-hiv/
https://theappeal.org/the-push-to-end-punishment-fever-against-people-with-hiv/
https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/policies/law/criminalization-ehe.html
https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/policies/law/criminalization-ehe.html
http://www.floridahealth.gov/diseases-and-conditions/aids/ehe/_documents/draft-fl-unified-ehe-plan.pdf
http://www.floridahealth.gov/diseases-and-conditions/aids/ehe/_documents/draft-fl-unified-ehe-plan.pdf
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/5e50179ca696a950a547f95d/t/5ff32fb4fc8ee327dd607adf/1609773001220/GA+EHE+Plan+12.2020.pdf
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/5e50179ca696a950a547f95d/t/5ff32fb4fc8ee327dd607adf/1609773001220/GA+EHE+Plan+12.2020.pdf
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC6783255/pdf/nihms-1052568.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/policies/law/states/reporting.html
https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/pdf/funding/announcements/ps20-2010/CDC-RFA-PS20-2010.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/pdf/funding/announcements/ps20-2010/CDC-RFA-PS20-2010.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/pdf/funding/announcements/ps18-1802/cdc-hiv-ps18-1802-nofo.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/pdf/funding/announcements/ps18-1802/cdc-hiv-ps18-1802-nofo.pdf
https://www.nastad.org/sites/default/files/Uploads/2018/nastad-hiv-data-privacy-06062018.pdf


44

61 Id.

62 Id.

63 Id. at 8.

64 HIV Plan, supra note 15, at 42.

65 Failing to Protect and Serve: Police Department Policies Towards Transgender People, Nat’l Ctr. for Transgender Equal. 1 (2019)  
https://transequality.org/police.

66 Savvas Georgiades, The Dire Straits of Homelessness: Dramatic Echoes and Creative Propositions From the Field, 25 J. of Hum. 
Behav. in the Soc. Env’t, no. 6, 2015, at 630-642, https://www.tandfonline.com/doi/abs/10.1080/10911359.2015.1011254.

67 Jamie J. Hagen, Compounding Risk for Sex Workers in the United States, 50 NACLA Rep. on the Americas, no. 4, 2018, 395-
397, https://www.tandfonline.com/doi/abs/10.1080/10714839.2018.1550984.

68 Diane I. Scaduto et al., Source identification in two criminal cases using phylogenetic analysis of HIV-1 DNA sequences, 107 
Proc. of the Nat’l Acad. of Sci., no. 50, Dec. 2010, 21242-21247, https://www.pnas.org/content/107/50/21242; Ana B. Abecasis et al., 
Phylogenetic analysis as a forensic tool in HIV transmission investigations, 32 AIDS, no 5, Mar. 13, 2018, 543-554, https://pubmed.ncbi.
nlm.nih.gov/29280759/.

69 Ryan Blethen, North Seattle HIV cluster among drug users and homeless people worries health officials, Seattle Times, (April 
19, 2019), https://www.seattletimes.com/seattle-news/health/north-seattle-hiv-cluster-among-drug-users-and-homeless-people-
worries-health-officials/.

70 See, e.g., Lynn LaRowe, Lawsuit alleges restaurant fired man for being HIV positive, Texarkana Gazette (Oct. 24, 2020), https://
www.texarkanagazette.com/news/texarkana/story/2020/oct/25/lawsuit-alleges-restaurant-fired-man-being-hiv-positive/846593/, 
and Kayla Epstein, He revealed his HIV status to his employer. Then he was fired, a lawsuit alleges, The Washington Post (Nov. 11, 2019), 
https://www.washingtonpost.com/business/2019/11/11/he-revealed-his-hiv-status-his-employer-then-he-was-fired-lawsuit-al-
leges/, for instances for job loss.

71 Alison Yager, HIV Stigma Violently Rages On: We Must Do Better, HIV Plus Magazine (July 19, 2014), https://www.hivplusmag.
com/stigma/law-crime/2014/07/19/hiv-stigma-violently-rages-we-must-do-better.

72 Action Plan - Public Health Workforce Development, Ctrs. for Disease Prevention and Control, (July 2018), https://www.cdc.
gov/csels/dsepd/documents/ph-workforce-dev-action-plan-508.pdf.

73 Crystal Jongen et al., Health workforce cultural competency interventions: a systematic scoping review, 18 BMC Health Serv. 
Rsch. 232 (2018), https://bmchealthservres.biomedcentral.com/articles/10.1186/s12913-018-3001-5.

74 Building Skills for a More Strategic Public Health Workforce: A Call to Action, Nat’l Consortium for Workforce Dev., (2019),  
https://debeaumont.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/Building-Skills-for-a-More-Strategic-Public-Health-Workforce.pdf.

75 See George Ayala et al., Partner Notification: A Community Viewpoint, 22 J. Int’l AIDS Soc’y, suppl. 3, 2019, https://www.ncbi.
nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC6639673/. 

76 Key Strategies in the Plan, HIV.gov (May 8, 2020), https://www.hiv.gov/federal-response/ending-the-hiv-epidemic/
key-strategies.

77 Ending the HIV Epidemic Funding, HIV.gov (June 1, 2021), https://www.hiv.gov/federal-response/ending-the-hiv-epidemic/
funding.

78 U.S. Dep’t of Health and Hum. Serv., Notice of Funding Opportunity, CDC-RFA-PS20-2010, 1 (Jan. 23, 2020), https://www.
cdc.gov/hiv/pdf/funding/announcements/ps20-2010/CDC-RFA-PS20-2010.pdf

79 HIV Plan, supra note 15, at 52, 53

80 Id. at 54, 56.

81 Id. at 50.

82 HIV Data Privacy and Confidentiality Legal & Ethical Considerations for Health Department Data Sharing, NASTAD 1, 3 (June 
2018), https://www.nastad.org/sites/default/files/Uploads/2018/nastad-hiv-data-privacy-06062018.pdf.

https://transequality.org/police
https://www.tandfonline.com/doi/abs/10.1080/10911359.2015.1011254
https://www.tandfonline.com/doi/abs/10.1080/10714839.2018.1550984
https://www.pnas.org/content/107/50/21242
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/29280759/
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/29280759/
https://www.seattletimes.com/seattle-news/health/north-seattle-hiv-cluster-among-drug-users-and-homeless-people-worries-health-officials/
https://www.seattletimes.com/seattle-news/health/north-seattle-hiv-cluster-among-drug-users-and-homeless-people-worries-health-officials/
https://www.texarkanagazette.com/news/texarkana/story/2020/oct/25/lawsuit-alleges-restaurant-fired-man-being-hiv-positive/846593/
https://www.texarkanagazette.com/news/texarkana/story/2020/oct/25/lawsuit-alleges-restaurant-fired-man-being-hiv-positive/846593/
https://www.washingtonpost.com/business/2019/11/11/he-revealed-his-hiv-status-his-employer-then-he-was-fired-lawsuit-alleges/
https://www.washingtonpost.com/business/2019/11/11/he-revealed-his-hiv-status-his-employer-then-he-was-fired-lawsuit-alleges/
https://www.hivplusmag.com/stigma/law-crime/2014/07/19/hiv-stigma-violently-rages-we-must-do-better
https://www.hivplusmag.com/stigma/law-crime/2014/07/19/hiv-stigma-violently-rages-we-must-do-better
https://www.cdc.gov/csels/dsepd/documents/ph-workforce-dev-action-plan-508.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/csels/dsepd/documents/ph-workforce-dev-action-plan-508.pdf
https://bmchealthservres.biomedcentral.com/articles/10.1186/s12913-018-3001-5
https://debeaumont.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/Building-Skills-for-a-More-Strategic-Public-Health-Workforce.pdf
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC6639673/
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC6639673/
http://HIV.gov
https://www.hiv.gov/federal-response/ending-the-hiv-epidemic/key-strategies
https://www.hiv.gov/federal-response/ending-the-hiv-epidemic/key-strategies
http://HIV.gov
https://www.hiv.gov/federal-response/ending-the-hiv-epidemic/funding
https://www.hiv.gov/federal-response/ending-the-hiv-epidemic/funding
https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/pdf/funding/announcements/ps20-2010/CDC-RFA-PS20-2010.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/pdf/funding/announcements/ps20-2010/CDC-RFA-PS20-2010.pdf
https://www.nastad.org/sites/default/files/Uploads/2018/nastad-hiv-data-privacy-06062018.pdf


45

83 Data Security and Confidentiality Guidelines for HIV, Viral Hepatitis, Sexually Transmitted Disease, and Tuberculosis Programs: 
Standards to Facilitate Sharing and Use of Surveillance Data for Public Health Action, Ctrs. for Disease Prevention and Control 1, 17 
(2011), https://www.cdc.gov/nchhstp/programintegration/docs/pcsidatasecurityguidelines.pdf.

84 See generally id.

85 AIDS United, AIDS United’s Position on Using Molecular HIV Surveillance to Track HIV Transmission Networks, Positive Women’s 
Network-USA (June 12, 2021), https://www.pwn-usa.org/aids-uniteds-position-on-using-molecular-hiv-surveillance-to-track-hiv-
transmission-networks/.

86 What Is the Impact of HIV on Racial and Ethnic Minorities in the U.S.?, HIV.gov (Feb. 1, 2021) https://www.hiv.gov/hiv-basics/
overview/data-and-trends/impact-on-racial-and-ethnic-minorities.

87 Id.

88 HIV and Men, Ctrs. for Disease Prevention and Control (October 2020), https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/group/gender/men/in-
dex.html.

89 Id.

90 Id.

91 Black Americans and HIV/AIDS: The Basics, Kaiser Family Foundation (Feb. 7, 2020), https://www.kff.org/hivaids/fact-sheet/
black-americans-and-hivaids-the-basics/#endnote_link_448622-21.

92 Structural racism as defined by the Aspen Institute is “A system in which public policies, institutional practices, cultural 
representations, and other norms work in various, often reinforcing ways to perpetuate racial group inequity. It identifies dimen-
sions of our history and culture that have allowed privileges associated with “whiteness” and disadvantages associated with “color” 
to endure and adapt over time. Structural racism is not something that a few people or institutions choose to practice. Instead it 
has been a feature of the social, economic and political systems in which we all exist.” Glossary for Understanding the Dismantling 
Structural Racism/Promoting Racial Equity Analysis, The Aspen Institute, https://www.aspeninstitute.org/wp-content/uploads/files/
content/docs/rcc/RCC-Structural-Racism-Glossary.pdf (last visited June 25, 2021).

93 Persons Living with Diagnosed HIV Infection in the United States and Dependent Areas, 2018, Ctrs. for Disease Control and 
Prevention (May 7, 2020), https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/library/reports/hiv-surveillance/vol-31/content/living.html.

94 Id.

95 Id.

96 Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Diagnoses of HIV Infection in the United States and Dependent Areas, 2018, 31 
HIV Surveillance Report 10 (Dec. 2018), https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/pdf/library/reports/surveillance/cdc-hiv-surveillance-report-
2018-updated-vol-31.pdf.

97 Id.

98 Id.

99 Women and HIV in the United States, Kaiser Family Foundation (2020) https://www.kff.org/hivaids/fact-sheet/women-and-
hivaids-in-the-united-states/#footnote-452735-10.

100 Selected National HIV Prevention and Care Outcomes, Center for Disease Control and Prevention 13 (2016), https://www.
cdc.gov/hiv/pdf/library/slidesets/cdc-hiv-prevention-and-care-outcomes-2016.pdf.

101 Karin A. Bosh et al., Vital Signs: Deaths Among Persons with Diagnosed HIV Infection, United States, 2010–2018, 69 Morbidity 
and Mortality Weekly Rep. 1717, 1717 (2020), https://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/volumes/69/wr/mm6946a1.htm. 

102 Ryan White HIV/AIDS Program Annual Client-Level Data Report, Health Resources and Services Administration 5 (2020), 
https://hab.hrsa.gov/sites/default/files/hab/data/datareports/RWHAP-annual-client-level-data-report-2019.pdf.

103 Lindsey Dawson et al., HIV, Intimate Partner Violence (IPV), and Women: An Emerging Policy Landscape, Kaiser Family Founda-
tion (2019), https://www.kff.org/hivaids/issue-brief/hiv-intimate-partner-violence-ipv-and-women-an-emerging-policy-landscape.

104 See Notice of Funding Opportunity Announcement, America’s HIV Epidemic Analysis Dashboard, https://ahead.hiv.gov/
resources/funding/closed (last visited June 25, 2021).

https://www.cdc.gov/nchhstp/programintegration/docs/pcsidatasecurityguidelines.pdf
https://www.pwn-usa.org/aids-uniteds-position-on-using-molecular-hiv-surveillance-to-track-hiv-transmission-networks/
https://www.pwn-usa.org/aids-uniteds-position-on-using-molecular-hiv-surveillance-to-track-hiv-transmission-networks/
http://HIV.gov
https://www.hiv.gov/hiv-basics/overview/data-and-trends/impact-on-racial-and-ethnic-minorities
https://www.hiv.gov/hiv-basics/overview/data-and-trends/impact-on-racial-and-ethnic-minorities
https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/group/gender/men/index.html
https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/group/gender/men/index.html
https://www.kff.org/hivaids/fact-sheet/black-americans-and-hivaids-the-basics/#endnote_link_448622-21
https://www.kff.org/hivaids/fact-sheet/black-americans-and-hivaids-the-basics/#endnote_link_448622-21
https://www.aspeninstitute.org/wp-content/uploads/files/content/docs/rcc/RCC-Structural-Racism-Glossary.pdf
https://www.aspeninstitute.org/wp-content/uploads/files/content/docs/rcc/RCC-Structural-Racism-Glossary.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/library/reports/hiv-surveillance/vol-31/content/living.html
https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/pdf/library/reports/surveillance/cdc-hiv-surveillance-report-2018-updated-vol-31.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/pdf/library/reports/surveillance/cdc-hiv-surveillance-report-2018-updated-vol-31.pdf
https://www.kff.org/hivaids/fact-sheet/women-and-hivaids-in-the-united-states/#footnote-452735-10
https://www.kff.org/hivaids/fact-sheet/women-and-hivaids-in-the-united-states/#footnote-452735-10
https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/pdf/library/slidesets/cdc-hiv-prevention-and-care-outcomes-2016.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/pdf/library/slidesets/cdc-hiv-prevention-and-care-outcomes-2016.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/volumes/69/wr/mm6946a1.htm
https://hab.hrsa.gov/sites/default/files/hab/data/datareports/RWHAP-annual-client-level-data-report-2019.pdf
https://www.kff.org/hivaids/issue-brief/hiv-intimate-partner-violence-ipv-and-women-an-emerging-policy-landscape
https://ahead.hiv.gov/resources/funding/closed
https://ahead.hiv.gov/resources/funding/closed


46

105 Notice of Funding Opportunities are announcements of the availability of federal funding through a financial assistance 
program. Dictionary of Terms, Ctrs. for Disease Control and Prevention, https://www.cdc.gov/grants/dictionary/index.html#nofo 
(last visited June 25, 2021). They importantly denote funding preferences and priorities for grantees, meaning that the information 
contained in these Notices will affect the focuses and people priorities in the applicants’ proposals and the eventual programs 
which are funded.

106 Notice of Funding Opportunity, HRSA-20-079, 6 (Aug. 13, 2019), https://www.hrsa.gov/grants/find-funding/hrsa-20-079; 
Notice of Funding Opportunity, HRSA-20-089 (Aug. 13, 2019), https://www.hrsa.gov/grants/find-funding/hrsa-20-089; see gener-
ally, Notice of Funding Opportunity, CDC-RFA-PS19-1906, 1, 3 (June 12, 2019), https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/pdf/funding/announce-
ments/ps19-1906/cdc-hiv-PS19-NOFO.pdf.

107 See generally, id.

108 Even a goal of achieving viral suppression is a racialized and unequal process, with fewer Black Americans living with HIV 
having viral suppression even when they are in care. Nicole Crepaz et al., Racial and Ethnic Disparities in Sustained Viral Suppression 
and Transmission Risk Potential Among Persons Receiving HIV Care — United States, 2014, 67 Morbidity and Mortality Weekly R. 4, 
113 (2018), https://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/volumes/67/wr/mm6704a2.htm.

109 See, e.g., Notice of Funding Opportunity, HRSA-20-078, 1, 4 (Aug. 13, 2019), https://www.hrsa.gov/grants/find-funding/
hrsa-20-078; Notice of Funding Opportunity, CDC-RFA-PS20-2010, 1, 22, 23 (April 1, 2020), https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/
view-opportunity.html?oppId=323863; Notice of Funding Opportunity, HRSA-20-114, 1-2 (April 15, 2020), https://www.hrsa.gov/
grants/find-funding/hrsa-20-114.

110 See generally, HRSA-20-112, (April 9, 2020), https://www.hrsa.gov/grants/find-funding/hrsa-20-112.

111 See generally, Notice of Funding Opportunity, CDC-RFA-PS19-1906, (June 12, 2019), https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/pdf/fund-
ing/announcements/ps19-1906/cdc-hiv-PS19-NOFO.pdf; Notice of Funding Opportunity, HRSA-20-079, (Aug. 13, 2019), https://
www.hrsa.gov/grants/find-funding/hrsa-20-079;  Notice of Funding Opportunity, HRSA-20-089 (Aug. 13, 2019), https://www.hrsa.
gov/grants/find-funding/hrsa-20-089; Notice of Funding Opportunity, HRSA-20-078, (Aug. 13, 2019), https://www.hrsa.gov/grants/
find-funding/hrsa-20-078;HRSA-20-112, 1,4 (April 9, 2020), https://www.hrsa.gov/grants/find-funding/hrsa-20-112;.

112 See Notice of Funding Opportunity, HRSA-20-114, 1-2 (April 15, 2020), https://www.hrsa.gov/grants/find-funding/hrsa-20-
114; Notice of Funding Opportunity, CDC-RFA-PS20-2010, 1, 22, 23 (April 1, 2020), https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-op-
portunity.html?oppId=323863.

113 A Notice of Funding Opportunity was released which focused on improving care and treatment coordination for Black 
women with HIV, however it was funded for only $4,320,000 in FY 2020 out of the $267 million that was spent on EHE programing.  
Notice of Funding Opportunity , HRSA-20-116, (April 15, 2020), https://www.hrsa.gov/grants/find-funding/hrsa-20-116. Based 
upon CDC data, one can estimate that Black women account for over 12% of the domestic HIV epidemic, Ctrs. for Disease Control 
and Prevention, Estimated HIV Incidence and Prevalence in the United States, 2014–2018, 25 HIV Surveillance Report 1, 45, 46 (2020),  
yet specifically directed funding for Black women was less than 2% of overall EHE funding.

114 HIV Plan, supra note 15, at 41.

115 Id. at 62.

116 See infra, Issue Area 5, pp. 54.

117 See generally, HIV Plan, supra note 15.

118 HIV Plan, supra note 15, at 3.

119 Id. at 45.

120 Id. at 40.

121 See infra, Issue Area 5C, pp.47-51.

122 Miles to go: Closing Gaps, Breaking Barriers, Righting Injustice, UNAIDS 14-15 (2018), https://www.unaids.org/sites/default/
files/media_asset/miles-to-go_en.pdf.

123 Sandy E. James et al., The Report of the 2015 U.S. Transgender Survey, National Center for Transgender Equality (2016), 
https://transequality.org/sites/default/files/docs/usts/USTS-Full-Report-Dec17.pdf.

https://www.cdc.gov/grants/dictionary/index.html#nofo
https://www.hrsa.gov/grants/find-funding/hrsa-20-079
https://www.hrsa.gov/grants/find-funding/hrsa-20-089
https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/pdf/funding/announcements/ps19-1906/cdc-hiv-PS19-NOFO.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/pdf/funding/announcements/ps19-1906/cdc-hiv-PS19-NOFO.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/volumes/67/wr/mm6704a2.htm
https://www.hrsa.gov/grants/find-funding/hrsa-20-078
https://www.hrsa.gov/grants/find-funding/hrsa-20-078
https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=323863
https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=323863
https://www.hrsa.gov/grants/find-funding/hrsa-20-114
https://www.hrsa.gov/grants/find-funding/hrsa-20-114
https://www.hrsa.gov/grants/find-funding/hrsa-20-112
https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/pdf/funding/announcements/ps19-1906/cdc-hiv-PS19-NOFO.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/pdf/funding/announcements/ps19-1906/cdc-hiv-PS19-NOFO.pdf
https://www.hrsa.gov/grants/find-funding/hrsa-20-079
https://www.hrsa.gov/grants/find-funding/hrsa-20-079
https://www.hrsa.gov/grants/find-funding/hrsa-20-089
https://www.hrsa.gov/grants/find-funding/hrsa-20-089
https://www.hrsa.gov/grants/find-funding/hrsa-20-078;HRSA-20-112
https://www.hrsa.gov/grants/find-funding/hrsa-20-078;HRSA-20-112
https://www.hrsa.gov/grants/find-funding/hrsa-20-112
https://www.hrsa.gov/grants/find-funding/hrsa-20-114
https://www.hrsa.gov/grants/find-funding/hrsa-20-114
https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=323863
https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=323863
https://www.hrsa.gov/grants/find-funding/hrsa-20-116
https://www.unaids.org/sites/default/files/media_asset/miles-to-go_en.pdf
https://www.unaids.org/sites/default/files/media_asset/miles-to-go_en.pdf
https://transequality.org/sites/default/files/docs/usts/USTS-Full-Report-Dec17.pdf


47

124 Jasmine Sankofa, From Margin to Center: Sex Work Decriminalization is a Racial Justice Issue, Amnesty International (2016), 
https://www.amnestyusa.org/from-margin-to-center-sex-work-decriminalization-is-a-racial-justice-issue/.

125 See, e.g., Fla. Stat. Ann. §§  796.08(5), 775.082(3)(e), 775.083(1)(c) (2016).

126 Alliance for a Safe & Diverse D.C., Move Along: Policing Sex Work in Washington, D.C., (2008), https://dctranscoalition.files.
wordpress.com/2010/05/movealongreport.pdf.

127 See, e.g., Amira Hasenbush, HIV Criminalization In Florida: Penal Implications for People Living with HIV/AIDS, Williams Insti-
tute U.C.L.A. School of Law, 2 (2018) https://www.hivlawandpolicy.org/sites/default/files/HIV-Criminalization-Florida-Oct-2018.pdf; 
see also, Amira Hasenbush et al., HIV Criminalization In California: Penal Implications for People Living with HIV/AIDS, Williams Insti-
tute U.C.L.A. School of Law, 2 (2015), https://williamsinstitute.law.ucla.edu/wp-content/uploads/HIV-Criminalization-CA-Dec-2015.
pdf.

128 Ryan Blethen, North Seattle HIV cluster among drug users and homeless people worries health officials, The Seattle Times, 
April 19, 2019, https://www.seattletimes.com/seattle-news/health/north-seattle-hiv-cluster-among-drug-users-and-homeless-
people-worries-health-officials/.

129 13 C.F.R. § 120.110 (2017).

130 Jonathan Ross et al., HIV outcomes among migrants from low- and middle-income countries living in high-income coun-
tries: a review of recent evidence, 31 Current Op. Infectious Disease 1, 25-32 (2018),https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/
PMC5750122/.

131 Immigrants and the Affordable Care Act (ACA), Nat’l Immigr. Law Ctr. (Jan 2014), https://www.nilc.org/issues/health-care/
immigrantshcr/.

132 On January 4, 2010, a new federal rule went into effect that lifted the 22-year restriction on immigration and travel to the 
United States for non-U.S. citizens living with HIV/AIDS. See 42 C.F.R. § 34.2(b)(6) (2008). Immigrants continue to face barriers in 
accessing health care. Immigrants and the Affordable Care Act (ACA), Nat’l Immigr. Law Ctr. (Jan 2014), https://www.nilc.org/issues/
health-care/immigrantshcr/.

133 HIV Plan, supra note 15, at 3.

134 See Inadmissibility on Public Charge Grounds; Correction, 84 Fed. Reg. 52357-01 (October 2, 2019). This rule was prelimi-
narily enjoined by the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Illinois and that injunction was upheld by the Seventh Circuit 
Court of Appeals, Cook Cty. v. Wolf, 962 F. 3d 208, 234 (7th Cir. 2020), cert. dismissed sub nom. Mayorkas v. Cook Cty., 141 S. Ct. 1292 
(2021). On March 9, 2021, the Seventh Circuit lifted its stay, Cook Cty. v. Wolf, No. 20-3150, 2021 WL 1608766, at *1 (7th Cir. Mar. 
9, 2021) (unpublished), and the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Illinois’ order vacating the Public Charge Final Rule 
went into effect, Cook Cty. v. Wolf, 498 F. Supp. 3d 999, 1011 (N.D. Ill. 2020). When the vacatur went into effect, U.S. Customs and Im-
migraion Services immediately stopped applying the Public Charge Final Rule to all pending applications and petitions that would 
have been subject to the rule. Public Charge, U.S. Customs and Immigr. Serv. (April 15, 2021), https://www.uscis.gov/green-card/
green-card-processes-and-procedures/public-charge.

135 E.g, Melissa Jenco, Study: Public charge rule having a chilling effect on immigrant families’ use of public programs, Am. Acad. 
P News (June 30, 2020), https://www.aappublications.org/news/2020/06/30/immigrantfamilies063020; Leighton Ku, New Evi-
dence Demonstrates That The Public Charge Rule Will Harm Immigrant Families and Others, Health Affairs Blog (Oct. 9, 2019), https://
www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/hblog20191008.70483/full/; Samantha Artiga et al., Estimated Impacts of Final Public Charge 
Inadmissibility Rule on Immigrants and Medicaid Coverage, Kaiser Fam. Found. (Sep. 18, 2019), https://www.kff.org/racial-equi-
ty-and-health-policy/issue-brief/estimated-impacts-of-final-public-charge-inadmissibility-rule-on-immigrants-and-medicaid-cov-
erage/.

136 See 42 U.S.C. § 249(a) (2003); 42 C.F.R. § 34.7(a) (2003).

137 Mathew Rodriguez, Trans Woman With HIV Dies During Release From ICE Custody After Being Denied Meds, TheBody, June 
4, 2019, https://www.thebody.com/article/trans-woman-with-hiv-dies-during-release-from-ice-custody; see also Tim Fitzsimons, 
Transgender ICE detainee died of AIDS complications, autopsy shows, NBC News, April 17, 2019, https://www.nbcnews.com/feature/
nbc-out/transgender-ice-detainee-died-aids-complications-autopsy-shows-n994836.

138 Sandra E. Garcia, Independent Autopsy of Transgender Asylum Seeker Who Died in ICE Custody Shows Signs of Abuse, New 
York Times (Nov. 27, 2018), https://www.nytimes.com/2018/11/27/us/trans-woman-roxsana-hernandez-ice-autopsy.html.

139 HIV Plan, supra note 15, at 43.

https://www.amnestyusa.org/from-margin-to-center-sex-work-decriminalization-is-a-racial-justice-issue/
https://dctranscoalition.files.wordpress.com/2010/05/movealongreport.pdf
https://dctranscoalition.files.wordpress.com/2010/05/movealongreport.pdf
https://www.hivlawandpolicy.org/sites/default/files/HIV-Criminalization-Florida-Oct-2018.pdf
https://williamsinstitute.law.ucla.edu/wp-content/uploads/HIV-Criminalization-CA-Dec-2015.pdf
https://williamsinstitute.law.ucla.edu/wp-content/uploads/HIV-Criminalization-CA-Dec-2015.pdf
https://www.seattletimes.com/seattle-news/health/north-seattle-hiv-cluster-among-drug-users-and-homeless-people-worries-health-officials/
https://www.seattletimes.com/seattle-news/health/north-seattle-hiv-cluster-among-drug-users-and-homeless-people-worries-health-officials/
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC5750122/
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC5750122/
https://www.nilc.org/issues/health-care/immigrantshcr/
https://www.nilc.org/issues/health-care/immigrantshcr/
https://www.nilc.org/issues/health-care/immigrantshcr/
https://www.nilc.org/issues/health-care/immigrantshcr/
https://www.uscis.gov/green-card/green-card-processes-and-procedures/public-charge
https://www.uscis.gov/green-card/green-card-processes-and-procedures/public-charge
https://www.aappublications.org/news/2020/06/30/immigrantfamilies063020
https://www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/hblog20191008.70483/full/
https://www.healthaffairs.org/do/10.1377/hblog20191008.70483/full/
https://www.kff.org/racial-equity-and-health-policy/issue-brief/estimated-impacts-of-final-public-charge-inadmissibility-rule-on-immigrants-and-medicaid-coverage/
https://www.kff.org/racial-equity-and-health-policy/issue-brief/estimated-impacts-of-final-public-charge-inadmissibility-rule-on-immigrants-and-medicaid-coverage/
https://www.kff.org/racial-equity-and-health-policy/issue-brief/estimated-impacts-of-final-public-charge-inadmissibility-rule-on-immigrants-and-medicaid-coverage/
https://www.thebody.com/article/trans-woman-with-hiv-dies-during-release-from-ice-custody
https://www.nbcnews.com/feature/nbc-out/transgender-ice-detainee-died-aids-complications-autopsy-shows-n994836
https://www.nbcnews.com/feature/nbc-out/transgender-ice-detainee-died-aids-complications-autopsy-shows-n994836
https://www.nytimes.com/2018/11/27/us/trans-woman-roxsana-hernandez-ice-autopsy.html


48

140 Id. at 18.

141 Id. at 41, 42.

142 Id. at 3.

143 Id. at 43.

144 See id.

145 Vanessa Cooper et al., Measuring quality of life among people living with HIV: a systematic review of reviews, 15 Health 
Qual Life Outcomes 220 (2017). https://doi.org/10.1186/s12955-017-0778-6; See also Quality of life for people living with HIV: what 
is it, why does it matter and how can we make it happen?, Frontline AIDS p1, p4 (2018) https://frontlineaids.org/wp-content/up-
loads/2019/02/quality_of_life_briefing_final_original.pdf.

146 See, e.g., WHOQOL: Measuring Quality of Life, World Health Organization (2012) https://www.who.int/tools/whoqol.

147 Vanessa Cooper et al., Measuring quality of life among people living with HIV: a systematic review of reviews, 15 Health Qual 
Life Outcomes 220 (2017). https://doi.org/10.1186/s12955-017-0778-6

148 See e.g. State of Aging and Health in America 2013, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, US Dep’t of Health and 
Human Services (2013) https://www.cdc.gov/aging/pdf/State-Aging-Health-in-America-2013.pdf.

149 For a longer discussion of how to attain these metrics pertaining to economic justice and employment see infra, Issue 
Area 5A, pp. 38-41.

150 For a more complete discussion of how to achieve housing goals, see infra, Issue Area 5A, pp.41-42.

151 See infra, Issue Area 5A, pp. 42-44 , for more on providing nutrition services for people living with HIV.

152 For more information on how to achieve these health care metrics, see infra, Issue Area 5B, pp. 44-47.

153 For more on what sexual and reproductive health care needs entail, see infra, Issue Area 5C, pp.47-51.

154 IRS Rev Proc. 2020-36 states that beginning January 1, 2021, the ACA 2021 affordability threshold will be 9.83%. This num-
ber should be adjusted for the quality of life standard each time the IRS alters its own affordability thresholds. Further, affordability 
should only be defined as total household income and should not be defined to include other investments or savings.

155 For a discussion of what these stigma metrics should include see infra Issue Area 2A, pp.11 .

156 David J. Martin, Working with HIV, Am. Psych. Ass’n (2011), https://www.apa.org/pi/aids/resources/research/martin.

157 Tim Murphy, The Number-One Barrier to Ending HIV in U.S. Cities Is a Housing Crisis, TheBody (2020), https://www.thebody.
com/article/barrier-to-ending-hiv-in-u-s-cities-housing-crisis.

158 See Angela A. Aidala et al., Housing Status, Medical Care, and Health Outcomes Among People Living With HIV/AIDS: A System-
atic Review, 106 Am. J. of Public Health e1, e1 (2016).

159 Id. at e2.

160 Id.

161 Id.; see also M-J Milloy et al., Housing Status and the Health of People Living with HIV/AIDS, 9 Current HIV/AIDS Report 364, 
(2012), https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC3693560/.

162 Employment and Homelessness, National Coalition for the Homeless 1, 3-4 (2009) http://nationalhomeless.org/wp-con-
tent/uploads/2014/06/Employment-Fact-Sheet.pdf.

163 State of Homelessness: 2020 Edition, National Alliance to End Homelessness (2020), https://endhomelessness.org/home-
lessness-in-america/homelessness-statistics/state-of-homelessness-2020/.

164 Id.

165 Economic Justice, Positive Women’s Network-USA, https://www.pwn-usa.org/issues/policy-agenda/economic-justice/ (last 
visited June 29, 2021).

https://doi.org/10.1186/s12955-017-0778-6
https://frontlineaids.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/02/quality_of_life_briefing_final_original.pdf
https://frontlineaids.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/02/quality_of_life_briefing_final_original.pdf
https://www.who.int/tools/whoqol
https://doi.org/10.1186/s12955-017-0778-6
https://www.cdc.gov/aging/pdf/State-Aging-Health-in-America-2013.pdf
https://www.apa.org/pi/aids/resources/research/martin
https://www.thebody.com/article/barrier-to-ending-hiv-in-u-s-cities-housing-crisis
https://www.thebody.com/article/barrier-to-ending-hiv-in-u-s-cities-housing-crisis
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC3693560/
http://nationalhomeless.org/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/Employment-Fact-Sheet.pdf
http://nationalhomeless.org/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/Employment-Fact-Sheet.pdf
https://endhomelessness.org/homelessness-in-america/homelessness-statistics/state-of-homelessness-2020/
https://endhomelessness.org/homelessness-in-america/homelessness-statistics/state-of-homelessness-2020/
https://www.pwn-usa.org/issues/policy-agenda/economic-justice/


49

166 Aaron Richterman et al., Policies affecting eligibility for the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program and HIV incidence in 
the United States, Open Forum Infectious Diseases (2021), https://doi.org/10.1093/ofid/ofab101.

167 Sara Imperiale and Margaret Brown, Now Is the Time to Improve SNAP for Food Insecure Families, National Resource Defense 
Fund (2020), https://www.nrdc.org/experts/sara-imperiale/now-time-improve-snap-food-insecure-families..

168 Id.

169 Colin Gray, Leaving benefits on the table: Evidence from SNAP, 179 J. of Public Economics 104054 (2019), https://doi.
org/10.1016/j.jpubeco.2019.104054.

170 U.S. Statistics, HIV.gov (2021),

https://www.hiv.gov/hiv-basics/overview/data-and-trends/statistics.

171 Id.

172 Adam Searing and Adaora A. Adimora, HIV and Medicaid Expansion: Failure of Southern States to Expand Medicaid Makes 
Elimination of HIV Infection in the United States Much Harder to Achieve, Georgetown Health Policy Institute 1, 1 (2020), https://ccf.
georgetown.edu/2020/11/29/hiv-and-medicaid-expansion-failure-of-southern-states-to-expand-medicaid-makes-elimination-of-
hiv-infection-in-the-united-states-much-harder-to-achieve/.

173 Id.

174 For example, an investigation found that under a standard Medicare Part D benefit a person living with HIV would pay be-
tween $3,000 to $4,000 a year in out-of-pocket expenses for ART unless they qualify for low-income subsidies. Chien-Wen Tseng et 
al., Medicare Part D and Cost-Sharing for Antiretroviral Therapy and Preexposure Prophylaxis, JAMA Network Open (2020) doi:10.1001/
jamanetworkopen.2020.2739.

175 Copay accumulator adjustment policies (CAAPs) prevents drug manufacturer coupons (like those from HIV drug manu-
facturers to offset the costs of prescriptions) from counting toward patients’ annual deductibles or out-of-pocket cost limits. Dou-
ble Dipping: Insurance Companies Profit at Patients’ Expense, AIDS Institute 1, 3 (2021), https://aidsinstitute.net/documents/2021_
TAI_Double-Dipping_Final-031621.pdf.

176 See supra, Issue Area 5C, pp. 47-51.

177 Doctors Agree: Gender-Affirming Care is Life-Saving Care, American Civil Liberties Union (2021) https://www.aclu.org/news/
lgbtq-rights/doctors-agree-gender-affirming-care-is-life-saving-care/.

178 Federal AIDS Policy Partnership, HIV Community Funding Requests for FY 2022 Domestic HIV Programs, (2021) https://docu-
mentcloud.adobe.com/link/track?uri=urn:aaid:scds:US:17b842bc-691d-4f97-97ca-918b78ffd46a.

179 HIV Plan, supra note 15, at 26, 37.

180 Id. at 24.

181 Id.

182 Natalia Kanem, Sexual and Reproductive Health and Rights: The Cornerstone of Sustainable Development, UN Chronicle, 
https://www.un.org/en/chronicle/article/sexual-and-reproductive-health-and-rights-cornerstone-sustainable-development.

183 Monique A. Tello et al., Barriers to recommended gynecologic care in an urban United States HIV clinic, 19 J. Women’s Health, 
no. 8, 2010, 1515-1516, https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC2924785/; see also UNSPOKEN: Sexuality, Romance, and 
Reproductive Freedom for Women Living with HIV in the United States, Positive Women’s Network-USA (2013), https://pwnusa.files.
wordpress.com/2013/11/11-11-13srhr-pwn-usa.pdf.

184 Jaime Grant et al., Injustice at Every Turn: Report of the National Discrimination Survey, Nat’l Ctr. for Transgender Equal. & 
Nat’l Gay and Lesbian Task Force, 82 (2011), https://transequality.org/sites/default/files/docs/resources/NTDS_Report.pdf.

185 Cecile Unger, Care of the Transgender Patient: A Survey of Gynecologists’ Current Knowledge and Practice, J. Women’s Health 
(December 2014), https://doi.org/10.1089/jwh.2014.4918.

186 Although the PLHIV networks appreciate this reference to pregnancy and HIV, we would recommend that future discus-
sions are gender inclusive and recognize that not all people who bear children identify as women.

https://doi.org/10.1093/ofid/ofab101
https://www.nrdc.org/experts/sara-imperiale/now-time-improve-snap-food-insecure-families
https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jpubeco.2019.104054
https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jpubeco.2019.104054
http://HIV.gov
https://www.hiv.gov/hiv-basics/overview/data-and-trends/statistics
https://ccf.georgetown.edu/2020/11/29/hiv-and-medicaid-expansion-failure-of-southern-states-to-expand-medicaid-makes-elimination-of-hiv-infection-in-the-united-states-much-harder-to-achieve/
https://ccf.georgetown.edu/2020/11/29/hiv-and-medicaid-expansion-failure-of-southern-states-to-expand-medicaid-makes-elimination-of-hiv-infection-in-the-united-states-much-harder-to-achieve/
https://ccf.georgetown.edu/2020/11/29/hiv-and-medicaid-expansion-failure-of-southern-states-to-expand-medicaid-makes-elimination-of-hiv-infection-in-the-united-states-much-harder-to-achieve/
https://aidsinstitute.net/documents/2021_TAI_Double-Dipping_Final-031621.pdf
https://aidsinstitute.net/documents/2021_TAI_Double-Dipping_Final-031621.pdf
https://www.aclu.org/news/lgbtq-rights/doctors-agree-gender-affirming-care-is-life-saving-care/
https://www.aclu.org/news/lgbtq-rights/doctors-agree-gender-affirming-care-is-life-saving-care/
https://documentcloud.adobe.com/link/track?uri=urn
https://documentcloud.adobe.com/link/track?uri=urn
https://www.un.org/en/chronicle/article/sexual-and-reproductive-health-and-rights-cornerstone-sustainable-development
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC2924785/
https://pwnusa.files.wordpress.com/2013/11/11-11-13srhr-pwn-usa.pdf
https://pwnusa.files.wordpress.com/2013/11/11-11-13srhr-pwn-usa.pdf
https://transequality.org/sites/default/files/docs/resources/NTDS_Report.pdf
https://doi.org/10.1089/jwh.2014.4918


50

187 HIV Plan, supra note 15, at  27, 29.

188 HIV Testing in the United States, Kaiser Family Foundation (June 25, 2019), https://www.kff.org/hivaids/fact-sheet/hiv-test-
ing-in-the-united-states/.

189 Id.

190 Katherine M. Jones et al., Racial and Ethnic Disparities in Breastfeeding, 10 Breastfeeding Med., no. 4, 2015, 186, 193-94, 
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC4410446/.

191 Id.

https://www.kff.org/hivaids/fact-sheet/hiv-testing-in-the-united-states/
https://www.kff.org/hivaids/fact-sheet/hiv-testing-in-the-united-states/
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC4410446/


 

View this monthly update on our website here.  

Federal Updates  

A federal policy agenda created by and for people 

living with HIV  

The U.S. People Living with HIV Caucus, of which 

Positive Women’s Network-USA is a member, 

released Demanding Better: An HIV Federal Policy 

Agenda by People Living with HIV in July.  

This federal policy agenda lays out a clear roadmap 

for the Biden administration, Congress, and federal 

agencies to achieve their goal of ending the HIV 

epidemic by 2030 with a focus on improving quality 

of life for people already living with HIV.  

The U.S. People Living with HIV Caucus is a 

“network of networks” of people living with HIV, 

which includes representatives from the Global 

Network of People Living with AIDS – North America, International Community of Women with 

HIV/AIDS – North America, National Working Positive Coalition, Positively Trans, the Reunion 

Project, SERO Project, and THRIVE SS. These networks collectively represent tens of thousands of 

people living with HIV, who have informed the agenda.  

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fu1584542.ct.sendgrid.net%2Fss%2Fc%2FatcYNHk4Eh2YdGnwBh-YDLfw_BoluHRoCOIBvvn5lgxv7ZIObwYUQllxRp8g8aLluOQsMQOmp_DihN9ChBzPKhT_PtwzSu4tdD-34zXOF1DcN0bbs8ZalxTeo_DzAADfLBIvGJPRqKtvwxp3rYB7yNBkXDwNgQS3wWFjVmmj-6fwbCxK7pj8-OUXC-inb5vl2RU8Ii4Q7qedB6sjNpuCfCZ2saGnsN2WYFEvFS5TXHc70oH26vMJAQlbqjJJfLEHTT_NWOCGl2C722-yA5_u8YHPm_XSWAYVJuba0mA4Csc3-SO1-03aDPNX_Th1zNd1dk0tuZHH9Z6-JmH17evAFcvrNhb05gfIIgyul5ysdmUh1t3DFWXpVM7FyVlYwOoq%2F3e5%2Fw4SOVtHvQzKdRQrnG4hWww%2Fh1%2FKdDZUP5yN9p4e_J02pFtDObbopb7plB5_yTByvweyu4&data=04%7C01%7CCEchols-Watson%40lachiv.org%7C96cc957f2fd149b88f3a08d958421970%7C7faea7986ad04fc9b068fcbcaed341f6%7C0%7C0%7C637637863961150630%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=oA69m9MPHJpHETJPA7CVPn19etFDdUhhaFLMjYVgMss%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fu1584542.ct.sendgrid.net%2Fss%2Fc%2FatcYNHk4Eh2YdGnwBh-YDDdQ_91y8flNSmmxOUxqDdHayqYKkZEoFB-ET11DZ6_NionvJiVCgmIauzT7I2P41y0A80_rEpY4vsLXkvyuylyvj__8ULxfaGh6sXJGEEjvvijae2vezWIZktYdO3kpPFnU6-OAryQTogFKASGc8LY17bsbvHL22X8aYqMEYYXjZa1C9k_SJNUXpSCPgh3KtyAXzG3NQqw8xOK7r51OHE0Ss2Weqx91Xu27NgMHmP1ZbEK8wZggyUyelO6SpbVIRQkWORGW7tL83ea7TjHCaFGF2OKuKSkHTvsmLQDHJ0Ywh2G9gtGPW2_wlNBkFQq5bN4cDQ5AL95e--9-NilByfg%2F3e5%2Fw4SOVtHvQzKdRQrnG4hWww%2Fh3%2FECQPJdfvHtR4GQ2Y6yNJ3bWLtUuggNnH5XUGGW7skIQ&data=04%7C01%7CCEchols-Watson%40lachiv.org%7C96cc957f2fd149b88f3a08d958421970%7C7faea7986ad04fc9b068fcbcaed341f6%7C0%7C0%7C637637863961170539%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=51kG4gb3dJDAt1v0LUhCiWhC1Rr%2BQE4frF9sL%2FrmW3Y%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fu1584542.ct.sendgrid.net%2Fss%2Fc%2FatcYNHk4Eh2YdGnwBh-YDDdQ_91y8flNSmmxOUxqDdHayqYKkZEoFB-ET11DZ6_NionvJiVCgmIauzT7I2P41y0A80_rEpY4vsLXkvyuylyvj__8ULxfaGh6sXJGEEjvvijae2vezWIZktYdO3kpPFnU6-OAryQTogFKASGc8LY17bsbvHL22X8aYqMEYYXjZa1C9k_SJNUXpSCPgh3KtyAXzG3NQqw8xOK7r51OHE0Ss2Weqx91Xu27NgMHmP1ZbEK8wZggyUyelO6SpbVIRQkWORGW7tL83ea7TjHCaFGF2OKuKSkHTvsmLQDHJ0Ywh2G9gtGPW2_wlNBkFQq5bN4cDQ5AL95e--9-NilByfg%2F3e5%2Fw4SOVtHvQzKdRQrnG4hWww%2Fh3%2FECQPJdfvHtR4GQ2Y6yNJ3bWLtUuggNnH5XUGGW7skIQ&data=04%7C01%7CCEchols-Watson%40lachiv.org%7C96cc957f2fd149b88f3a08d958421970%7C7faea7986ad04fc9b068fcbcaed341f6%7C0%7C0%7C637637863961170539%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=51kG4gb3dJDAt1v0LUhCiWhC1Rr%2BQE4frF9sL%2FrmW3Y%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fu1584542.ct.sendgrid.net%2Fss%2Fc%2FatcYNHk4Eh2YdGnwBh-YDLfw_BoluHRoCOIBvvn5lgxv7ZIObwYUQllxRp8g8aLluOQsMQOmp_DihN9ChBzPKvBLBIQGT1N0Q2HgqupWrAZs-YrYGI0xK3YZ147pJ8Zj5o2_HniNXH0N1c8e7LgV3TaXlLvBoIG8ec2V8ze45YeCG7baCZHJMQUnjNZSX00CHFKVCN-kfwElV8b-1s8HW0IVB4Cc6RIgX6i-UP_PKsXUqW-f-7LBNzgFH3kGs-4byseRk4HIx-8-Ie2_sdfTbcrY0PcFJaaXJaWlM5ugUdNIEgOehPlkI_5fSZr1sWwL%2F3e5%2Fw4SOVtHvQzKdRQrnG4hWww%2Fh0%2F-ag8VZSqqLIHko10iiD7IasKnGvHq1U-qp8YGM2Vzj4&data=04%7C01%7CCEchols-Watson%40lachiv.org%7C96cc957f2fd149b88f3a08d958421970%7C7faea7986ad04fc9b068fcbcaed341f6%7C0%7C0%7C637637863961140672%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=NJVYDADi0umquKJvcUkSN8ag%2F%2F8njOsiSnJ4w1QCQbk%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fu1584542.ct.sendgrid.net%2Fss%2Fc%2FatcYNHk4Eh2YdGnwBh-YDDdQ_91y8flNSmmxOUxqDdHayqYKkZEoFB-ET11DZ6_NionvJiVCgmIauzT7I2P41y0A80_rEpY4vsLXkvyuylyvj__8ULxfaGh6sXJGEEjv2gu3WAY1tlDISlZ5d60bFZjMuqQHYRp41wmBFm77_GOwQhXi8r4Cp_4ordCX2D3z_KLQGYlDnnN7g7gNZ80-JrAhPRPBYTIcGrTXfJENlMcxW9mAKLzjEG6KrXntu5K1VOOfOBVYjCZnAxkbHnos67uDZjQQT-2ZhYiYaCGlFvxdORCRZ8wbcob4wJhVR5QQqelLAB1Jq8ZdPZUETYtsi4Cpx045za1xivIPIhAr5Ro%2F3e5%2Fw4SOVtHvQzKdRQrnG4hWww%2Fh2%2FTiyH5eK4cDzs0Bsyw7G3lyV5JGl3oM6MOzl-H5CMMDY&data=04%7C01%7CCEchols-Watson%40lachiv.org%7C96cc957f2fd149b88f3a08d958421970%7C7faea7986ad04fc9b068fcbcaed341f6%7C0%7C0%7C637637863961160585%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=LlLi3%2FxFi7QfCo88XS0P%2BztKpCWEvbKjQRwBx%2BDOZUw%3D&reserved=0


The agenda was released through an event with the Center for American Progress which was 

followed by a community-focused Facebook Live conversation.  

Appropriations update  

Two of the appropriations bills for Fiscal Year 2022 passed the 

House of Representatives and there have been a lot of updates to 

ones that are waiting to be voted on, so let’s quickly run through 

some highlights:  

• The Helms Amendment and global gag rule, which work 

together to ban federal funding for abortion services internationally, were not included in the 

FY22 bill which passed the House  

• The Hyde and Weldon Amendments, which ban domestic funding of abortion services, were 

left out of their respective funding bills  

• A bill funding the Department of Health and Human Services would end the prohibition on 

using federal funds for syringes for safe drug use programs  

• A provision was added that would limit funds to foster care programs that don’t comply with 

nondiscrimination regulations including gender identity and sexual orientation, undercutting 

the Supreme Court’s recent decision in Fulton v. City of Philadelphia  

• Funding for the Housing Opportunities for People with AIDS program was increased by $170 

million, $150 million over the President’s budget request.  

You can check out the updates in the appropriations process here.  

Health Care Access  

CVS Pharmacy v. Doe to be heard by the Supreme 

Court next year  

The Supreme Court agreed to hear a case this fall which has huge implications for people living with 

HIV. In CVS Pharmacy v. Doe, the Supreme Court will decide whether both the Rehabilitation Act--a 

law which prohibits discrimination based on a disability by organizations receiving federal funds--and 

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fu1584542.ct.sendgrid.net%2Fss%2Fc%2FatcYNHk4Eh2YdGnwBh-YDEmLRFYoSvs_hcyG5XtQ3HXW9dypezDuPk7W8ROz1Jihiw1lA_MO8Ui9wr0tEp-fpr13Ox-nay8CHeT25NeAIeRO9lWmZoFl9bLum8wGDMj19bzTajANO3wwQSzspETx-RsftCJ-qNLIgnEuXF-Z9MaQiey3Bp4Ra8sxskDu6FLXuCGkpEOF2oz6AWZjHy4Jc40BeW5rkpRusqSMEYlIL_41fr9ZJJfSxG4an_ukdvDY3tPoKr7CG-pvMGA3VZSeG7Poqos-jnM2DaNwn6Lm05N1ee1wYT8DhcV6t-PZTpWnikYbWpQYUh0py8Uf5qSdkwVak_lfm1SYbRuise9clOA%2F3e5%2Fw4SOVtHvQzKdRQrnG4hWww%2Fh4%2FYgXXltfqf55_IoVuVXIDIyXyJndwwA0TRegmVBK8u1M&data=04%7C01%7CCEchols-Watson%40lachiv.org%7C96cc957f2fd149b88f3a08d958421970%7C7faea7986ad04fc9b068fcbcaed341f6%7C0%7C0%7C637637863961180493%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=m9vS%2FNX8XI9bok7OJrOZ5VG9291OBP27%2BqCKrOGE8DA%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fu1584542.ct.sendgrid.net%2Fss%2Fc%2FA7GQnnr_XzUYyessq5BiROGuB287EIPBFdnU_XJn3R8WEAuELvY3RCF4HSdG0GLSc25WniEOrPDBA9AnmDJZ8BQQUvxAmcYYL61iwN_-_-itb0hShB15ErL4RH0SwegL1zmihJv8dfTJQXz8d7fWhhRVYiuzLlLeAQpad7QMDqdR098xx_9xuVPO1DEo1PnG5USOKEqqSg-LP_QdzX7h8reH9wM28RGqVdu1CvQyZl1e4TWGlD659Jt6DsQOuau2puyHmfm6GTnnEnf8edHdjVGEsfxZNwvFzjd37URdgLE%2F3e5%2Fw4SOVtHvQzKdRQrnG4hWww%2Fh5%2FqfTXbRIiCKh1hM0vxUbpsM_O4rKS-bc2c82H2JXgNgk&data=04%7C01%7CCEchols-Watson%40lachiv.org%7C96cc957f2fd149b88f3a08d958421970%7C7faea7986ad04fc9b068fcbcaed341f6%7C0%7C0%7C637637863961180493%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=uz0druzo%2BZ3jnABM67%2BS%2FONoeumIx%2F5VOWP8ksLEaWk%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fu1584542.ct.sendgrid.net%2Fss%2Fc%2FP8Elou2Rvc0qoMPEUZrMXQmyaH5wUFqu973J6VajQr1CpbNKlPYSfNVt9cmTV-ZyMMbOdbT-jMtM58mtml6XVqY8AjxE-rj2i-rJbFlwLF3emT37SUMBhL7Ot-WLEAtzvKRUYAmb1hzPYSDR1nh60CHrdI3KlhVWpf14Hg1EVVtZ4AxDOkJuTouslG1pql3U8jqrEdKJr2Nv-tZX_SooRaPkdybyp-zHHQnW4_hLb8PfAx6gPariagyqhL2G9zpfKmpcKT30Rgj9QYwFfQlfMqCVkGVRtGqVQaqaguB_TfBFJGZhhod01VRzxR5uLc_HOlmwfC-MafIe8kkg3BM3rsXbHG06ebrGb79_3-RAlN8exPzxLfsiuLVwbTZxhGmY%2F3e5%2Fw4SOVtHvQzKdRQrnG4hWww%2Fh6%2FasILyjrroMD4w4HFXTK0islDu7kUb8i4TWC7bUJtgvY&data=04%7C01%7CCEchols-Watson%40lachiv.org%7C96cc957f2fd149b88f3a08d958421970%7C7faea7986ad04fc9b068fcbcaed341f6%7C0%7C0%7C637637863961190461%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=p1qLGKTvcvx7GeSaXdpiaaB0iLPinze8p%2BHu2VCLbGI%3D&reserved=0


the Affordable Care Act (ACA) allow individuals to bring claims arguing a policy is discriminatory 

because it disproportionately affects people with disabilities.  

The case was brought by a class of people living with HIV who receive heath insurance through their 

employers. Their health plan gives individuals with disabilities, including people with HIV, in-network 

medication prices if they receive their HIV medication by mail or if they pick it up at a CVS pharmacy. 

If they chose to use an out-of-network pharmacy, they must pay the out-of-network price. Individuals 

without disabilities are not limited to these two methods to receive in-network pricing for their 

prescriptions.  

The people living with HIV involved in the case argue that these terms disproportionately harm 

people living with HIV who cannot receive in-network prices at the pharmacy of their choice. 

Obviously, these are incredibly important considerations, and the broader question of whether these 

kinds of discrimination claims are allowed under the Rehabilitation Act and ACA could significantly 

impact when people can claim disability discrimination.  

This case will not be argued until after October 2021, and then an opinion will likely not be released 

until 2022. You can read more and follow case updates here.  

Missouri Supreme Court upholds Medicaid expansion  

The Missouri Supreme Court ruled that the state’s Medicaid expansion amendment which was 

passed by voters last August did not violate the state constitution. This decision overturned a lower 

court finding that Amendment 2, a ballot initiative passed by in 2020 by 53 percent of Missouri 

voters, was unconstitutional.  

Medicaid expansion will allow about 275,000 additional people in Missouri to access health care, 

including some of the 13,000 people estimated to be living with HIV there.  

This is the second piece of celebratory news to come out of Missouri this month. Governor Mike 

Parson signed SB 53, a police reform bill that also makes important updates to HIV criminalization 

laws. The bill raises the level of intent required to convict someone of violating the law and reduces 

the minimum sentence from 10 to 3 years. This bill is a strong step in the right direction for HIV 

criminalization in Missouri. The updated law goes into effect August 28 and you can read more about 

it here.  

NHeLP’s new brief on the Medicaid coverage gap  

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fu1584542.ct.sendgrid.net%2Fss%2Fc%2FatcYNHk4Eh2YdGnwBh-YDNN8yTQRkw8LHEGGzVxafaK5Bda7tm84XxBbQgce_NB0XD-8H_qSQyou155frJXzsh_RJ0_9uVIEORs5ZMlzO98uem7HxC_nWQOO5FDzj4mpQlKQanpz5549USi7BlBAoVdnAaErIe4Bi-ibgKvOtirln9l4q2QkAwzIj7dlrmIcC71DoGde8hKjQsiB5vFxTSHnGRy8eS0bie1iMno4IO6hGIw1SXuqausyMRVq1P2O2fnG_rGNjZaKJFvEkhTZ9GdYYbKY435LqLhJktrMx1bKcLZzlznbUfY3xcxjD6bqyA_qYtTj26IF0iHhJGpb3A%2F3e5%2Fw4SOVtHvQzKdRQrnG4hWww%2Fh7%2FVauYr_pD6dOmtDqMbgrOJBrRi28o0thshVPD_mK5uCw&data=04%7C01%7CCEchols-Watson%40lachiv.org%7C96cc957f2fd149b88f3a08d958421970%7C7faea7986ad04fc9b068fcbcaed341f6%7C0%7C0%7C637637863961200410%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=Kq0FZQBUnp62YKliDOERfo%2FLv3Y8V0uo1Z32V4Xgg5M%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fu1584542.ct.sendgrid.net%2Fss%2Fc%2FatcYNHk4Eh2YdGnwBh-YDJTJKyzWKukl6BagbsLOaV8aXGuu8wZDP753GAD02A7IT7enedWkyccwREQVpzKUni9KslPkFYcx08w2z-4DHPZKPh9mcCoiJ0BjhXZhPIsAd86K5-GnGzsUxlEV5dPkzGVJwKkFttgkooEjQ3awod73KTqRDyQu4S5acTz3a-3GZzo8ZO0yizKVK3GNnn_GDhypf8i7LA9RREfA0WT_YBFVT4rTE0lgabBZMIhsevL8PXs1HyFPjRJU1sIbR4wZlDpLva1Qkt-hIntWabYbCxd8fRZT4ZQi3vCtPL_p5aDU3GfV0HUg7HpE2zDSWXtxX33fIQngqyZ_6O5cpwQ8cnk5SPX6kLjHO10wBwXm6JSgNmfu3lluMOtVrh7L8Hm-C6VTwjCH4Cc5Gb16Jjf_K-grEhD3wFh-k6d2UAqgzfGyQ3zgSL-VqUDJUer2HFgj0g%2F3e5%2Fw4SOVtHvQzKdRQrnG4hWww%2Fh8%2FxUG30iv4hADP4NCaV1Kux7kWCIznwlSOYIkdG9zQnBQ&data=04%7C01%7CCEchols-Watson%40lachiv.org%7C96cc957f2fd149b88f3a08d958421970%7C7faea7986ad04fc9b068fcbcaed341f6%7C0%7C0%7C637637863961200410%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=gZ%2BWXUaRhGlxANRd%2FZW1sYvNXYtBxvulEYKOhnbP4s0%3D&reserved=0


The National Health Law Program (NHeLP) released a new 

white paper called “Closing the Medicaid Coverage Gap: 

Preventing a Separate and Unequal Result” which provides 

recommendations for closing the Medicaid coverage gap in 

an equitable manner. The Medicaid coverage gap is 

generally defined as describing adults from 18-64 who are 

above their state’s income cap for receiving Medicaid but 

below the poverty line, meaning they are ineligible for tax credits through the ACA marketplace.  

This is especially an issue for people living in the 12 states which have not expanded Medicaid. In 

non-expansion states, about 19% of people living with HIV are uninsured as compared to 5% in 

expansion states.  

Some of NHeLP’s recommendations for equitability closing the gap include:  

• Ensuring the enrollment structure incorporates Medicaid’s protections such as the right to 

apply and enroll at any time and to retroactively apply.  

• Maintaining Medicaid’s strict limits on premiums, copayments, deductibles, and balance 

billing, and providing specific outreach and education.  

• Ensuring the full scope of mandatory and “gold standard” optional Medicaid services covered 

by state plans, which include dental, vision, and supportive housing services.  

This piece is full of information that advocates can use when evaluating the equity of any Medicaid 

coverage gap plan that is released. Be sure to check it out!  

BAI’s African American HIV University program 

accepting applications  

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fu1584542.ct.sendgrid.net%2Fss%2Fc%2Fmw31GZsW-tYdpIw-ePlYv4btWJYvSogLdAxtY3_Y-V8YDBQW3Zfo7xAOst87Raq4PiUXfd5c9oXx1wSjHkU4nb-658IbdAioryBaxPoEnt4dWeQMbWNA6mBmmvky7z8u1MmUeTy_ER6FG8QPGn_vTkRXoSxG8NEFnJXvWZcKw2FvEILpskM67YnsZq_Y61X9_I4a28bDw7npKcwXqYOgPyIwxxq-Si5AgoFkE_3hTx0y5yZhAT5TIeFNFbfukmWIEutZ_l4DIusnr9Dy9SGUPqfc8It0NYzOklY4igK7y_vGvZqr0NtbJo81RGsAWvj7OvdwRoULzKnk1JPWM0pK8Ue5GE_QLlxX3jNOJjrCXg9G0btHhTigkPczYwiGack1w9RCndPsaoNLHpp6pxTXGQ%2F3e5%2Fw4SOVtHvQzKdRQrnG4hWww%2Fh10%2FqVYFRllPbFzvwMfpga6utJV89yeS1xLUWswssAoH30c&data=04%7C01%7CCEchols-Watson%40lachiv.org%7C96cc957f2fd149b88f3a08d958421970%7C7faea7986ad04fc9b068fcbcaed341f6%7C0%7C0%7C637637863961220325%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=%2BvZ9u%2BKuokk68u%2FiwGgAZ%2Fy4vMIZ8WqyL3F11VhI%2Ffg%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fu1584542.ct.sendgrid.net%2Fss%2Fc%2Fmw31GZsW-tYdpIw-ePlYv4btWJYvSogLdAxtY3_Y-V8YDBQW3Zfo7xAOst87Raq4PiUXfd5c9oXx1wSjHkU4nb-658IbdAioryBaxPoEnt4dWeQMbWNA6mBmmvky7z8u1MmUeTy_ER6FG8QPGn_vTkRXoSxG8NEFnJXvWZcKw2FvEILpskM67YnsZq_Y61X9_I4a28bDw7npKcwXqYOgPyIwxxq-Si5AgoFkE_3hTx0y5yZhAT5TIeFNFbfukmWIEutZ_l4DIusnr9Dy9SGUPqfc8It0NYzOklY4igK7y_vGvZqr0NtbJo81RGsAWvj7OvdwRoULzKnk1JPWM0pK8Ue5GE_QLlxX3jNOJjrCXg9G0btHhTigkPczYwiGack1w9RCndPsaoNLHpp6pxTXGQ%2F3e5%2Fw4SOVtHvQzKdRQrnG4hWww%2Fh10%2FqVYFRllPbFzvwMfpga6utJV89yeS1xLUWswssAoH30c&data=04%7C01%7CCEchols-Watson%40lachiv.org%7C96cc957f2fd149b88f3a08d958421970%7C7faea7986ad04fc9b068fcbcaed341f6%7C0%7C0%7C637637863961220325%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=%2BvZ9u%2BKuokk68u%2FiwGgAZ%2Fy4vMIZ8WqyL3F11VhI%2Ffg%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fu1584542.ct.sendgrid.net%2Fss%2Fc%2Fmw31GZsW-tYdpIw-ePlYv4btWJYvSogLdAxtY3_Y-V8YDBQW3Zfo7xAOst87Raq4PiUXfd5c9oXx1wSjHkU4nb-658IbdAioryBaxPoEnt4dWeQMbWNA6mBmmvky7z8u1MmUeTy_ER6FG8QPGn_vTmYgBRkZ6ZIhtlHNSdqjhbadu70YJx6zI2Cr7AfHhG5e8o-L4B28yXeWhEhsl-nuwfeC0MMhUpYy4o5XzHFcvC44JHtQ3Z0YQQ7SXEZjtrWbNq0Ssq-aG77e9abJqONtrxzR0BUNKoiJ9XH4AKPeRxJAmsPDCUp1o2eHQ1UFTe_6uxCQRjwiWPmTzGcpef8Hyy1LxTwrUzkQ8p7JfmtsZr8_NbJOvOpHxW18xFOSCEeTRxVT_yuB2-rCsu__p9IvKw%2F3e5%2Fw4SOVtHvQzKdRQrnG4hWww%2Fh11%2FsbVldwI9qLbnSRtpRuIMl4zEwpgtlJ9Lwcp-qAhcqg0&data=04%7C01%7CCEchols-Watson%40lachiv.org%7C96cc957f2fd149b88f3a08d958421970%7C7faea7986ad04fc9b068fcbcaed341f6%7C0%7C0%7C637637863961230281%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=0FWhthQZsNdswy%2BbcERk%2FpEwZ4QzHSIpB8s%2Bny2i6ng%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fu1584542.ct.sendgrid.net%2Fss%2Fc%2Fmw31GZsW-tYdpIw-ePlYv4btWJYvSogLdAxtY3_Y-V8YDBQW3Zfo7xAOst87Raq4PiUXfd5c9oXx1wSjHkU4nb-658IbdAioryBaxPoEnt4dWeQMbWNA6mBmmvky7z8u1MmUeTy_ER6FG8QPGn_vTlaaspJ-Lgks7RoZrs7nnBWY_6GWH3WthDGIu1lfTH3PR8_Cfia2CfQ3n13pUVF8kmcgywSOvrz3R-OJ8EE0C1h_u4SA5OHGBX-hsJSO8T5HEgWg4yAHnxXhivyEdHrXWOCyj3jmTY1alXhVB-eOxPXcqzO3794BYRfRgFevSg2hnivtPRa1i9CeDnfbEy7Q_oAT0mgWDRBOyPDxKZ9qtx11KRL1P42GrWvb2peFDqQ-Evskm3U-Wq68aeqjGnGKmA%2F3e5%2Fw4SOVtHvQzKdRQrnG4hWww%2Fh12%2FawWByleuOuDBFHyt_i-iGfWV6mAjWDWJ1J4IddjeHco&data=04%7C01%7CCEchols-Watson%40lachiv.org%7C96cc957f2fd149b88f3a08d958421970%7C7faea7986ad04fc9b068fcbcaed341f6%7C0%7C0%7C637637863961240236%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=EsEDyP%2B9Dp0fI377xxc%2FpaNypv2YAcJvT2t5T75DALQ%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fu1584542.ct.sendgrid.net%2Fss%2Fc%2Fmw31GZsW-tYdpIw-ePlYv4btWJYvSogLdAxtY3_Y-V8YDBQW3Zfo7xAOst87Raq4PiUXfd5c9oXx1wSjHkU4nb-658IbdAioryBaxPoEnt4dWeQMbWNA6mBmmvky7z8u1MmUeTy_ER6FG8QPGn_vTnarQ0-Ug5z0JYF8PbnixZ9bJGWcE-5lmd3UH2_iN7E4NxDSv4N5oC4DYvsUBlMANsUpAKNA9Yo9DTaROaotdzJPOqAUj80rFvQk0OMKEq1J7Vax6bav069ypfExgCNrCbtlvAUjZBYSGcGGlyV9HoYBLYROmc_GPVhPijAn_vgYGeauwudSUm078UkP03i4IatF2xk6xdpKNjSuKWl9zOZQv2ILeK4q8mJG4vAcGbkHxIdc2c86WPvXwgOwTAL0eQ%2F3e5%2Fw4SOVtHvQzKdRQrnG4hWww%2Fh9%2FYZt2KS_7keY0p648Ho1p456mYPHot-1X8-IxxzjLLz4&data=04%7C01%7CCEchols-Watson%40lachiv.org%7C96cc957f2fd149b88f3a08d958421970%7C7faea7986ad04fc9b068fcbcaed341f6%7C0%7C0%7C637637863961210366%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=ffUnx%2BRbeqWuyMwGr9RL8mjNyoanYDakbrYSQt8WGl0%3D&reserved=0


Black AIDS Institute (BAI) re-

launched its African American HIV University (AAHU) program earlier this month. This program aims 

to build Black leadership and mobilization skills as a way to end the epidemic in Black America in 

alignment with BAI's "We The People: A Black Strategy to End HIV.”  

Two parts of the AAHU program, the Science and Treatment College and the Community 

Mobilization College, are accepting applications through August 15. Read more and apply here.  

Economic Justice  

HRSA’s Black Women First Initiative  

The demonstration sites for a $3.8 million initiative, “Improving Care 

and Treatment Coordination: Focusing on Black Women with HIV”--

also referred to as the Black Women First Initiative--were 

announced this month. The initiative provides grants and support to 

12 organizations to design, implement, and evaluate the use of 

culturally competent interventions to improve HIV care and 

treatment coordination for cis- and transgender Black women.  

Positive Women’s Network - USA Co-Executive Director Venita Ray serves as a member of the 

advisory council for the initiative and has provided training for grantees on the meaningful 

involvement of people living with HIV.  

This initiative is an important step forward, but it is important to recognize that only 10% of the 

funding went to organizations explicitly founded and run by Black women, and none of the 

organizations are trans-founded or trans-led. Read more about the organizations who received the 

grants here.  

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fu1584542.ct.sendgrid.net%2Fss%2Fc%2FSVVf6UGddUySPN6znLYVWv25gPMXbw4xrlH7YQFT-DLCPCjiZx0pdwQnE4D-m_RP_Skail81LIwVGsYTWi-i8Nzs9uBOB9c1fOuQHoxbWrwNU6xzCYvoVA11QKp6KMPnSuH1NlLOkvtqqAinQc8rLuzhZF9M4R4vBFOMQ9Hb9hjTIoCdJm83mnmWk_eNwMZZWXXwj0ToyZcGIosRbHAlTqMR39Y_9zjlL8tSsBylkFTzGTSMu6BfVmXWLbiRYcvwwdjANipvW2eX4SmGABlT8xIT3ho53V7_bRlJtDTJMBvdYLbzvIgFRyEjln18xa6PmyR1s4126zwwD53B_HSHMg%2F3e5%2Fw4SOVtHvQzKdRQrnG4hWww%2Fh14%2FHskG6tvGcjoGgPdtcDFgYtFwkCEtMzRjtI07HDne4rE&data=04%7C01%7CCEchols-Watson%40lachiv.org%7C96cc957f2fd149b88f3a08d958421970%7C7faea7986ad04fc9b068fcbcaed341f6%7C0%7C0%7C637637863961250191%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=yYO72ibT%2Fb8J%2FL8L9dRe2NcOhQaJ49L9lpfuapUeez8%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fu1584542.ct.sendgrid.net%2Fss%2Fc%2FSVVf6UGddUySPN6znLYVWv25gPMXbw4xrlH7YQFT-DLCPCjiZx0pdwQnE4D-m_RP_Skail81LIwVGsYTWi-i8Nzs9uBOB9c1fOuQHoxbWrz0LUJP1Ga0TJr4bv_1emufzaWfkq3e3U0OvOn8pJqX6HYbSdhsRtSfKt4gnZICJFfKHTP7YtJbV2HPWmgKA53QH3-WbXtzx-y9Iey1pp1MdU0Jxie56bHHoZT8IWFUsKOei8rOTsh1se51dsiqK7G97ntpkLmuhsIWL-PteP_3_Lk7AX7BNpHoS3gZsW5hMhRAZu3lpwhB12c9gamjpPr5xU3rCWVMWq_P7OHw4iwixw%2F3e5%2Fw4SOVtHvQzKdRQrnG4hWww%2Fh15%2FDZPoSoVrOQtt_N4TwvYFxCoszgKobwoP3bVj7nZkFiA&data=04%7C01%7CCEchols-Watson%40lachiv.org%7C96cc957f2fd149b88f3a08d958421970%7C7faea7986ad04fc9b068fcbcaed341f6%7C0%7C0%7C637637863961250191%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=tbaR%2F2ev3KcdfB%2FV3q%2FJESS5ItwrBMyK03TYCWgLkgM%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fu1584542.ct.sendgrid.net%2Fss%2Fc%2FatcYNHk4Eh2YdGnwBh-YDJTJKyzWKukl6BagbsLOaV_SEEYREG9FUeSCkijk1AhWD_Oy9GCoeqM5SmcLp4Lj-tfXKG0wD5ww2qY0uYukXOsBaRpXKz8mabjjm01OSA-9ng6JVkB0fhqpk6sgou8TPXLcTtfwt1a_AruqZICKGfrfD62WunHig92gPq8c05zIw1oY4TTsFxEDvyy87Eo-YeWkYXYu8T_uWptGZ-bUnm6VkUXG9a6k-1W4hnSIU_yof3E8TmtXXgHFNoioGgTWWbGxXgOImvvUWyeoi74abExZf2rcV-R5PscBiIxEm784_TOXPhqsG9UC0dykg9jqzgk1A5tMTlnq8X2puoweGlw%2F3e5%2Fw4SOVtHvQzKdRQrnG4hWww%2Fh17%2FVP5I88ZF8Ss8eYAYKSQSA3mJY1PL8Sne5UmI1BCVmOI&data=04%7C01%7CCEchols-Watson%40lachiv.org%7C96cc957f2fd149b88f3a08d958421970%7C7faea7986ad04fc9b068fcbcaed341f6%7C0%7C0%7C637637863961280059%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=a93R6JSGDO0ZiCoA5l%2B0BVl87NXGOPevm%2BW4f0IaA0Y%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fu1584542.ct.sendgrid.net%2Fss%2Fc%2FatcYNHk4Eh2YdGnwBh-YDJTJKyzWKukl6BagbsLOaV_SEEYREG9FUeSCkijk1AhWD_Oy9GCoeqM5SmcLp4Lj-tfXKG0wD5ww2qY0uYukXOsBaRpXKz8mabjjm01OSA-9ng6JVkB0fhqpk6sgou8TPXLcTtfwt1a_AruqZICKGfrfD62WunHig92gPq8c05zIw1oY4TTsFxEDvyy87Eo-YeWkYXYu8T_uWptGZ-bUnm6VkUXG9a6k-1W4hnSIU_yof3E8TmtXXgHFNoioGgTWWbGxXgOImvvUWyeoi74abExZf2rcV-R5PscBiIxEm784_TOXPhqsG9UC0dykg9jqzgk1A5tMTlnq8X2puoweGlw%2F3e5%2Fw4SOVtHvQzKdRQrnG4hWww%2Fh17%2FVP5I88ZF8Ss8eYAYKSQSA3mJY1PL8Sne5UmI1BCVmOI&data=04%7C01%7CCEchols-Watson%40lachiv.org%7C96cc957f2fd149b88f3a08d958421970%7C7faea7986ad04fc9b068fcbcaed341f6%7C0%7C0%7C637637863961280059%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=a93R6JSGDO0ZiCoA5l%2B0BVl87NXGOPevm%2BW4f0IaA0Y%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fu1584542.ct.sendgrid.net%2Fss%2Fc%2FatcYNHk4Eh2YdGnwBh-YDJTJKyzWKukl6BagbsLOaV_SEEYREG9FUeSCkijk1AhWD_Oy9GCoeqM5SmcLp4Lj-tfXKG0wD5ww2qY0uYukXOsBaRpXKz8mabjjm01OSA-90hfYUA5UU9EnKYuV0IkVai878eZpx6TJLJr7YrFOta1mbO_xcCxs1hQjG66nXFkpPHDA-eUwxONK15SOYc9RMTSJwgUtcZBa7_E80U70OO5LkhkJYPb2_WvJsg7yLaHv61RgG8pt4gEXxzv8NriWao_hzOtjo-N5rnrGN26FZ3SinK9pbwG97vDgLtnZEHP40oTaIKX56t3b9jjBYjMrB2MdAyp8yJPLZxFuAKckMm4%2F3e5%2Fw4SOVtHvQzKdRQrnG4hWww%2Fh18%2FG_xq_-e0EjHd16tN96-WwMncper3Of5uYa7JgpwafPo&data=04%7C01%7CCEchols-Watson%40lachiv.org%7C96cc957f2fd149b88f3a08d958421970%7C7faea7986ad04fc9b068fcbcaed341f6%7C0%7C0%7C637637863961280059%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=klt%2B9hZRlM4zeCAwpebiWbCeJeaqp43xU7K4ZYCrFWk%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fu1584542.ct.sendgrid.net%2Fss%2Fc%2FSVVf6UGddUySPN6znLYVWv25gPMXbw4xrlH7YQFT-DLCPCjiZx0pdwQnE4D-m_RP_Skail81LIwVGsYTWi-i8Nzs9uBOB9c1fOuQHoxbWrwxzsIjyXYaNRQtqPO27yeusKVZo24dHocHQxqfzPTaCWm4xYoc9MVL4bCbV6606Jj54Og_pEo3WMxpkCpCBBrqcaHWm59e45hk1c61MTTEmQTUo-9vDgkVwzfUMjZ4xILSzhrUWgPv1VbEwR2HTebHImDs-OW3Anl9FdjhRIIgsJCQYYcn85Vb6EttkTD8QmNHIpLiVhvuv2k4XEBH58z3F4rd-8ZxxOaJFNwroPfhqA%2F3e5%2Fw4SOVtHvQzKdRQrnG4hWww%2Fh13%2Fl1Pu4TjihYM3xJ4vyvxT4zzxAmJPb50nSQFIQFygsz8&data=04%7C01%7CCEchols-Watson%40lachiv.org%7C96cc957f2fd149b88f3a08d958421970%7C7faea7986ad04fc9b068fcbcaed341f6%7C0%7C0%7C637637863961240236%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=VNMSpQ9spq3RcnNPqaa58jSRtkH6vRgrEjyVnGYQ5nY%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fu1584542.ct.sendgrid.net%2Fss%2Fc%2FatcYNHk4Eh2YdGnwBh-YDJTJKyzWKukl6BagbsLOaV_SEEYREG9FUeSCkijk1AhWD_Oy9GCoeqM5SmcLp4Lj-tfXKG0wD5ww2qY0uYukXOsBaRpXKz8mabjjm01OSA-980P0zZmbo9Jtp0Kp5jbdHXbYcR-P-n5x45k6pnIXpTPsTbGYiVD6z1vJotKIwo0CGqhwNLqwrBuOD8n8F80Ujd5wHNDe7Ib35fp--e8XDZzD2Yc9QV_WtWy3kFuHjk5RJU8881hjIkk_v_sne4h5IT0LJVy5MT9YbJ1objVf1F3JNdzXyTxlOemlghDTUb-OwxZJFo3G2go0S_hRSFv-RfFl0Gn9g_u38IzLwDbUhjs%2F3e5%2Fw4SOVtHvQzKdRQrnG4hWww%2Fh16%2FSHAVWT77btb-9kK70u4qZeKFsH_NrggqjH-RH2jnQAc&data=04%7C01%7CCEchols-Watson%40lachiv.org%7C96cc957f2fd149b88f3a08d958421970%7C7faea7986ad04fc9b068fcbcaed341f6%7C0%7C0%7C637637863961260146%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=847TtPfO0VtqWN1349M81oSUbT4ajpIBTF6rgkKQxlE%3D&reserved=0


Sexual and Reproductive Health, Rights 

and Justice  

Sterilization reparations bill funded in California  

California passed a budget bill which included $7.5 million to provide reparations to survivors of 

state-sponsored forced or involuntary sterilizations. California is the third state in the nation to 

provide monetary compensation to survivors who were sterilized under state eugenics laws and the 

first state to both provide notification of coerced sterilization and reparations to survivors who were 

sterilized while incarcerated in its state women's prisons.  

These sterilization practices affected many Black, Indigenous, and other people of color, people with 

disabilities, LGBTQ people, and people living in poverty. These funds are estimated to provide 

approximately $25,000 each to about 150 individuals. This amazing work has been led by California 

Latinas for Reproductive Justice, the Disability Rights Education and Defense Fund, and the 

California Coalition for Women Prisoners.  

 

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fu1584542.ct.sendgrid.net%2Fss%2Fc%2FatcYNHk4Eh2YdGnwBh-YDGqVg7_jfWQzu8HEuSXChe0U0YsPviUOzSlPzEdCBzx0L5Q6vnzpAAU2L8n6ScVK9zV8U27ErEICToE2v8P93DeY4Z9rl8Sjn-nGIjdTNnpqfxG-qY4zYaS-qrwX_lN0KB6uQ6K8ZN7D3B28EoinAab1iTfhuHxlrM11uynq3bcgn9E1S12ygUDqpUdqA5r0RQMlG9P0peerbiMcV2Hou2N2WCbFTmh7JONf-YYAqnHmiRI3xhi2T_37X0jYibktXz9arHy1IqTuBBH2PpiHJt1QIIdRnxnn5fzbItuTFmtt-TiTQkxGAF54aZOQH8N-atNq3a2MsY-YeOswVQBVLKz-yolRCyHZbpK-Lx4DJ93yAnaJWfdNBEVnd7REy6piuQ%2F3e5%2Fw4SOVtHvQzKdRQrnG4hWww%2Fh19%2F39MO61B5cdPSvlDaFlpvRGXfU0QppPnwkK-HSP2FUDw&data=04%7C01%7CCEchols-Watson%40lachiv.org%7C96cc957f2fd149b88f3a08d958421970%7C7faea7986ad04fc9b068fcbcaed341f6%7C0%7C0%7C637637863961290017%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=V8ShyzDjOAyjMtYtjzUVj4yKpjJbGYvQ%2BYN4x6YpiIk%3D&reserved=0


 

 

 

 

 

SEPTEMBER 2021 

QUICK TAKE 
ENSURING COMPLIANCE WITH NEW 
FEDERAL USPSTF PrEP GUIDANCE 
PRE-EXPOSURE PROPHYLAXIS (PrEP) 
IS A CRITICAL COMPONENT OF 
COMPREHENSIVE HIV PREVENTION. 
Achieving widespread and sustained 
use of PrEP by individuals for 
whom it is recommended is critical 
to preventing new HIV infections, 
providing both individual and public 
health benefts. As such, PrEP has 
the potential to protect communities 
from HIV infection and strengthen 
them with lifelong benefts. Delivering 
PrEP effectively, however, requires 
overcoming multiple obstacles, not the 
least of which is ensuring affordable 
and hassle-free access to PrEP 
medications and related care. 

In 2019, following an evidence-based 
review, the United States Preventive 
Services Task Force (USPSTF) issued 
a fnal recommendation and gave 
daily oral PrEP its strongest rating, 
an A. Pursuant to the Affordable 
Care Act (ACA), most private health 
plans and all Medicaid-expansion 
programs must cover USPSTF grade 
A and B-recommended services 
free-of-charge for the plan year 
beginning one year after the issue 
date of the recommendation. State 

REQUIRED PrEP SERVICES 

Effective PrEP involves more than taking medication. Per federal guidance, most 
private plans and all Medicaid expansion plans must provide the following care, 
without cost-sharing, to insured persons. These standards refect CDC clinical 
practice guidelines and help ensure safe and effective prescribing. 

Offce Visits: Offce visits associated with each recommended preventive 
service when the primary purpose of the offce visit is the delivery of the preventive 
service. 

HIV Testing: Individuals must be tested to confrm that they are HIV negative before 
starting PrEP, and current guidelines call for repeat testing every 3 months while on 
PrEP. 

Hepatitis B and C Testing: Individuals should be tested for Hepatitis B and C 
when initiating PrEP. Persons with an ongoing risk for Hepatitis C should be 
screened regularly. 

Creatinine Testing and Calculated Estimated Creatine Clearance (eCrCl) or 
Glomerular Filtration Rate (eGFR): These tests of kidney function must be 
performed before starting PrEP and should be checked periodically. 

Pregnancy Testing: Persons with childbearing potential must be tested before 
enrolling in PrEP and should be tested again periodically. 

Sexually Transmitted Infection (STI) Screening and Counseling: All persons 
must be tested for STIs when starting PrEP and should be retested periodically. 
This includes testing for all symptomatic individuals. Sexually active adults and 
adolescents should be screened every six months. Asymptomatic gay and bisexual 
men at high risk for STIs should be screened every 3 months with 3-site specimen 
collection (i.e. pharyngeal, rectal, and genital/urine specimens). 

Adherence Counseling: Individuals on PrEP must be offered regular behavioral 
counseling and adherence support. 

CRITICAL COMPONENTS OF THE FEDERAL PrEP GUIDANCE 

Coverage of PrEP-related ancillary  
services without cost-sharing 

Easy and timely exceptions process if  
plans limit PrEP services 

See text box above for details. 

Frequency of services must follow 
CDC guidelines and no restrictions on 
restarting PrEP 

Plans must cover, free-of-charge, baseline 
and monitoring services that includes HIV 
testing every three months and sexually 
transmitted infection (STI) screening 
consistent with CDC guidelines. 

Plans cannot restrict individuals from 
continuing or re-starting PrEP as long as 
their own health care provider determines 
that PrEP is medically indicated. 

Access to medically appropriate  
PrEP medication without cost sharing,  
as determined by the individual’s health 
care provider 

Reasonable medical management is  
permitted to give preference to a specifc  
PrEP medication, such as by offering one  
product without cost-sharing and imposing  
cost-sharing for other products. Plans  
are required, however, to accommodate  
any individual for whom a particular PrEP  
medication (generic or brand name) would  
be medically inappropriate, as determined  
by the individual’s own health care provider. 
This requires plans to have a mechanism for  
waiving the otherwise applicable cost sharing  
for the brand or non-preferred brand version. 

If plans use medical management 
techniques to limit access to specifc PrEP 
products or services, they must have 
an easily accessible, transparent, and 
suffciently expedient exceptions process 
that is not unduly burdensome on the 
individual (or authorized representative) 
or provider. The FAQs provide the example 
of an exceptions process that allows for 
prescribing and accessing PrEP medications 
on the same day that an individual receives 
a negative HIV test and decides to start a 
PrEP regimen. 

https://www.uspreventiveservicestaskforce.org/uspstf/document/RecommendationStatementFinal/prevention-of-human-immunodeficiency-virus-hiv-infection-pre-exposure-prophylaxis


  
 

 
 

 

 

  
  

 
 

. NOTE: CDC is updating its guidelines.  
New guidelines are anticipated to be published before the  
end of 2021. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

QUICK TAKE: ENSURING COMPLIANCE WITH NEW FEDERAL USPSTF PrEP GUIDANCE 

Medicaid programs also can extend this coverage to all 
non-expansion Medicaid benefciaries. Fifteen states and the 
District of Columbia currently do (NASTAD, July 2021). This 
recommendation does not apply to a small set of private 
“grandfathered plans.” While the recommendation also does 
not apply to Medicare, most Medicare plans cover PrEP, but 
with applicable cost sharing. 

In July 2021, the US Departments of Health and Human 
Services (HHS), Labor, and Treasury jointly issued frequently 
asked questions (FAQs)  to clarify coverage obligations 
without cost sharing for PrEP medications and services. 
Enforcement actions may be taken by state and federal 
regulators starting on September 17, 2021 to ensure 
compliance with these requirements. 

WHILE THESE FAQs PROVIDE HELPFUL CLARIFICATION, 
THEY ARE ONLY MEANINGFUL TO THE EXTENT THAT 
HEALTH PLANS UNDERSTAND AND COMPLY WITH 
THEM. Individuals, PrEP providers and care teams, health 
departments, insurance regulators, advocacy groups, 
and others must take action to support compliance with 
these requirements. Improving the health of communities 
and preventing new HIV infections is a large and complex 
undertaking. Enforcement of this clarifying guidance will 
beneft individuals by helping to address barriers to PrEP 
uptake and will move us closer to ending the HIV epidemic in 
the United States. 

ACTIONS NEEDED TO SUPPORT COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCE THE LAW 

PrEP USERS AND PROVIDERS 

If patients or providers observe that a plan is not complying, they 
should bring the federal guidance to the attention of the plan or plan 
sponsor. In addition, they can contact the state and federal regulators 
indicated below. 

Private-Employer Group Health/ERISA Plans: Persons with 
private employer group health plans can fle a complaint with the 
Department of Labor Employee Benefts Security Administration 
(EBSA) at https://www.dol.gov/agencies/ebsa/about-ebsa/ask-a-
question/ask-ebsa or 1-866-444-EBSA (3272). 

Non-ERISA Group Plans and Individual Plans: Persons with these 
kinds of plans (including persons with ACA marketplace plans) should 
contact their state insurance regulator. A directory is available from 
the National Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC) at 
https://content.naic.org/state-insurance-departments. 

State and Local Government Employee Plans: In addition to state 
and local government oversight, HHS enforces federal requirements. 
Complaints can be emailed to NonFed@cms.hhs.gov. 

Federal Government Employee Plans: The federal Offce of 
Personnel Management (OPM) requires plans in the Federal 
Employees Health Benefts Program (FEHB) to provide ACA-required 
preventive services. Complaints can be made at 202.606.1800 or 
FEHB@opm.gov. 

HEALTH DEPARTMENTS AND 
INSURANCE REGULATORS 

State and local health 
departments and state and 
federal insurance regulators 
should develop compliance 
tools, conduct audits, and 
monitor activities to ensure 
plan compliance with federal 
rules. As regulators may 
be less familiar with the 
complexities of HIV prevention 
and clinical practices in PrEP 
services delivery, HIV experts 
in health departments can 
be an important resource 
for regulators in ensuring 
compliance with these 
requirements. 

Audits, assessments, and 
enforcement actions should be 
released to the public, including 
any enforcement actions taken. 

FEDERAL AGENCIES 

The Centers for Medicare 
and Medicaid Services (CMS) 
should issue a State Health 
Offcials Letter describing the 
critical importance of PrEP, 
available federal resources, 
and describing compliance 
obligations of Medicaid 
programs and ACA marketplace 
health plans. 

The FAQs rely heavily on 
Centers for Disease Control 
and Prevention (CDC) clinical 
practice guidelines. CDC 
should write to all health plans 
describing their clinical practice 
guidelines and how to use 
them to comply with federal 
requirements. This could help 
to greatly increase the public 
health impact of PrEP. 

TO LEARN MORE 
The new guidance, FAQs About Affordable Care Act Im-
plementation Part 47, was released on July 19, 2021. It can 
be accessed at https://www.cms.gov/CCIIO/Resources/ 
Fact-Sheets-and-FAQs/Downloads/FAQs-Part-47.pdf and at 
https://www.dol.gov/sites/dolgov/fles/EBSA/about-ebsa/ 
our-activities/resource-center/faqs/aca-part-47.pdf. 

The USPSTF’s Final Recommendation Statement for PrEP is 
available at https://www.uspreventiveservicestaskforce.org/ 
Page/Document/RecommendationStatementFinal/preven-
tion-of-human-immunodefciency-virus-hiv-infection-pre-ex-
posure-prophylaxis. 

For clinical practice guidelines, see the US Public Health 
Service/CDC Pre-exposure Prophylaxis for the Prevention 
of HIV Infection in the United States – 2017 Update, available 
at https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/pdf/risk/prep/cdc-hiv-prep-
guidelines-2017.pdf

For additional background information, please read our 
Quick Take, The USPSTF PrEP Recommendation, March 2020, 
and our Big Ideas Brief, Achieving Suffcient Scale of PrEP 
Use is Critical to Ending the HIV Epidemic, August 2019, at 
the link below. 

SEPTEMBER 2021 

This Quick Take is a product of the HIV Policy Project of the O’Neill Institute 
for National and Global Health Law and was developed with support from 
Gilead Sciences, Inc. It was authored by Jeffrey S. Crowley and Landon 
Myers with input from community stakeholders and in partnership with Gilead 
Sciences. The views expressed are solely those of the authors. 

http://bit.ly/USHIVpolicyproject 

http://bit.ly/USHIVpolicyproject
https://www.cms.gov/CCIIO/Resources/Fact-Sheets-and-FAQs/Downloads/FAQs-Part-47.pdf
https://www.cms.gov/CCIIO/Resources/Fact-Sheets-and-FAQs/Downloads/FAQs-Part-47.pdf
https://www.cms.gov/CCIIO/Resources/Fact-Sheets-and-FAQs/Downloads/FAQs-Part-47.pdf
https://www.cms.gov/CCIIO/Resources/Fact-Sheets-and-FAQs/Downloads/FAQs-Part-47.pdf
https://www.dol.gov/sites/dolgov/files/EBSA/about-ebsa/our-activities/resource-center/faqs/aca-part-47.pdf
https://www.dol.gov/sites/dolgov/files/EBSA/about-ebsa/our-activities/resource-center/faqs/aca-part-47.pdf
https://www.uspreventiveservicestaskforce.org/Page/Document/RecommendationStatementFinal/prevention-of-human-immunodeficiency-virus-hiv-infection-pre-exposure-prophylaxis
https://www.uspreventiveservicestaskforce.org/Page/Document/RecommendationStatementFinal/prevention-of-human-immunodeficiency-virus-hiv-infection-pre-exposure-prophylaxis
https://www.uspreventiveservicestaskforce.org/Page/Document/RecommendationStatementFinal/prevention-of-human-immunodeficiency-virus-hiv-infection-pre-exposure-prophylaxis
https://www.uspreventiveservicestaskforce.org/Page/Document/RecommendationStatementFinal/prevention-of-human-immunodeficiency-virus-hiv-infection-pre-exposure-prophylaxis
https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/pdf/risk/prep/cdc-hiv-prep-guidelines-2017.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/pdf/risk/prep/cdc-hiv-prep-guidelines-2017.pdf
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/ebsa/about-ebsa/ask-a-question/ask-ebsa
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/ebsa/about-ebsa/ask-a-question/ask-ebsa
https://content.naic.org/state-insurance-departments
mailto:NonFed@cms.hhs.gov
mailto:FEHB@opm.gov
http://bit.ly/USHIVpolicyproject
https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/pdf/risk/prep/cdc-hiv-prep
https://www.uspreventiveservicestaskforce.org
https://www.dol.gov/sites/dolgov/files/EBSA/about-ebsa
https://www.cms.gov/CCIIO/Resources
mailto:FEHB@opm.gov
mailto:NonFed@cms.hhs.gov
https://content.naic.org/state-insurance-departments
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/ebsa/about-ebsa/ask-a

